
Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666  Fax: 01653 696801
www.ryedale.gov.uk working with you to make a difference

1 Apologies for absence 

2 Minutes of meeting held on 19 January 2016 (Pages 3 - 8)

3 Urgent Business 
To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be 
dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of 
the Local Government Act 1972.

4 Declarations of Interest 
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of 
Conduct.

Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council 
are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest.  This requirement is 
not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation. 

5 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee (Pages 9 - 10)

6 15/01109/MFUL - Land West of Kirby Mills Road, Kirby Mills, Kirkbymoorside 
(Pages 11 - 20)

7 15/01180/MFUL - Pickering Trout Lake, Undercliffe, Pickering (Pages 21 - 77)

8 14/01259/MFUL - Land to Rear of Firthland Road, Pickering (Pages 78 - 147)

Please Contact Jo Holmes/Karen Hood

Extension 310/386

Date of Publication 8 February 2016

E Mail jo.holmes@ryedale.gov.uk; 
karen.hood@ryedale.gov.uk

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Tuesday 16 February 2016 at 6.00 pm
 
Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton

     Agenda

Public Document Pack

http://www.ryedale.gov.uk/


9 15/01290/MFUL - Land At Ordmerstones Lane, Thornton-Le-Dale (Pages 148 - 
165)

10 15/01323/MFUL - Land East Of High Street, Slingsby, Malton (Pages 166 - 190)

11 15/01502/MFUL - Spaniel Farm, Main Road, Weaverthorpe (Pages 191 - 197)

12 15/01236/FUL - Land At Cherry Farm Close, Malton (Pages 198 - 225)

13 15/01339/FUL - Land West of Pasture Lane, Hovingham (Pages 226 - 250)

14 15/01384/FUL - Land East Of Sheriff Hutton Industrial Estate, Sheriff Hutton 
(Pages 251 - 299)

15 15/00048/ENF215 - Land Adj to Dhekelia, Moor Lane, Broughton (Pages 300 - 
303)

16 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent. 

17 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers. (Pages 304 - 310)

18 Update on Appeal Decisions (Pages 311 - 322)



Planning Committee 1 Tuesday 19 January 2016

Planning Committee

Held at Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton
Tuesday 19 January 2016

Present

Councillors  Burr MBE, Cleary, Farnell, Frank (Vice-Chairman), Goodrick, Hope, Maud, 
Shields, Thornton and Windress (Chairman)

Substitutes: 

In Attendance

Tim Goodall, Jo Holmes, Gary Housden, Ellis Mortimer, Jill Thompson and Anthony 
Winship

Minutes

141 Apologies for absence

There were no apologies. 

142 Minutes of meeting held on 22 December 2015

Decision

That the minutes of the Planning Committee held on 22 December 2015 be 
approved and signed as a correct record.

[For 9 Against 0 Abstain 0]

143 Urgent Business

There was no urgent business. 

144 Declarations of Interest

Councillor Application
Hope 11
Farnell 11
Cleary 11
Frank 11
Goodrick 11
Burr 11
Maud 11

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Planning Committee 2 Tuesday 19 January 2016

Thornton 8,11
Windress 11

145 Part A Report - Minerals and Waste Joint Plan - Preferred Options 
Consultation

The Head of Planning and Housing Services  submitted a report (previously 
circulated) which put forward for consideration a proposed consultation response  
to the North Yorkshire County Council Minerals and Waste Joint Plan - Preferred 
Options Consultation document . The deadline for making a consultation 
response was extended to Wednesday 20 January 2016 by agreement with the 
North Yorkshire County Council.  

The Chairman noted that this report was a Part A item for decision by the 
Planning Committee . The Chairman expressed an intention that once the 
Planning Committee had dealt with this item he would move  a proposal that 
future consultations should be treated as a Part B item so that the Planning 
Committee would make recommendations to Full Council and that Full Council 
would make the final decision.  
 

Decision

1) The Planning Committee  agreed the District Council’s response to the 
consultation as set out in each of the three RDC Response sections of the 
Officer  report subject to modifications agreed by Members .

[For 7 Against 0 Abstain 2]

(2) That any  further consultation on the Minerals and Waste Joint Plan be dealt 
with as a  Part B item so that the recommendations of  the Planning Committee 
would be made to Full Council and that Full Council would make the final 
decision . 

[For 9 Against 0 Abstain 0]

146 Part A Report - Consultation on Proposed Changes to National Planning 
Policy

The Head of Planning and Housing Services  submitted a report (previously 
circulated) which put forward for consideration a proposed   consultation 
response  to a Consultation on Proposed Changes to National Planning Policy
issued by the Department for Communities and Local Government. The 
extended deadline for the consultation is 22 February 2016 . 

Page 4



Planning Committee 3 Tuesday 19 January 2016

Decision

The Planning Committee  agreed  this Council's response to the consultation as 
outlined in the  response sections of the Officer  report subject to modifications 
agreed by Members .

[For 8 Against 0 Abstain 1]

147 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee

The Head of Planning & Housing submitted a list (previously circulated) of the 
applications for planning permission with recommendations thereon.

148 15/01180/MFUL - Pickering Trout Lake, Undercliffe, Pickering

15/01180/MFUL - Infilling of fishing lake together with change of use of land to 
form a 158no. space car park with siting of 7no. glamping units and erection of 
reception building to accommodate cafe, shop, exhibition and meeting space, 
service kitchen, public toilets and shower rooms, storage and a 3 bedroom 
managers apartment to include demolition of existing service building that 
includes owners private accommodation, and formation of on site road, 
pathways and landscaping.

Decision
SITE VISIT

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct Councillor Thornton declared 
a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

149 14/00625/FUL - Wellington House, 63 Wood Street, Norton

14/00625/FUL - Change of use of existing residential care home (Use Class 
C2) to a 15no. bedroom house of multiple occupation (HMO) (retrospective)

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 9 Against 0 Abstain 1]

150 15/01079/FUL - Fosters Scrapyard, Moorfields Lane, Wombleton

Page 5



Planning Committee 4 Tuesday 19 January 2016

15/01079/FUL - Change of use of land and erection of 9no. 2 bedroom holiday 
lodges and construction of pond together with formation of associated vehicular 
access and parking.

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain]

151 15/01117/FUL - Howsham Mill, Howsham Hall Road, Howsham

15/01117/FUL - Extension of approved uses to include hire of building for 
corporate meetings and training courses in addition to existing use as 
educational resource centre with bunking facility.

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct Councillors Hope, Farnell, 
Cleary, Frank, Goodrick, Burr, Maud, Thornton and Windress declared a 
personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest. 

152 15/01163/FUL - Ravenswick, Swineherd Lane, Kirkbymoorside

15/01163/FUL - Demolition of Ravenswick Hall together with adjacent lodge 
and majority of associated outbuildings and former agricultural buildings and 
erection of a replacement 10 no.bedroom country house and associated 
buildings, inc. leisure building, service building, detached quadruple garage, 
gatehouse, pool house, outdoor swimming pool, garden store, tennis court, 
landscaped gardens with temple and grotto, 2no.belvederes (parkland 
structures) and 2 no.linked pools  and erection of 1 no. four bedroom staff 
dwelling with attached double garage and 3 no. three bedroom staff dwellings 
with attached single garages.

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

153 15/01250/FUL - Nunnington Hall, The Avenue, Nunnington

Page 6



Planning Committee 5 Tuesday 19 January 2016

15/01250/FUL - Erection of detached outbuilding for storage of gardeners' 
equipment.

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended and 
additional condition relating to flood resilience measures.

[For 7 Against 1 Abstain 2]

154 15/01420/FUL - Land Rear of Number 1 Chapel Street, Nawton

15/01420/FUL - Erection of a 2no. bedroom dwelling together with formation of 
vehicular access and associated parking area.

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended.  

[For 9 Against 1 Abstain 0]

155 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

The site visit for Item 8 was agreed to take place on February 2nd 2016 at  
9.30am. 

156 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.

The Head of Planning & Housing submitted for information (previously 
circulated) which gave details of the applications determined by the Head of 
Planning & Housing in accordance with the scheme of Delegated Decisions.

157 Update on Appeal Decisions

Members were advised of the following appeal decisions

Appeal Ref: APP/Y2736/W/15/3130202 - North Yorkshire Highways Depot, 
Manor Vale Lane, Kirkbymoorside.

Appeal A Ref: APP/Y2736/D/15/3128997 - Sycamore Cottage, Cawton Road, 
Gilling East, York

Appeal B Ref: APP/Y2736/D/15/3128823 - Sycamore Cottage, Cawton Road, 
Gilling East, York

The meeting closed at 8.50pm

Page 7



Planning Committee 6 Tuesday 19 January 2016

 

Page 8



16/02/16

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 

15/01109/MFUL

Erection of factory building with associated offices and staff facilities 

together with car parking and section of access road.

6

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land West Of Kirby Mills Road Kirkby Mills Kirkbymoorside  

15/01180/MFUL

Infilling of fishing lake together with change of use of land to form a 

158no. space car park with siting of 7no. glamping units and erection of 

reception building to accommodate cafe, shop, exhibition and meeting 

space, service kitchen, public toilets and shower rooms, storage and a 3 

bedroom managers apartment to include demolition of existing service 

building that includes owners private accommodation, and formation of on 

site road, pathways and landscaping

7

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Pickering Trout Lake  Undercliffe Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8JH

14/01259/MFUL

Erection of 12 no. four bedroom dwellings, 27 no. three bedroom dwellings, 

and 13 no. two bedroom dwellings with associated garaging, parking, 

amenity areas, public open space, landscaping and formation of vehicular 

accesses and site roads

8

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land To Rear Of Firthland Road Pickering North Yorkshire  

15/01290/MFUL

 Change of use of agricultural land to a holiday campsite to include siting of 

6no. timber shepherd huts for self contained holiday accommodation, 

ancillary timber reception building and timber utility laundry building, 

formation of wildlife pond, alteration to existing vehicular site access and 

onsite access tracks

9

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land At Ordmerstones Lane Thornton-Le-Dale Pickering North Yorkshire  

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



16/02/16

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 

15/01323/MFUL

Erection of 6no. two bedroom dwellings, 7no. three bedroom dwellings and 

5no. four bedroom dwellings with associated garaging, parking and amenity 

areas and formation of vehicular access onto High Street

10

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land East Of High Street Slingsby Malton  

15/01502/MFUL

Erection of a general purpose agricultural storage building

11

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Spaniel Farm Main Road Weaverthorpe Malton North Yorkshire YO17 

8HE 

15/01236/FUL

Erection of two buildings to form 8no. units for B2 use together with 

formation of associated parking spaces.

12

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land At Cherry Farm Close Malton North Yorkshire  

15/01339/FUL

Erection of 1no. 3 bedroom dwelling, 1no. 4 bedroom dwelling and 

conversion of existing studio building to form 1 no. 2 bedroom dwelling 

and detached garage together with formation of access road and associated 

parking.

13

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land West Of Pasture Lane Hovingham  

15/01384/FUL

Change of use of agricultural land to form a holiday park to include the 

erection of 10no. holiday lodges, biomass heating store and refuse store 

together with formation of associated  gravel track, car parking spaces and 

vehicular access.

14

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land East Of Sheriff Hutton Industrial Estate Sheriff Hutton  

Page 10



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

16 February 2016 

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

SCHEDULE OF ITEMS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE 
 

PLANS WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION 30 MINUTES BEFORE THE MEETING 

 

 

 

Item Number: 6 

Application No: 15/01109/MFUL 

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Rack Systems (Engineering) Ltd (Mr Richard Field) 

Proposal: Erection of factory building with associated offices and staff facilities together 

with car parking and section of access road. 

Location: Land West Of Kirby Mills Road Kirkby Mills Kirkbymoorside  

 

Registration Date: 25 September 2015 8/13 Week Expiry Date: 25 December 2015 

Case Officer: Rachel Smith Ext: 323 

 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Environmental Health Officer No objection subject to condition 

Land Use Planning Conditions to be added 

Flood Risk (Stuart Edwards) Comments made 

Highways North Yorkshire Conditions recommended 

Parish Council Supports application 

Tree & Landscape Officer Recommend conditions 

Economic Development Support 

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area)Maintains objection 

Lead Local Flood Authority Points remain unresolved and further comments made 

Land Use Planning No objection subject to conditions 

 

 

Neighbour responses:  Mr And Mrs Simon Wilson, 

  

Overall Expiry Date: 4 January 2016 

 
 

 

Members will be aware that this application was brought before them at Planning Committee on 22 

December 2015, where the decision  was one of Approval delegated to the Head of Planning & Housing 

subject to the resolution of the flood risk objection with the Environment Agency.  The Environment 

Agency had objected to the development because part of the site lies within Flood Zone 2 and part in 

Flood Zone 3b.  

 

Despite lengthy negotiations with the Environment Agency and the applicants, it has not to date been 

possible to resolve the outstanding objection. The Council takes flood risk seriously, however the 

particular aspects of this case are such that further consideration is required. The application is therefore 

referred back to Committee for determination.  

 

As detailed previously, permission is sought to allow an extension of the operations of Rack Systems 

who are situated to the immediate north of the site. The expansion is essential to the business to take 

account of existing orders. The business currently employs approximately 50 people, but hope to take 

on further staff.  For operational purposes, it is necessary for the building to be closely aligned to the 

existing one. It is therefore considered that the site and the proposal are strategically important.  

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

16 February 2016 

 

In this case the key issue revolves around the identification within  Flood Zone 3 as to whether any part 

of the proposed development lies within Flood Zone 3b (functional flood plain), where only 

water-compatible uses or essential infrastructure can be permitted or whether any part of the 

development lies within Flood Zone 3a (where flooding is highly probable) BUT where 'less vulnerable' 

uses are appropriate. An industrial use is one example of a 'less vulnerable' use. 

 

The SFRA is a strategic document (the accompanying plan is produced at a scale of 1:8000) and as 

such, there is a lack of precision when considering its application to the exact boundaries of sites 

on-the-ground.  It is also noted that the area of the building that is indicated to fall within Flood Zone 3b 

is shown on submitted drawings to be the highest part of the site, which further raises doubt about the 

exact position of the flood zone boundaries.  In addition, the application site is significantly higher than 

the lane which runs adjacent to the River Dove.  Para 10.4.8 of the SFRA goes on to acknowledge that 

there is a potential over-estimation of the flood zones within Kirkbymoorside.  

 

In these particular circumstances, it is considered that there is sufficient doubt with regard to the 

location of  any part of the proposed building within the functional flood plain for Members to consider 

deviating from National Planning Guidance. Nevertheless, the developer will still need to demonstrate 

that the building is safe by submitting a revised Flood Risk Assessment to deal with site specific issues. 

 

If Members resolve to accept that the development does not impinge on the functional floodplain 

designation, the Environment Agency (EA) have indicated that they will not maintain their objection in 

relation to this issue, subject to a robust Flood Risk Assessment relating to detailed matters of on-site 

mitigation.  

 

The application has commissioned further FRA work which will be available for further consideration 

and consultation with the Environment Agency prior to the meeting.  It is anticipated that Members will 

be updated on the Late Pages or at the meeting. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: To Follow in the light of the receipt of further flood risk information 

               and responses from the Environment Agency 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

22 December 2015 

 

 

Item Number: 6 

Application No: 15/01109/MFUL 

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Rack Systems (Engineering) Ltd (Mr Richard Field) 

Proposal: Erection of factory building with associated offices and staff facilities 

together with car parking and section of access road. 

Location: Land West Of Kirby Mills Road Kirkby Mills Kirkbymoorside  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  25 December 2015  

Overall Expiry Date:  10 December 2015 

Case Officer:  Rachel Smith Ext: 323 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) Object  

Environmental Health Officer No objection subject to condition  

Public Rights Of Way No views received to date  

Land Use Planning Conditions to be added  

Flood Risk (Stuart Edwards) Comments made  

Highways North Yorkshire Amended documents awaited  

Highways North Yorkshire Conditions recommended  

Flood Risk (Stuart Edwards) No further comments to make  

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) Object  

Highways North Yorkshire Need to consult with internal colleagues  

Parish Council Supports application  

Tree & Landscape Officer Recommend conditions  

 

Neighbour responses: Mr And Mrs Simon Wilson,  

 

 

 

SITE: 

 

The site comprises a parcel of land measuring approximately 90m by 42m and  is situated to the south 

of Kirby Mills industrial estate. It was last in use as a scrap yard. It is bounded to the north by the 

existing Rack Systems factory, to the south by agricultural land, and to the east by the southern extent 

of Kirby Mills Lane. The land to the immediate west is the subject of a separate application for two 

industrial buildings. The nearest  neighbour is Dove Farm which lies approximately 135m. The 

southern boundary of the site is formed by a hedge. 

 

PROPOSAL: 

 
Permission is sought for the erection of an industrial building together with associated officing,  a new 

access off  Dove Way, and parking. The building will have a footprint of approximately 34m by 64m, 

and a ridge height of 11.2m. It will be clad in Moorland Green, to match other buildings on the 

industrial estate. The entrance area will be constructed from brickwork.  27 parking spaces will be 

provided. The ridge height is approximately the same as the existing building, albeit with higher 

eaves. 

 

POLICY: 

 
Ryedale  Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

Page 17



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

22 December 2015 

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 

Policy SP6 - Delivery and Distributing of Employment  Land and Premises 

Policy SP10 - Physical Infrastructure 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP17 - Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues. 

 

National Policy Guidance 

 

National Planning Policy Framework 

National Planning Policy Guidance 

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

In terms of the location of the site, part of the site lies within Flood Zone 2 , and part in Flood Zone 3.  

 

It was allocated in the Ryedale Local Plan as an extension to the existing industrial estate.  It was 

acknowledged at the time that the environmental  improvements  to the area would justify allocation 

of the site despite being included in the approximate extent of the area liable to flood. The site has not 

however been submitted through the production of the Local Plans Sites Document.  

 

Material Considerations 

 

• Appropriateness of location of site 

• Flood Risk 

• Design considerations  

• neighbour impact  

• highways 

• Landscaping 

 

Appropriateness of Location 

The NPPF  includes a presumption in favour of sustainable development. The three strands to 

sustainable development are economic, social and environmental. In terms of the economic role, the 

proposed building is to provide expansion space for Rack Systems who currently employ 50 people. 

The expansion is necessary for the business, and is likely to result in further jobs.  The site  was 

allocated in the Ryedale Local Plan 2002, as an extension to the existing industrial estate.  It was 

acknowledged at the time that the environmental  improvements  to the area would justify allocation 

of the site, despite being included in the approximate extent of the area liable to flood.  

 

The site has not however been submitted through the production of the Local Plans Sites Document. 

Part of the site lies within Flood Zone 2, and part in Flood Zone 3. The Environment Agency has 

objected to the application on the basis that the NPPG makes it clear that this type of development is 

not compatible with Flood Zone 3.  Given the importance of the site for economic purposes, 

discussions are ongoing with the applicant and the Environment Agency. It is considered that there is 

potential to move the building to the west, which would ensure that it lies entirely within Flood Zone 

2. The access will however remain in Flood Zone 3. If the Environment Agency remove their 

objection, mitigation will still be required. Members will be updated on the outcome of the ongoing 

discussions at their meeting. 

 

Design and Landscape Considerations 

The building is relatively large, and there is little room for any meaningful landscaping. Nevertheless, 

the design and proposed materials are broadly in line with existing buildings on the industrial  estate, 

and in particular with the applicant's existing building to the immediate north.  As such, it is 

considered that the design approach for the building itself  is acceptable.  In terms of landscaping, the 

building and parking spaces cover much of the application site. The applicants are unable to reduce 

Page 18



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

22 December 2015 

the footprint, due to the operational needs of the company. Indeed once the machinery is in place, 

there will be no 'spare' floorspace. It is considered that on  the basis of the  economic benefits of the 

expansion of the company, together with the relationship with existing the buildings, the lack of more 

extensive areas of landscaping is not sufficient to warrant refusing the application.  

 

Nevertheless, the Council's Tree and Landscape Officer has visited the site, and has advised that: 

 

The available planting area along the southern boundary varies in width being approximately 3m 

wide along the western half of this boundary and 2m wide along the eastern side. This boundary is 

currently formed by a overgrown native hedge containing numerous gaps. The individual shrubs that 

make up the hedge have recently been reduced in height to about 2m. It is therefore recommended 

that the gaps in the hedge are planted up with a double staggered row hawthorn at the rate of 6 

plants/metre protected in individual plastic spirals and supported on a stout cane. 

 

The available planting width along the eastern boundary is consistently 2m wide and therefore could 

only support a hawthorn hedge planting in accordance with the description above. However, if the 

building is to be constructed on a pad type foundation it may be possible to include a number of trees 

within the hedge trained as pleached specimen to provide a higher screen. 

 

The applicant has confirmed his agreement to providing any landscaping required. 

 

Neighbour Impact 

The application has not resulted in any objections from any occupiers of surrounding industrial 

buildings. A letter of concern has however been received from the nearest residential property to the 

south.  The dwelling is between 125m and 135m from the site depending on how the distance is 

measured. The occupiers have expressed concern regarding the view of the building, the removal of 

hedges and trees, security and noise. Right to a view is not a material consideration. It is 

acknowledged that the building will extend the industrial  estate closer to their property. It is however 

separated by a further agricultural field. Whilst it is regrettable that more landscaping cannot be 

provided, the proposed additional planting in  the southern boundary hedge will improve their 

outlook, and help to address the security issues raised. 

 

In relation to noise, the Council's Environmental Health Officer visited the site with the case officer. It 

is accepted that there will always be some noise from industrial processes, and the existing building 

does not impose many restrictive conditions. However officers endeavoured to assess which parts of 

the industrial process created the noise currently heard on occasion by the neighbouring occupiers. 

The buzzing noise referred to is likely to be from the extraction to the powder coating plant. This will 

remain in the existing building, and the applicant has advised that they do not object to the imposition 

of a condition restricting the relocation of the unit to the new building. It is also considered that the 

new building could provide a buffer to restrict some of the noise from existing extraction plant. 

Another particular noise source is a machine that punches out holes in metal. Whilst this will be 

located in the proposed building, it is considered that better insulation associated with the construction 

of the new building will provide some mitigation. In addition, it is considered that any approval be 

conditioned to require a noise survey once the building and equipment is in place, with further 

mitigation where required.  

 

Highways 

It is considered that the proposed access to the building is acceptable in terms of its location and 

appearance. North Yorkshire Highways advised that  the building size was below the threshold which 

would ordinarily trigger a requirement for a transport assessment. However, in this case they 

considered that a statement should be provided. The applicant provided further information in relation 

to buses operating in the area, and details of a cycle-to-work scheme. The formal comments of the 

Highway Authority are awaited, and Members will be updated at their meeting.  However verbal 

discussions have indicated that there is no Highway objection to the proposed development. 

 

Planning Balance 

Page 19



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

22 December 2015 

It is considered that the location of the site adjacent to the existing Kirby Mills industrial estate 

accords with the locational requirements of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy in principle. It is 

also considered that neighbour concerns can be mitigated. Nevertheless, the location of the building 

on land that is partly within Flood Zone 3 has currently resulted in an objection from The 

Environment Agency. As stated earlier in the report, negotiations are on-going, to ascertain whether a 

revision to the location will enable the Environment Agency to remove their objection.  

 

The recommendation is therefore one of approval subject to the resolution of flood risk 

considerations.  

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval subject to resolution of flood risk considerations 
 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

16 February 2016 

Item Number: 7 

Application No: 15/01180/MFUL 
Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Moorland Trout Farms 
Proposal: Infilling of fishing lake together with change of use of land to form a 158no. 

space car park with siting of 7no. glamping units and erection of reception 

building to accommodate cafe, shop, exhibition and meeting space, service 
kitchen, public toilets and shower rooms, storage and a 3 bedroom managers 

apartment to include demolition of existing service building that includes 
owners private accommodation, and formation of on site road, pathways and 

landscaping 

Location: Pickering Trout Lake  Undercliffe Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8JH 
 

Registration Date: 16 October 2015 8/13 Week Expiry Date: 15 January 2016 

Case Officer: Rachel Smith Ext: 323 
 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council Concerns raised 

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions 
Building Conservation Officer No objection in principle - minor design comment 

Countryside Officer No objection 

North Yorkshire Moors Railway Support 
Office Of Rail Regulation No views received to date 

Historic England Recommend application be determined in accordance 

with local and national policy guidance 
Public Rights Of Way Recommend informative 

Tree & Landscape Officer No objection (verbal) 
Land Use Planning Recommend conditions 

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) Objection lifted subject to conditions 

Housing Services Objection lifted -informative to be added 
Lead Local Flood Authority Comments made and conditions recommended 

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) Objection lifted subject to conditions as per previous 

correspondence 
Parish Council Comments received 

 

Neighbour responses: Mrs T ina Bennett,Mr John Colley,Mr Mike Potter,Mrs M 
Scriven,Mrs Josephine Gascoyne,Norman & Enid 

Bridges,Mr Richard Kimmings,A T  Gascoyne,Mr Martin 

Jones,Mr Eden Blyth,Brian & Sally Tozer,Mr R 
Bowman,Mrs M Jackson-Gould,Mr G J Leadbetter,Mr Steve 

Grantham,Miss Amanda Chambers,Mr Jeff Taylor,Mrs 

Alison Ripley,Mr William Morris,Mr Christopher Heath,Mr 
And Mrs T Atkinson,Mrs Atkinson,Mr Eden Blyth,Mrs S 

Smith,W Swan,Ms Sara Bryon,Mrs J Smith,Mr Tom 
Barr,Mrs Yvonne Morris, 

 

Overall Expiry Date: 8 February 2016 
 

 
  

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

16 February 2016 

SITE:  
 
The site is located within Pickering Conservation Area on  the northern side of Pickering,  immediately 

to the north of Pickering Railway Station. Access is via a bridge from  Undercliffe.  The bridge is a 

grade II listed building. On raised ground to the east is Pickering Castle which is a Scheduled 
monument. To the north and west of the site are open fields which are bisected by a public footpath. The 

railway forms the eastern boundary, with Mill Race beyond. Pickering Beck runs along the western side 

of the site. The site is within an Area of High Landscape Value, and adjacent to a Visually Important 
Undeveloped Area. 

 
The site is comprises a fishing lake together with a service building which includes a cafe/shop together 

with  owners accommodation. There is an area of hard standing to the front of the building that 

accommodates approximately 25 cars.  
 

PROPOSAL: 
 
Permission is sought for: 

 

• demolition of existing service building 

• draining of the lake and infilling with granular and earth fill to level the site. 

• creation of new internal access roads and provision of 158  parking spaces including 15 wide access 
suitable for wheel chair use. These will be served by accessibility compliant paved access leading to 

the proposed new reception building. Part of the  access will therefore be permeable tarmac to 
prevent petrol and surface water run off from the parking areas entering the water course.  Other 

access will  be permeable with a natural compressed limestone stone finish. The car park will be  pay 

and display. 

• Part two Storey Part single store building to accommodate a cafe, shop to sell railway related 

merchandise,  exhibition/meeting room, public toilets and showers together with Managers 
accommodation. The building will have a footprint of 11.5m by 33m and a ridge height of 6.7m.  

• It  has been designed to reflect the character of traditional railway buildings. It  will be constructed 
from brick under a slate roof, with conservation rooflights. The single  storey element will be 

fronted in horizontal t imber. 

• Siting of 7 glamping units in the form of former rolling stock fronting the railway line. The two 
units nearest the reception unit will be provided with a shared ramp to make them wheelchair 

accessible. 

• The glamping units are located on the highest part of the site, with dry access/egress. 

• Retention of existing tree planting supplemented by new planting, in particular on the north western 
edge of the site.  

• To the north east will be a meadow which incorporates a flood water swale. 

• Pedestrian access to the station will be identified by a route marked out along the byway, past the 

scout hut and through the NYMR car park. 

 

HISTORY: 
 
The site has a detailed planning history. The following applications are particularly relevant. 

 

Dec 1975 Permission refused for the construction of a car park and construction of small lake and the 
use of the land for recreational purposes. Allowed on Appeal 

 

April 1982 Permission granted for  the erection of a general purpose building 
 

May 1982 Consent for three signs including shop sign above main door. 

February 2015 Appln. withdrawn for  infilling of lake and erection of building and glamping units. 
 

 

Page 22



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

16 February 2016 

POLICY: 
 
Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

Vision, Aims and Objectives. This states that Pickering will continue to be an important visitor 
destination in its own right as well as a gateway to the North York Moors National Park and to tourist 

attractions and recreation opportunities in northern Ryedale. 

 
Strategy Summary 

 
The summary includes the following: 

 

Pickering - Support the towns regional tourism role and support for existing attractions including Beck 
Isle Museum, Pickering Castle and the North Yorkshire Moors Railway and events such as the Steam 

Rally and Wartime Weekend. 

 
One of the priorities in the plan for Pickering is to secure the provision of additional visitor car parking 

and/or park and ride facility to support the town and in response to the increasing attractiveness of the 

steam railway and annual events. 
 

Policy SP7 Town Centre and Retailing 

Policy SP8 Tourism 
Policy SP10 Physical Infrastructure 

Policy SP12 Heritage 

Policy SP13 Landscapes 
Policy SP14 Biodiversity 

Policy SP16 Design 

Policy SP17 Managing Air Quality, Land and Water resources 
Policy SP18 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 

 
NPPF 

 

NPPG 
 

APPRAISAL: 
 
It is considered that the main considerations are: 

 

• Appropriateness of the uses 

• Heritage assessment  

• Highway considerations 

• Pedestrian access 

• Ecology  

• Landscaping 

• Neighbour impact 

 

 Car Park 
 

The application as a whole has been designed to compliment the facilit ies at the North Yorkshire Moors 
Railway, (NYMR). The applicant has stated that the proposal will enable more visitors to be 

accommodated within the town.  It is acknowledged that the existing car park at the NYMR is often full 

which results in cars driving to the site, and then turning around and leaving. The car park is well related 
to the railway, but also provides access to the town centre and Pickering Castle.  

 

 

Page 23



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

16 February 2016 

The proposal accords with one of the priorities in the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy, in relation to 

the provision of additional visitor parking.  
 

Tourism 
 
The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and the NPPF supports the principle of tourist  accommodation 

subject to other material considerations being acceptable. It  is considered that the relationship of the site 

with the NYMR will be mutually beneficial and provide a different experience to accommodation 
already provided. 

 
Concerns have been raised that the application will lead to further holiday uses on the site. This would 

be subject to a further planning application, and considered on its merits. It is of note however that some 

temporary uses of land are deemed to be 'permitted development' Whilst regulations set out in The 
General Permitted Development Order 2015 currently do not permit such uses within the curtilage of a 

building, it  is considered appropriate to apply a restrictive condition. The exception would be the war 

weekend where access to the car park would be closed. The applicant wishes to use the site for this week 
only for the parking of vans of those involved in the event.  

 

Reception Building 
 

The reception building has also been designed to relate to the association of the site with the railway. 

Policy in the NPPF states that Local Planning Authorities should apply a sequential test to main town 
centre uses that are not in an existing centre. In this case the shop element is to replace that already on 

site. The existing floor area will be restricted to railway related products. It is understood that the 

original train model shop in Pickering has shut, and the applicant wishes to sell similar items to it. 
Nevertheless it  is recommended that a condition be imposed restricting sale of goods to 80% railway 

related with a maximum floor area. This will result in a maximum of 14.2m2 of general retail space, and 

56.8m railway themed space. The cafe will have a maximum of 35 covers.  
 

Flood Risk and Drainage  
 

The majority of the site lies within Flood Zone 3, with a strip of land nearest the railway line in Flood 

Zone 2. In view of this it was necessary to carry out both a sequential test and exception test. This took 
account of the water compatible use of the car park and the more vulnerable use for the glamping units. 

The sequential test demonstrated that the location of the site was required due to the relation of the 

proposed use with the railway, and indeed the railway experience for the glamping units. The 
development will benefit  the local economy by increasing the benefits of the NYMR. Furthermore the 

glamping units would be on average 1.2m above finished floor level by virtue of their design as former 

rolling stock. A formal evacuation procedure would be entered into. 
 

Surface water will be released via controlled collection and release into Pickering Beck. A landscaped 

swale is being provided at the north end of the site to temporarily accommodate additional water in the 
event of a flood event. It is also relevant that the Environment Agency project 'Slow the Flow will help  

alleviate potential flooding. The development has been designed so that surface water run-off from the 

impermeable areas will drain into Pickering Beck at the same rate as green field run off. This is 
substantially less than the existing discharge rate which is required for the existing pond.  

 
The site is within a source protection zone for public water abstraction. In view of this a soakaway or 

infiltration system directly into the ground is not permitted. The surface water from the car park and 

access will be tanked and pass through an interceptor to prevent contamination.   
 

The applicant seeks to deal with foul drainage by the use of a package treatment plant, and then into a 

foul water reed bed. Non mains drainage in an area served by public sewers is not normally acceptable. 
The Environment Agency initially objected to the application on that basis.  

 

 

Page 24



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

16 February 2016 

However the applicant provided additional information to demonstrate that it  is not feasible to connect 

into the foul sewer to the south of the site. This is because it  would be required  to pass under the 
railway,  and then it  would  have to be threaded through the bridge. Given the small size and nature of 

the bridge,  this is not considered feasible. The connection would also require a pumped rising main 

system which is not considered to be cost effective. In view of this the Environment Agency has not 
objected to the proposal. 

 

It  is noted that representations have been received that query  the capacity of the treatment plan in an 
event such as the war weekend. A query has also been raised about what happens to the outfall from the 

plant if there are periods of heavy rain that raise the level of the beck above the outfall.   The sizing for 
the treatment plant has been calculated on the basis of : 

 

6 x 2 people using the glamping units 
150 car parking spaces each with 3 occupants 

6 x 2 users using the shower block 

50% increase in car park users to take account of comings and goings. 
 

A maintenance programme for the plant will be used, and this can be conditioned. It  is noted however 

that the plant is a sealed unit, that has a non return valve. In view of this, in the event of high rain etc, it 
will not be possible for water to back up. Furthermore, any discharge into the beck will require a 

discharge licence from the Environment Agency, and the beck will be subject to testing.  

 
The Environment Agency has recommended conditions in relation to: 

 

• Limiting run-off rates to greenfield rates 

• Provision of a minimum 3,650m3 compensatory flood storage as detailed in the submitted 
information. 

• Finished floor levels set no lower than 33.38m above Ordnance Datum 

• Development shall carried out in accordance with the flood resilience measures detailed in the 
submitted information. 

 
North Yorkshire County Council Flood Risk Management as the lead Local Flood Authority has also 

recommended conditions in relation to the petrol interceptors, and future management of the surface 

water drainage methods. 
 

Yorkshire Water Services has recommended a condition to prevent any building or obstruction within 

5m of the water main that passes over part of the site.  
 

Highway and Access Considerations 
 

Both vehicular and pedestrian access are key issues in the consideration of the application. The main  

points relate to : 
 

• Impact of development on the bridge over the Mill Race 

• appropriateness of location in relation to pedestrian access  

• route over the Byeway open to all traffic, (BOAT) 

• relationship between pedestrian and vehicular access to the site. 

 

Impact of development on the bridge. 
 

Access to the site is via a historic bridge over the mill race. This bridge will also be used for the 
construction lorries required to bring in the fill for the trout lake.  This is a matter of concern that has 

been raised in a number of representations received in relation to the application. The submitted Design 

and Access statement includes the following statement: 
 

Page 25



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

16 February 2016 

 

It is accepted that Traffic generated by construction will cause some temporary impact. This will be 
managed via the present access to the site. 30% of the fill required to infill the lake will be brought by 

rail and tipped directly on to the site. The remaining loads, about 580 in number, will be brought in to 

the site by 22 ton lorry loads, organised as far as possible while the railway is not in full operation. It  is 
important to note that the estimated number of necessary loads amounts to only 15% of the 4000 loads 

brought in along Newbridge Road to complete the flood mitigation works at Newtondale. There will be 

a banksman / crossing supervisor in attendance during the transporting work.  
 

During consideration of the application, detailed negotiations have been carried out between the 
Engineers appointed by the applicant, and the Highway Authority. A survey of the bridge was carried 

out using the MEXE method. North Yorkshire Highways with the following points: 

 

• Initial concerns expressed regarding the MEXE calculation used to the existing condition of the 

bridge and the proposed heavy vehicular load. 

• Additional transport assessment required to consider how the increased traffic movements would 
impact on Undercliff, and the wider roads in Pickering 

• Clarification of pedestrian access through the site. 

• Clarification of visibility at the car park entrance 
 

January 11th 2016 

 
Further discussions were held in relation to the appropriateness of the survey works. The Highway 

Authority have advised however, that they are confident that there is a solution, and have therefore have  

recommended conditions which require the submission of a detailed structural assessment. The 
application has required the submission of a detailed number of expensive studies and reports. The 

further survey work is more invasive and expensive, and requires digging down below the road level. It 

is considered  the cost of such works is unduly prohibitive unless the applicant has surety of a decision.   
In the event that more detailed survey work demonstrates that the bridge is not capable of carrying out 

the necessary load, the Highway Authority will impose a weight restriction on it , and the applicant 

would have to consider alternative methods. It  is considered that such a condition is reasonable, and 
sufficiently precise. 

 

In relation to the wider highway impact of the development, the Highway Authority requested a 
transport assessment to take account of the impact of additional movements on Undercliffe and the 

wider area. The survey work was undertaken and the Highway Authority responded as below: 

 
In assessing the submitted proposals and reaching its recommendation, the Local Highway Authority 

has taken into account the Transport Assessment and Transport Notes from the applicant. It  is accepted 
that the proposals are likely to generate a relatively small number of new trips to the road network in 

Pickering during peak morning and evening hours. This is due to a number of existing spaces at the 

NYMR and on Scouts Lane being removed by the proposals, the replacement of the trips associated 
with the current fishing activities and a transfer of some traffic from the current overflow car park to the 

proposed site. In addition there has also been some additional overflow parking provided around the 

fishing lake which would be replaced by the permanent car park proposals. 
 

Accordingly it  is considered that the development would not have a significant adverse impact on the 

highway network. 
 

Pedestrian Considerations: 

 
The site is located to the north of the existing car park that serves the North Yorkshire Moors Railway. 

The submitted plans show that there will be a marked out pedestrian route from the application site to 

the railway. This is being provided through agreement with the Scout group and the NYMR. Land in 
front of the Scout hut is currently used on occasion for informal parking.  

 

Page 26



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

16 February 2016 

 

The agreement will allow this area of land to be used for the delineated parking area in exchange for 
parking on the application site, when required for use by the scouts and parents. The route includes 

access for wheel chair users  which passes along the western platform of the railway. Access is also 

available along the BOAT to Beck Isle Museum.  
 

The route will provide better definition and signage for the proposed pedestrian access, and also remove 

parking from the lane which currently occurs. The supporting information states that the approximate 
level  walking distance to the western platform is 280m, and 480m to the eastern platform and ticket 

office. The most direct route over the NYMR bridge is 280m to the western platform and 350m to the 
eastern one. These routes are also available during office hours for anyone who wishes to walk from the 

application site to Pickering Town Centre. 

 
A further traffic free route into Pickering can be achieved via the BOAT which begins on Scouts Lane, 

crosses over the beck immediately before the entrance to the main NYMR car park and then continues 

south through a wooded area before reaching Wells Walk.  
 

A number of representations have been received in relation to the poor pedestrian access from the site 

into Pickering, and that it  is not accessible for those wheelchair users outside the opening hours of the 
railway. Members walked the route to the station during their site visit , and then walked back along the 

Undercliffe and Park Street. It  is accepted that the route along the road is not ideal, and would be 

difficult  for wheelchair users. The Highway Authority has taken this into account and advised in their 
formal response.: 

 

Pedestrian facilit ies from the site onto Undercliffe and the public highway are limited as there are no 
formal footways over the High Mill crossing and bridge. Footpath provision along Undercliffe towards 

the town centre is also limited to narrow paths and a discontinuous path on the north bound side of 

Undercliffe. Therefore the applicant has proposed to direct pedestrians from the car park to the Town 
Centre using part of the existing  Byeway and through the NYMR site, thus providing an alternative 

route to Park Street and Undercliffe for pedestrians. Improvements to the width of the site access and 
visibility will assist  vehicle movements to and from the site.  

 

Most people using the car park will do so during opening hours of the NYMR when they can access the 
town through the railway. Those using the car park outside these times are likely to be restricted to those 

occupying two of the glamping units. These have been designed to provide the same "railway inspired"  

experience for all. It  is accepted however that those in wheelchairs may out of hours need to drive to a 
disabled space in the town centre. Whilst not ideal, It is considered that the benefits of providing 

wheelchair friendly accommodation outweighs the access concerns for evening access. It  is also noted 

that in a historic town such as Pickering, uneven or narrow footpaths are often a characteristic. 
 

Pedestrian facilit ies from the site onto Undercliffe and the public highway are limited as there are no 

formal footways over the High Mill crossing and bridge. Footpath provision along Undercliffe towards 
the town centre is also limited to narrow paths and a discontinuous path on the north bound side of 

Undercliffe. Therefore the applicant has proposed to direct pedestrians from the car park to the Town 

Centre using part of the existing  Byeway and through the NYMR site, thus providing an alternative 
route to Park Street and Undercliffe for pedestrians. Improvements to the width of the site access and 

visibility will assist  vehicle movements to and from the site.  
 

As discussed earlier, a number of representations have raised concerns highway and pedestrian issues. 

These include: 
 

• Capacity and structural ability of the bridge  

• Who will pay for any necessary repairs 

• No swept path analysis 

• The car park cant reduce traffic 

 

Page 27



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

16 February 2016 

• People affected by increased traffic should be compensated by parking provision 

• Difficult  access on Park Street and /Undercliffe for wheel chair users etc 

• Chaos already caused by cars and buses entering and leaving the site.  
 

The capacity and condition of the bridge will be assessed through the detailed survey, and will require 

mitigation if required. The Highway Authority have based their recommendation on the submitted 
Transport Assessment which was expanded at their request. In relation to the car park not reducing 

traffic, and creating chaos, it  is accepted that there are many people that drive into the site to park at the 

NYMR car park and have to drive out again when it is full. The proposed car park will be more likely to 
prevent this from happening. It will also provide more clarity and better routes for pedestrians.  It is also 

noted that there has been support from a number of people that there is an existing shortage of car 

parking for tourists. There is currently no method for indicating  when the NYMR is full, and the 
proposal will make it  possible to use the railway more often. 

 
It is considered that the submitted information is sufficiently robust to address the issues raised, and the 

provision of the car park accords with policy. As such it is not considered that a recommendation of 

refusal could be supported on highway grounds, subject to conditions in respect of: 
 

• Crossing of highway verge 

• Development shall not be brought into use until a pedestrian route from the site to Park Street in 

accordance with submitted drawing is delivered. 

• Visibility splays  

• Precaution to prevent mud on road 

• Structural assessment of the bridge. 

• On- site construction traffic. 
 

HERITAGE:  
 
The application site is located within Pickering Conservation Area, and is visible from Pickering Castle, 

a Scheduled Monument. 24 and 25 Undercliffe are within approximately 100m of the site and are both 

grade II listed. The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 places a duty on local 
planning authorities  to have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or 

any features of special architectural or historic interest which it  possesses and ensuring that a 

development either preserves or enhances the character of a designated Conservation Area (Sections 66 
& 72). 

 
The Council's Building Conservation officer has advised: 

 

"The character of the Conservation Area at this point can be characterised as the transition between the 
built  up town of Pickering and the surrounding countryside. The application site is in the bottom of the 

valley that runs north-south between Pickering town and the higher moors to the north. In the valley 

bottom is Pickering Beck, the North York Moors Railway and Undercliffe, the minor road connecting 
the moors with the town. The site is accessed by a stone bridge over the beck and a level crossing point 

over the railway. The site surroundings to the south, has a marginal character provided by the North 

York Moors Railway car park and the scout hut.  To the west of the site on the other side of Pickering 
Beck lies attractive steep sided hillside pasture crossed by a Public Right of Way. Bordering the site to 

the east are the railway lines, mill race and the road and beyond that is an attractive steep sided wooded 

promontory, on which sits Pickering Castle which is visible through the trees in winter.   
 

The development site itself can be divided into a number of character areas making up tarmac car park, 

reception building, trout lake and surrounding grassed margins.  
  

Page 28



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

16 February 2016 

After having visited the site, it  is my opinion that the development will not adversely affect the setting 

of 24 Undercliffe as there is some distance between them and the houses on the north side of the bridge 
and verge side trees provide a visual buffer between the listed buildings and the development site.  

North Yorkshire County Council and Historic England are the Council’s advisors on archaeology and 

scheduled monuments and should be consulted on this application.  
 

In my opinion the existing trout lake does not contribute to the character of the conservation area. 

Whilst it  has a green and ‘semi-natural’ appearance, the lake is clearly an artificial creation that is 
somewhat out of odds with the surrounding features. The removal of the mid-late 20th century buff 

brick reception building measuring c.21m long and c.6m wide would be an enhancement as the 
orientation, scale and design of the structure do not relate to any surrounding structures or to the wider 

context of the site. The black topped tarmac car park to the south of the reception building makes no 

contribution to the character of the conservation area.   
 

In my opinion the position, scale, design and materials of the proposed new reception building is much 

more appropriate to its context as it  has clearly been referenced by the railway and its ancillary 
structures. Whilst larger and higher than the existing low quality reception building, the size and 

orientation is much more appropriate to its rail side location. One minor point of design is the chevron 

timber cladding. I am of the opinion that this should be horizontal boarding to better reflect the 
surrounding context.  

 

Notwithstanding the submitted information, further details of the proposed glamping units should be 
secured by condition".  

 

Historic England were also consulted on the application. They have advised that Pickering Castle is 
significant due to its well documented history and because its standing remains are particularly well 

preserved owing to its being one of only a few castles unaffected by the Wars of the Roses and the Civil 

War. The setting of the castle also adds to its significance as it is in a natural position to oversee the 
surrounding landscape.  

 
The application includes a Heritage Statement which considers the impact on the setting of Pickering 

Castle, and also on views between the Castle and Beacon Hill. The proposed development may have 

some minor impact on the setting of the castle, as the new car park will be visible from certain view 
points within the castle. Historic England confirm that this can be mitigated through appropriate 

planting and careful use of natural surfaces.  

 
Historic England conclude that the any impact of the proposed development is less than substantial. In 

view of this para 34 of the NPF requires the harm to be weighed against the public benefits of the 

development. Officers are of the opinion that the development will provide direct support for the 
NRMR and increase tourism in the area. Business in town will benefit and staff employed in relation to 

the development will also benefit the economy. 

 
Accordingly it  is considered that the development accords with policy SP12 of the Ryedale Plan - Local 

Plan Strategy and section 12 of the NPPF. 

 

DESIGN: 
 
Policy SP16 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy states that: 

Development proposals will be expected to create high quality durable places that are accessible, well 

integrated with their surroundings and which: 
 

• Reinforce local distinctiveness 

• Provide a well-connected public realm which is accessible and usable by all, safe and easily 
navigated 

 

Page 29



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

16 February 2016 

• Protect amenity and promote well-being to reinforce local distinctiveness, the location, siting, form, 
layout, scale and detailed design of new development should respect the context provided by its 

surroundings including: 

• Topography and landform that shape the form and structure of settlements in the landscape 

• The structure of towns and villages formed by street patterns, routes, public spaces, rivers and 

becks. The medieval street patterns and historic cores of Malton, Pickering, Kirkbymoorside and 
Helmsley are of particular significance and medieval two row villages with back lanes are typical in 

Ryedale 

• The grain of the settlements, influenced by street blocks, plot sizes, the orientation of buildings, 
boundaries, spaces between buildings and the density, size and scale of buildings 

• The character and appearance of open space and green spaces including existing Visually Important 
Undeveloped Areas (VIUAs) or further VIUAs which may be designated in the Local Plan Sites 

Document or in a Neighbourhood Plan. Development proposals on land designated as a VIUA will 
only be permitted where the benefits of the development proposed significantly outweigh the loss 

or damage to the character of the settlement 

• Views, vistas and skylines that are provided and framed by the above and/or influenced by the 
position of key historic or landmark buildings and structures 

• The type, texture and colour of materials, quality and type of building techniques and elements of 
architectural detail. 

 

The heritage impact of the design has been covered above. 
 

The site is currently occupied by a lake, and a utilitarian style reception building, with parking to the 
front. The lake is not readily visible from the road, but can be viewed from public footpaths. The 

development includes additional planting which will soften the impact of the development. This 

includes a native species hedge. This is considered further in the landscaping section of the report. 
 

The proposed reception building has been designed to have reference to the heritage of railway 

buildings. It  will be constructed from brick, under a slate roof, with a large arched opening at one end. 
The side lean to will be timber clad. The detailing will include features such as the base plinch and arch 

in contrasting brick. The use of timber on the lean to makes reference to the design of other railway 

buildings such as signal boxes and station canopies. The building is longer than the existing building at 
approximately 34m , however it has a  relatively low ridge height of just under 7m. The narrow span is 

also typical of traditional railway architecture.  

 
The building will be sited along the eastern boundary of the site, and will therefore be clearly visible 

from passing trains. It  is considered that the detailing and design of the building is a significant 

improvement than that which is currently on site, and as such will enhance the character of the area. It is 
also considered that its reference to railway architecture tethers the building to its setting adjacent to the 

railway. 
  

The 'glamping' units will comprise former rolling stock such as brake vans. They are located adjacent to 

the railway line, and will therefore maintain the character of the site as an extension of the operations at 
the NYMR. 

 

Accordingly, it  is considered that the development accords with policy SP16 of the Ryedale Plan - 
Local Plan Strategy. 

 

Ecology 
 

The application is accompanied by an extended Phase 1 Habitat survey. This targeted the following 

species; 

• Bats 

• Great Crested Newts 

• Badger  

Page 30



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

16 February 2016 

• Birds 

• Reptiles 

• Hedgehogs 

• Water Vole 

• Otter 

• White clawed crayfish 

 
The report concludes that the proposed development is unlikely to impact upon any protected species or 

associated habitats. However it  recommends a number of measures which should be adopted to ensure 

potential adverse impacts to wildlife are avoided. This includes; 
 

The Councils Countryside Management officer has been consulted, and has no objection in principle, 

but advises: 
 

Following my phone conversation with Margaret Mackinder in which she stated that the trout lake is 
presently full of water and being used for trout rearing therefore making  the lake unsuitable crayfish 

habitat, my only concern is one of  t iming should this application be granted planning permission. There 

is a danger of an offence being committed under the Habitats regulations should the trout be removed 
but the water  retained in the lake for any period whilst  the lake is connected to the Pickering beck 

which is a known crayfish  habitat. Without predatory fish in the lake it  would be a  good crayfish habitat 

and they would be at risk from infilling etc. 
 

A solution would be to come up with and condition a method statement to prevent crayfish access to the 

lake then remove the trout and then drain the lake in swift succession or alternatively should this not be 
possible  to carry out a full crayfish survey prior to the lake being infilled  to ensure no crayfish are 

harmed during the works. 

 
It is of particular note that the northern end of the site will be laid out with landscaping and a wildflower 

area which will provide biodiversity enhancement. 

 
Accordingly, it is recommended that an appropriate condition be attached to any approval on the site. 

 

Landscaping 
 

The site currently is currently reasonably well screened by existing mature planting in the summer 
months. During negotiations however, officers expressed concern that cars parked on the site would be 

clearly visible from the public footpath that runs to the immediate west of Pickering Beck, and also from 

the public footpath  that provides a raised view from the north west. The submitted landscaping plan 
includes a native species hedge adjacent to the north western boundary where the site abuts the beck, 

and a high density screen with under storey planting to improve the view from the more distant north 

west. This is in addition to the use of the northern end of the site as a wild flower meadow.  
 

Three trees will be removed from the entrance of the site. They comprise one silver birch and two lime 

trees. Their removal will facilitate the entrance to the car park. Three new trees of a more appropriated 
species will be provided.  

 

The existing 1.8m high chain link fence to the east of the site will be replaced along its length by a more 
traditional railway  post and rail fence.  

 

Lighting is a key consideration on applications of this nature, and indeed can result in a significantly 
urbanising character if not appropriately detailed. 

 
It  is considered that the additional landscaping will soften the impact of the development from outside 

the site, and as such it  will not have a significant adverse impact on the character of the Area of High 

Landscape Value, or the adjacent Visually Important Undeveloped Area. 

Page 31



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

16 February 2016 

 

 

Neighbour impact 
 

The nearest neighbours to the site are located adjacent to the access over the bridge, with other 
dwellings on either side of Undercliffe, and on raised land to the north west of the site. It  is not 

considered that the development will give rise to any overlooking or over shadowing. Neighbour impact 

is therefore related to the additional comings and goings associated with the proposed use, and in 
particular during the infilling of the lake.  

 
The use of the site as a car park will generate more vehicle movements than the current use of the site a 

s a trout farm. Nevertheless, it is considered that the context of the site adjacent to the NYMR (and on a 

site that previously generated some comings and goings) is such that the development will not have a 
significant adverse impact on neighbouring amenity. This is also because it  is acknowledged that many 

cars currently access the area , and on occasion drivers find they can't park so leave the site. The 

Glamping units are sufficiently low key to ensure that users are unlikely to generate any noise or other 
disturbance. It  is acknowledged that those properties that are situated on raised land to the west of the 

site will be able to see the car parking. However right to a view is not a planning consideration, and the 

level of additional landscaping should soften the impact of parked cars. 
 

Crossing of railway  
 
Access to the site is via a crossing over an un- gated crossing over the railway. This is the current access 

to the NYMR car park together with a number of dwellings and the scout hut. The office of rail 

regulators has been consulted on the application but has not responded. Representations have been 
received raising concerns regarding the safety of the access over the crossing, and also the capacity of it. 

Officers are pursuing a response, and it is hoped to update Members at their meeting. 

 

Programme of works  
 
The applicant has submitted a programme of works for the phasing of the development: 

 

Phase 1 15 months from commencement 

• Discharge Conditions, demolition of western end of existing building 

• Empty fishing lake and block off inlet 

• Create temporary access road 

• Bring in infill material via road and railway; level and landscape 

• Carry out all landscaping of tree screening around perimeter and at northern end of site 

• Install standings for Glamping units 

• Remove perimeter fencing 

• Complete surface and barrier material to all surfaced areas 

• Connect northern parking to access with temporary surface road. 
 

Phase 2 

• Construct Visitor Centre 

• Bring in glamping units as sourced 

 
Phase 3 

• Demolish rest of existing building 

• Complete all car parking and signage 

• Complete remaining planting over rest of site 
 

Phase 4 

• Complete installation and conversion of glamping units 

 

Page 32



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

16 February 2016 

 

 
It is considered that the programme is acceptable in principle however officers are working on a 

condition to ensure the totality of all the finished car park, landscaping and visitor centre within a 

certain time scale. Members will be updated on this aspect. 
 

Representations 
 
Members will note that the application has  resulted in a number of letters of support and objection. The 

main points of objection  are listed as an appendix to this report, and broadly include:  
 

• Concern over structural ability of the historic bridge. Who will be responsible for its repair. -See 

Highway and Access Considerations 
• Lost parking on approach to NYMR should be provided for residents who will be affected by 

increased traffic. 

It is understood that there is no right to park on this are, and the applicant can not be 

expected to provide compensatory parking 

• Development should connect to Main sewer 

See Flood Risk and Drainage in relation to drainage 

• Concern that crushed limestone will cause a mess on the road especially in wet weather. 

The type of material used has been demonstrated to work elsewhere, without any 

transference to nearby roads 
• Glamping sets a precedent for more holiday use on the site 

The application can only be determined on the basis of what is applied for. However a 

condition is recommended to prevent caravans/camper vans and tent except during war 
weekend. 

• Chaos and congestion caused already. development will not improve congestion. 

The Highways Authority are satisfied with the application. The NYMR has advised that in 

their opinion the proposed car park will  assist in clearing the approaches to the NYMR, and 

stop the circulation of vehicles throughout Pickering. It will  release on street parking for 
residents. 

• Development will not benefit  economy. 

Officers consider that development that improves the facilities and enjoyment of the NYMR 

will  benefit the economy, and further increase use of other businesses in the area. 

• No acceptable pedestrian access either via Wells Walk or along Park Street/Undercliffe. 

Pedestrian access through the NYMR is acceptable for all . Most times that the car park is in 

use is when the railway is open. The limited number of people  using the Glamping units can 
access town in the evenings via Undercliffe and Park Street. It is accepted that disabled 

people may have to drive to Market Place, but this is offset by the benefits of inclusive 

enjoyment of the railway.  
• Suds not complete. 

See Flood Risk and Drainage. 
• Not brownfield land and outside development limits 

The site is outside the development limits, but policy does not preclude development of this 
nature. 

• Evacuation route not acceptable. 

The applicants have signed up to a flood evacuation plan.  
• Concern regarding safety of the rail crossing 

 
North Yorkshire Moors Railway are responsible for rail safety, in accordance with the Office of Road 

and Rail Regulation. They are satisfied that subject to an agreement in relation to lorry deliveries. It  is 

not designated as an ungated crossing, but defined as an automatic level crossing. The train triggers the 
lights on the crossing, and trains in any event only proceed at 10MPH. The NYMR support the 

application, and advised that they are also carrying out an up to date safety review of the crossing. 

         

Page 33



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

16 February 2016 

Members will note that there are also a number of letters of support to the application . The points raised 

include: 
 

• It  is important to keep developing the area with suitable enterprises that will benefit  the people of 
Ryedale 

• Changing the use will be great for the area, and existing parking problems 

• Landscaping and development will be in keeping with Pickering 

• Glamping units will be a nice feature, and great experience 

• Car park will reduce parking around town 

• Increased parking will reduce the bottleneck that can occur on the site.  

• Glamping units will benefit  the economy. 

• Attractive railway themed cafe will complement the NYMR 

• The town needs a good car park and it  is better than parking on the streets. 

• Trading at the site will encourage tourism. 
 

Summary 
 

The application has raised a number of issues that have been addressed through the report. Nevertheless 

it  is considered that the benefits outweigh the harm. It  is essential however that the precise conditions 
are imposed to ensure that the development is carried out in an appropriate manner. 

 

Recommendation is one of approval subject to no objection from the relevant rail safety body, and the 
conditions to follow 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve subject to no objections from the relevant rail safety 

body, and conditions (to follow) 
 
 

Background Papers: 
  
Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 
Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 34



Pickering Trout Farm 

Main issues included in Letters of Representation 

Objections: 

 

Main issues raised 

 Josephine Gascoigne 

29B Undercliffe Pickering 

Highway issues 

• No additional report other than the MEXE report that was 

rejected by the Highways Authority. 

• Not clear whether the full extent of the bridge and the 

approach road is fully adopted, and who will carry out any 

repairs required after heavy use. 

• No swept path analysis for large vehicles during construction 

• FRA is substandard and falls short of compliant. Assumption 

and figures given are inconsistent. 

• SUDS needs to consider future operation and maintenance. 

Neither lake nor outfall from it has been maintained. SUDS 

has not been addressed but removed. 

Drainage issues 

• refused to connect to main sewer and no detail of package 

treatment plant.  Especially due to proximity to the beck. 

• No full details on SUDS 

• greenhouse gases will not be reduced. new building larger 

that previous, glamping units will be inefficient in thermal 

transmission 

Flood mitigation 

• Levels and calculations are misleading and inconclusive 

Air quality 

• a road or car park cannot reduce traffic 

Economic benefits 

• Statement states increased employment, but application 

states reduction. 

Community Benefits 

The traffic assessment is inaccurate and misleading,  in terms 

of numbers. 

• Residents have paid to park on approach to NYNR for 40 

years without paying. Any application would have to 

acknowledge this and replace it without charge. 

• require measures such as gated crossing, traffic calming 

footpaths to access roads. 

• Local advice that the NYMR car park application included 

parking for residents on Undercliffe.  

• How the annexe route for pedestrians will work is yet to be 

seen. Not a good risk assessment. 

• Construction traffic can be dangerous. 

• Actual fill for the lake has not been identified. It will 

necessitate great numbers of lorry movements. A great deal 

of mud will be created by the lorries and congestion. 

 

• difficult to believe there will be a reduction in traffic if more 

Page 35



parking is created.  

• increased traffic over the bridge, with the same egress onto 

Undercliffe cannot reduce accidents. 

• people directly affected by the increased traffic should 

benefit from re-instated parking lost from the station car 

park approach. 

• will footpath be properly marked 

• should consider a park and ride. 

Mrs  Scriven 

28 Undercli ff 
• lorries  smaller than previous , but this  will mean more 

required. Will bridge be able to accommodate a  

continuous s tream 

• li ve opposite so fi rs t hand experience of chaos 

• traffic survey has not been carried out. 

• no disabled access to the railway. 

• no planning regulations  to stop more glamping once this 

is approved. 

• danger of an un gated open level crossing not addressed 

• traffic coming from the bridge onto Undercliffe with 

restricted viewing to the left has not changed. 

• Who will be responsible for any s tructural  damage. 

Mike Potter 

34 Undercli ffe 

 

• The application site is di rectly adjacent to a visually 

important undeveloped area. 

• Is the si te within the development limits. 

• Appreciate that the proposed development utilises an 

exis ting facility to increase parking, concerned that it 

would set a  precedent for further development in this 

area of Pickering 

• Stated aim of increasing parking, however has any effort 

been made to identify more sui table sites within a 

similar dis tance of the NYMR? eg the Recreation Club. 

• Difficult access along Park Street, Undercliffe and Wells 

Walk 

• Close proximity to woodland areas  of Newtondale in 

terms of ecology, amenity and the location within the 

flood zone.  

• What conditions were on the original application for the 

trout farm? If approved as agricultural development, 

then can not be classed as  brownfield. 

• Is a  retail unit appropriate in this location? 

• proliferation of camping and caravanning facili ties in the 

area. Does the 7 glamping pods di fferentiate from static 

caravans , opr would i t give permission for a  caravan site. 

• As a  camp si te i t would be contrary to policy due to 

location in flood zone and conservation area. 

• Any conditions of approval need to adhere to 

recommendations  in the FRA. 

• when lake buil t, the spoil was  probably piled onto the 

Page 36



banks and the island formed a  raised area. Therefore 

infill of lake should fi rs t be taken from the surrounding 

heightened land. 

• doubt over the boundary claimed by the applicant on 

the green road forming the western boundary 

• sui tability of access over the bridge needs to be taken 

into account. A traffic management system for the 

railway may be necessary during construction. 

• Need appropriate materials due to location near listed 

buildings  and the castle etc. 

• Is there appropriate mains sewage connection for the 

glamping? 

• surely cant re-designate access as a dedicated footpath 

if i t is a Byeway Open to All Traffic. (BOAT). 

Eden Blyth 

4 Foundry Cottages 

Wrelton 

• Incorporating glamping sets a  precedent for overnight 

camping including tents , motor homes  and caravans 

• conservation area, and large car park and potential 

caravan site is at odds with that. 

• how can site be accessed by those with mobility 

problems. On plan it shows i t via  Wells Walk, Old Beck 

Road and the access road to the NYMR car park, 

followed by the footbridge over the beck which is less 

than a  1m in width. The condition of these arent good. 

as such how would a  disabled person access town at 

night when the station gates are shut. 

• filling in the lake with imported material is pointless if 

the banks are made of material excavated when the lake 

was  created. 

 • Concern over use of crushed limestone. In wet weather 

i t makes  a mess of the road. Also can spaces be marked 

out? 

• Concern over some of the claims: 

• the lake has been re-s tocked with fish to prevent the 

ingress of crayfish which will not share the water with 

trout. 

• have doubt that the development will increase the use 

of the train for access to the moors reducing the need to 

drive. This is unlikely due to the cost of a  ticket. 

• Would like to see the application refused, but i f granted 

recommend that overnight camping be excluded, and a  

sui table 24 hour access route be made fully accessible 

for disabled users. Also the land restored to its  pre-

fishing lake level, together with an appropriate form of 

paved sustainable drainage system for all hard surfaces. 

Mr Heath Wakefield The owners  have used the lake as  a car park for the last 2/3 

years . Yorkshire does need a  fishing lake. Once filled in, i t is 

Page 37



gone for good. Need owners  that are willing to spend time and 

money as well as running events. 

Mrs  Gascoyne 

29B Undercliffe 

Pickering 

It appears that a  32 max load on the bridge has been agreed by 

NYCC. The bridge is an old Victorian bridge buil t to take horses 

and carts , and not heavily loaded vehicles. i t will have a serious 

impact on the future usage of the bridge. The works will involve 

hundreds of lorries crossing the bridge. 

Who will pay for the repair? 

Mrs  Gascoyne • Application should be rejected under delegated powers 

• Information better than last application but s till 

insufficient to make a considered decision 

• Application purposely misleading 

 

Sara  Bryon 

Scarborough 

• The access over a  narrow hump backed bridge 

constructed for a horse and cart. 

• Have seen at fi rs t hand in the touris t season the chaos 

caused by cars  and coaches  backing onto the bridge to 

turn. With residents  and other pedestrians  trying to walk 

across with no pavement is dangerous . 

• Health and safety in relation to an un-gated crossing just 

over the bridge. 

• The car park will do nothing to relieve the congestion in 

town. It  will be no more use for disabled because they 

will  have to walk across the railway track and bridge 

with all the cars  to get to the s tation. 

• There has been no traffic survey. No mention to traffic, 

access or assessment. 

• Many Councils are promoting Park and Ride schemes, 

Ryedale should be doing the same and not encouraging 

more congestion. 

• With poor access and no safe pedestrian access i t is the 

worst location. 

• Believe that i t will be used as a  caravan si te. 

• Not safe for families with young children 

 

M Scriven • Removing parking from in front of Scout hut leaves local 

people with no where else to park 

• where will local  people park when car parks are shut 

• Will  walking route be a  white line or a pavement? When 

walking children i t is very narrow. 

Mrs  Gascoyne • still no additional report re bridge 

• still no information on who will be responsible for 

repairing the bridge 

• No swept analysis 

• a sign for Trout Lake already Blocks visibility 

• Failed to connect to Main Sewer 

Page 38



• substantial increase in sewage in beck should not be 

acceptable 

• SUDS application incomplete 

• Green house gases will not be reduced 

• glamping uni ts will be highly inefficient 

• landscaping is  indicative and will be eroded 

• statement s tates increased employment but reduction in 

s taff 

• increased traffic over bridge 

• those affected by traffic should have re-instated parking 

lost from Station car Park approach. 

Eden Blyth • Applicant s tates  proper sewage connection is too 

expensive so proposing package treatment plant in a  

flood plain 

• la test photographs  show why Wells Walk (muddy) and 

Park Street/Undercliffe  not acceptable. not sui table for 

wheelchair users. 

• Glamping a  planning precedent 

• a new grass sewn road way to second crossing. Are 

NYMR aware 

• local evacuation route dips down. How can i t be safe? 

• Recommend refusal/ 

Mrs  Jackson Gould 

23 Park Street Pickering 
• Regis ter objections 

A J Gascoyne • In flood risk area 

• risk of contamination of river and water course 

• how big will treatment plant have to be to 

accommodate camping, large house and 1264 

pedestrians  a day. 

• health and safety to pedestrians , push chairs  etc. 

• is road large enough to accommodate two full car parks 

emptying at same time? No 

• If you manage to get to Undercliffe in a  wheelchair i t is  

not safe 

• will  the bridge rail  track and roads  cope with lorries 

needed to fill the lake 

• Can the road on Undercli ffe and Park s treet cope 

• suggest Park and ride. 

Mr Kimmings 

14 Garden 
• Access via  level crossing. Usage would exceed 

recommended numbers on an open crossing 

• Including the camping, the number over summer must 

be exceeded 

• location of crossing close to junction, and fact that 

development will increase footfall over crossing are risks  

that need to be taken into account. 

Mrs  Atkinson • previous  plans  objections s till s tand 

Page 39



Park Street Pickering • Having experienced another summer of volume of 

traffic, feelings have intensified 

• Park Street is a  fast and bending road and before long 

with or without extra parking, there is going to be a  

serious  accident. 

Mr Bridges • i t will considerably change the beautiful  outlook from 

our property, which contributes to i ts  value. 

• Additional noise will be generated by the development 

especially i f entertainment for the glampers  is to be 

provided or if they li cence the cafe 

• anti  social behaviour from glamping uni ts or visitor 

centre. 

• It will dramatically change views from Rookers  Field and 

increase noise levels for residents of Pickering as well  as 

ourselves 

• will  seek re-evaluation of Council  tax payment i f i t goes 

ahead. 

SUPPORT  

Mr Leadbetter 

Clock Cottages 

Gloucestershire 

• obvious  a number of s tatutory consultees  have not 

visi ted the site 

• the lake cannot be seen from the castle, and there is  an 

exis ting securi ty fence obscuring the view 

• EA are the same, for the applicant to connect to mains 

they would need to go under mill race before being 

pumped up to the mains 

• revised plans  are very detailed 

• extensive planting will screen the si te 

• traffic assessment is very good and Pickering desperately 

needs a car park 

• i t is  previously developed land 

Miss A Chambers Full support: 

• Sel f employed business person from the Ryedale area, i t 

is important to keep developing our area with sui table 

enterprises that will be beneficial to the people of 

Ryedale, and the touris ts many of us make our livings 

from. 

• Changing the use will be great for the area  and problem 

of parking in Pickering. 

• Landscaping and development of the buildings  will be in 

keeping with Pickering 

• the glamping uni ts would be a  nice feature and in 

keeping with the railway 

• on basis of heal th and safety the car park will reduce 

traffic around the town. 

 

Mr Barr • Redevelopment will be beneficial for the touris ts of 

Page 40



Orchard Lodge 

Middleton 

Pickering and the people in the local  area. 

• the current facili ties regarding parking and railway 

access are insufficient 

• lack of sui table parking for touris ts which cause high 

levels of traffic congestion 

• there is no method of showing that the current car park 

is full . This causes traffic to bottleneck round the level 

crossing. This is inherently dangerous  and has caused 

trains to emergency s top on multiple occasions . It would 

be reckless to allow this to continue with a  viable 

solution present. 

• The increased capacity on the redeveloped trout site 

would completely eradicate these problems, easing 

congestion and preventing the possibility  of stationary 

traffic on the railway line.  

• A car park closer to the railway would make access for 

tourists  easier, and negate the requirement to walk 

down the pavement on New Bridge which is  frequently 

used by Quarry lorries . 

• the redevelopment is in keeping with the railway theme. 

• the camping uni ts would increase touris t levels  in 

Pickering to the benefi t of the local economy. 

 

Mr and Mrs  Atkins 

Cli ffe 

Cottage,Terrington , 

Increased Parking 

• The proposed parking would alleviate the terrible 

congestion and parking crisis which makes the town 

centre congested and causes  havoc for locals and 

tourists . Public transport is  limited, and the majori ty of 

users  of the railway need to arrive by car and currently 

have di fficulty parking. The proposed increase would 

make i t possible to use the s team railway more regularly 

and to promote the new facility to others . 

 

Attractive Railway Themed cafe with Model  Railway 

• The railway themed cafe will complement the NYMR, 

and become an attraction in i ts  own right 

• the new attraction would enhance the user attraction 

and points of interest. 

• The development will compliment the Reussner Learning 

Centre and other shops and cafes at the station 

• support the proposal to improve safer routes  to the 

railway 

• in support of extending their experience by s taying in 

one of the proposed goods vans which "would be an 

amazing experience for our family who are train mad" 

Mr Colley • As a  local business owner and someone who lives in 

Page 41



21 Kingfisher Drive 

Pickering 

Pickering, the town is in need of a really good car park.  

• Safer than people parking on Pickerings' narrow streets . 

• Will  help the North Yorkshire Moors  Railway. 

• Shop and cafe for those coming off the train will be great 

• Pickering will not get many chances like this to use land 

in i ts centre for a  really good sized car park 

• A great opportunity 

Mrs  J Smith  

The Brow  

Leavening 

• The railway is very short of parking. The existing one is 

often full by 9am 

• The congestion used to be bad until the lake opened up 

i ts banks this year 

• Not aware of problems this year on the crossing or the 

main road, because i t is managed by the fishing lake 

s taff. 

• If I  go on the train I  want to park near the railway. If 

another parking area is available, I  will s till check the 

railway didn't have spaces fi rs t 

• makes sense to have a much needed 'overflow' car park 

in this location 

• design of car park looks very attractive 

• the new building will be an improvement on the 

concrete 80's  build. The new building fi ts into i ts 

surroundings  much better with i ts orientation and 

engine shed styling 

• This application will be of financial benefi t for the 

tourism industry in this  area. 

• People s taying and looking around Pickering rather than 

not being able to park and then leaving. 

Mr M Jones 

Cefn Y Gader, Fron 

Gader 

caernarfon 

• As a  regular visi tor to Ryedale and Pickering, I  can see 

this being a  benefi t to the town and enhancing existing 

facili ties. 

Mrs  Bennett 

IBN Cottage 

Amotherby 

• Provision for much needed parking for the town 

• parking provides  easy and safe access to the touris t 

attraction of the NYMR 

• The extra  parking reduces congestion and traffic in the 

main town centre making the centre a safer place 

• It will be a  well  presented building in keeping with the 

surrounding area and railway buildings 

• Provision of much needed public toilets at this end of 

town 

• trading at the si te will encourage further tourism with 

much needed financial economics boosting other local 

trades  and industry. 

• bring the site into the modern era with excellent 

facili ties and landscaping 

Page 42



W Swan 

Arncli ffe Cottage 

Scackleton 

• This car park will be essential to Pickering and the 

railway. Tourism is  a large employer of this town. 

• The landscaped car park will look very attractive 

• the glamping uni ts are a unique addition. 

Mrs  S Smith • Issues raised in relation to traffic are difficul t to 

understand as the traffic is al ready coming 

• if the applicants  didn't accommodate the parkers i t 

would resul t in more movements  back and forth 

• If the si te closes there will be thousands  of new traffic 

movements  up and down Undercliffe and through the 

Vivis Lane junction with people looking for spaces . 

• The bridge has a  weight limit imposed by NYCC which 

takes  into account repeated use. The bridge can be 

temporarily s trengthened whilst work goes  on.  

• Nearly all visitors  parking there are railway customers . 

Improved signage will s top people crossing the bridge 

and road. 

• The railway crossing is protected 

• The project will remove people from the town centre. 

Mrs  Ripley 

Dunswell Hull 

• This is a  much needed facility for the Pickering area, 

bringing revenue for the local  economy 

• parking will reduce the need for on street parking for 

tourists 

• the exis ting lakes are in decline and the landscaped 

facili ty will provide an aesthetically pleasing facility 

• the glamping will provide a new and exci ting venture 

• Pickering has  limited space for meetings 

• inclusion of roads  and pathways will reduce issues 

around main access 

Mrs  Y Morris 

25 Undercli ffe Pickering 

• support application as i t builds on the area 's exis ting 

tourism provision, and supports  expenditure 

• The area will be screened from neighbouring properties 

by exis ting trees 

• planned buildings in keeping with locali ty and will 

enhance visitor experience. 

 

Mr William Morris 

25 Undercli ffe 

Pickering 

• Better use of the area, providing much needed parking 

close to centre of Pickering 

• possible employment for local  residents and tourism 

industry 

• Area is well screened for the majori ty of local residents  

and increase in traffic will be minimal. 

Page 43



Mr S Grantham 

Dyon  

Bubwith 

• the proposal will enhance the facilities available at the 

site, and make it more attractive to visitors . 

• more revenue to area 

• relieve pressure on exis ting parking 

Jeff Taylor 

Goddard Avenue  

Hull 

• Visit Pickering regularly mainly for short s tays which 

involves use of facili ties in Pickering. 

• Glamping uni ts and parking spaces  would add to the 

facili ties  

• It will add to facilities in Pickering 

• Have s truggled to park 

• Pickering is widely recognised as a touris t destination 

and needs to have facilities for the 21st Century. 

North Yorkshire Moors 

Railway 

• Supports the operation of  the railway by providing 

much needed peak season parking and associated 

facili ties 

• The development will provide safe conveyance of 

pedestrians  over a  continuous  level route to the s tation 

• the car park will assist in clearing the approaches to the 

crossing 

• the re-design of the private  road will separate vehicular 

and pedestrian traffic 

• the development will provide an opportunity for both 

parties to jointly address improved signage 

Vale of Pickering Scout 

Group 
• Support application. Works  will benefi t immediate area  

and economic vi tali ty of Pickering 

• Provision of long s tay car parking will eliminate current 

merry go round situation during peak seasons 

• have good and mutually supportive working relationship 

with Moorland Trout Farms. 

• There are no agreements  in place with private 

individuals for parking on the lane, they are for use by 

those on scout business 

• a contract is in place with applicant to allow safe 

passage of a  demarcated footpath with no parking 

allowed. 

• This will enhance overall visi tor reception  and improve 

public footpath. 

 

Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

Item Number: 8 

Application No: 14/01259/MFUL 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Persimmon Homes (Yorkshire) Ltd (Mr Robin McGinn) 

Proposal: Erection of 12 no. four bedroom dwellings, 27 no. three bedroom 

dwellings, and 13 no. two bedroom dwellings with associated garaging, 

parking, amenity areas, public open space, landscaping and formation of 

vehicular accesses and site roads 

Location: Land To Rear Of Firthland Road Pickering North Yorkshire  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  19 February 2015  

Overall Expiry Date:  17 February 2016 

Case Officer:  Rachel Smith Ext: 323 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No objections  

Environmental Health Officer Recommend condition  

Housing Services Comments made  

North Yorkshire Education Authority  Contributions required  

Countryside Officer No objection - recommend conditions  

Tree & Landscape Officer  No objection 

Vale Of Pickering Internal Drainage Boards No objection subject to informative  

Flood Risk (Stuart Edwards) No further comments  

Countryside Officer No further comments  

Archaeology Section Advise scheme of archeological mitigation  

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions  

Parish Council No objections, comments made  

Land Use Planning No objection  

Archaeology Section Recommend conditions  

North Yorkshire Police Architectural Liaison Officer In respect of 'designing out crime', it is still 

difficult to support this application.   

 
Neighbour responses: Ms Jane Hartley, , Mr Toby Forsdyke, Mr/Mrs Keld, , 

Dawn Morrison, Mrs S Russell, Mr David Hampshire, 

Mr John Quinlan, Miss Amanda Fields, Jane, Lily, 

Miranda Hartley, Mr Richard Kimmings, Ms Rosemary 

Holt,  

 

 

 

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION 

 
1.1 The application comprises 2.3 hectares of agricultural land on the western side of Pickering. It is 

situated to the south of Firthlands Road, with existing housing which fronts Firthlands Road forming 

the northern boundary of the site. These existing dwellings are one and a half stories in height. Access 

is at the western end of the site, on a parcel of land currently occupied by run down garaging. The 

north and east of the site is bounded by residential development, with agricultural land to the 

immediate south and west. Westgate Carr Industrial Estate is situated to the west.  

 

2.0 PROPOSAL 

 

2.1 Full planning permission is sought for the erection of: 

 

• 52  houses comprising: 

Page 78

Agenda Item 8



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

 

      15 no. 4 bedroom dwellings  

       28 no. 3 bedroom dwellings 

 5 no. 2 bedroom  dwellings of which two are bungalows 

 

4 no. 1 bedroom flats. 

 

• Vehicular access and site roads 

• Public open space including a local area of play. (LAP) 

• Landscaping.  

 

A new access will be provided from the western extent of the site. The access will incorporate a 

landscaped buffer along its eastern boundary. The access is separated form the proposed housing by 

an existing small holding which is not part of the application site. A pedestrian link will be provided 

from the development through to Greenlands, which is a residential area to the east. An additional 

access will also be provided from the north in the location of an existing farm access. However this 

will be restricted to emergency vehicles only, together with vehicular access to existing garages that 

adjoin the site and are owned by a neighbouring occupier. 

 

3.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

 
3.1 The application was screened in relation to the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations. It 

was determined that the proposed development comprised Schedule II development. However taking 

into account the selection criteria contained within Schedule 3 of the Regulations it was determined 

that an Environmental Impact Assessment was not required. 

 

4.0 PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT AND DECISION TAKING PRINCIPLES 

 
4.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 confirms that the determination 

of the application must be made in accordance with the development plan unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise. 

 

The development plan for the area of Ryedale (not within the North York Moors National Park) 

consists of: 

 

• The Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy (2013) 

• ‘saved’ policies of the Ryedale Local Plan (2002) and the 2002 Proposals Map 

• The Yorkshire and Humber Plan (Regional Spatial Strategy), York Green Belt Policies (YH9 and 

Y1)  

 

Wider legislation places specific statutory duties on planning authorities. 

 

Section 40(1) of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (the ‘NERC’ Act), 

imposes a duty on public authorities in exercising their functions, to have regard to the purpose of 

conserving biodiversity. 

 

All public bodies are required to comply with the rights and freedoms of the European Convention on 

Human Rights under the provisions of the Human Rights Act (1998) 

 

4.2 Development Plan 

 
None of the remaining saved policies of the Ryedale Local Plan or the Yorkshire and Humber Plan 

are considered to be relevant to the assessment of this application. It is noted however that the 

development limits for Pickering  are, 'saved' through Policy SP1 of the Ryedale Plan-Development 

Plan Strategy. 

 

Page 79



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

The Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy (LPS) , adopted 5th September 2013, provides recently 

adopted development plan policies which are compliant with national planning policy (the National 

Planning Policy Framework – NPPF). The current Proposals Map is the 2002 adopted Proposals Map. 

The LPS contains strategic policies to manage development and growth across Ryedale to 2027. It 

seeks to integrate the need to address development needs whilst protecting the environment and 

landscape and securing necessary improvements to services and infrastructure. The Plan directs most 

new development to the Market Towns and recognises that green field extensions to the Towns will 

be required to address development needs. It confirms that as part of this strategic approach, Pickering 

is a local service centre and secondary focus for growth. Of the three Market Towns of Pickering, 

Kirkbymoorside and Helmsley, the Local Plan Strategy states that Pickering provides the greatest 

range of shops, services and employment. In view of this the plan states that it is appropriate that 

Pickering accommodates a higher level of new development than both Kirkbymoorside and Helmsley.  

The following policies of the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy are relevant to the assessment of the 

application: 

 

Ryedale Local Plan Strategy - adopted 5 September 2013 ( Ryedale Plan) 

 

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 

Policy SP2 - Delivery and Distribution of New Housing 

Policy SP3 - Affordable Housing 

Policy SP4 - Type and Mix of New Housing 

Policy SP11 - Community Facilities and Services (In respect of public open space 

Policy SP12 - Heritage 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP14 - Biodiversity 

Policy SP15 - Green Infrastructure Networks 

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP17 - Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources 

Policy SP18 - Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

Policy SP22 - Planning Obligations, Developer Contributions and the Community Infrastructure Levy 

 

4.3 National Policy Guidance  

 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 

 
The NPPF provides national planning policy and it is also accompanied by practice guidance. Both 

are significant material planning considerations.  

 

The NPPF makes it clear that it is the purpose of the planning system to contribute to the achievement 

of sustainable development. The framework makes it clear that there are three dimensions to 

sustainable development which give rise to the need for the planning system to perform an economic 

role, a social role and an environmental role. Para 6 of The Framework states: 

 

6. The purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the achievement of sustainable development. 

The policies in paragraphs 18 to 219, taken as a whole, constitute the Government's view of what 

sustainable development in England means in practice for the planning system.  

 

The Framework establishes a set of core land-use principles to underpin the planning system within its 

overarching purpose of contributing to the achievement of sustainable development which include 

that planning should: 

 

• Proactively drive and support sustainable economic development to deliver the homes, business 

and industrial units, infrastructure and thriving local places that the country needs 

• Always seek to secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and 

future occupants of land and buildings 

Page 80



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

• Take account of the different roles and character of different areas, promoting the vitality of our 

main urban areas, protecting Green Belts around them, recognising the intrinsic character and 

beauty of the countryside and supporting thriving rural communities within it 

• Support the transition to a low carbon future in a changing climate, taking full account of flood 

risk and coastal change and encourage the reuse of existing resources, including conversion of 

existing buildings, and encourage the use of renewable resources 

• Contribute to conserving and enhancing the natural environment and reducing pollution 

• Promote mixed use developments 

• Conserve heritage assets in a manner appropriate to their significance 

• Actively manage patterns of growth to make the fullest possible use of public transport, walking 

and cycling, and focus significant development in locations which are or can be made sustainable 

• Take account of and support local strategies to improve health, social and cultural wellbeing for 

all, and deliver sufficient community and cultural facilities and services to meet local needs. 

 

4.4 The Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

 

Both the Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework include policies which 

promote a presumption in favour of sustainable development to be applied in the decision making 

process  alongside the legislative requirement that decisions are made in accordance with the 

development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 

Paragraphs 11-16 of the National Planning Policy Framework details how the presumption  in favour 

of sustainable development is to be applied. Paragraph 12 of the NPPF makes it clear that; 

 

“ Proposed development that accords with an up to date Development  Plan  should be approved and 

proposed development that conflicts should be refused unless other material considerations indicate 

otherwise”. 

 

Paragraph 14 specifically confirms that a presumption in favour of sustainable development is at the 

heart of the NPPF and should be seen as a golden thread running through plan-making and decision 

taking. It states that for decision- taking this means (unless material considerations indicate otherwise)  

 

• “ approving development proposals that accord with the development plan  without delay; 

and  

• where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out-of-date, granting 

planning permission unless: 

• any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 

benefits, when assessed against the policies in this framework taken as a whole; or 

• specific policies in the framework indicate that development should be restricted.” 

 

Policy SP19 of the Local Plan Strategy is consistent with the above national presumption but makes 

specific reference to the Local Plan and Neighbourhood Plans; working proactively with applicants 

and clarifies the application of the second bullet of the national presumption. It states;"When 

considering development proposals the Council will take a positive approach that reflects the 

presumption in favour of sustainable development contained in the National Planning Policy 

Framework. It will always work proactively with applicants jointly to find solutions which mean that 

proposals can be approved wherever possible and to secure development that improves the economic, 

social and environmental conditions of the area. 

 

Planning applications that accord with the policies in this Local Plan (and where relevant, with 

policies in Neighbourhood Plans) will be approved without delay unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise. 

 

Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of date at the time 

of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless material considerations indicate 

otherwise – taking into account whether: 

Page 81



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

 

• Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 

benefits, when assessed against the policies in the National Planning Policy Framework taken as 

a whole; or 

• Specific policies in that Framework indicate that development should be restricted” 

 

5.0 APPRAISAL 

 
5.1 The main considerations in relation to this application are: 

 

• The principle of the proposed development.  

• Accessibility and sustainability  

• Design considerations 

• Neighbour impact. 

• Highway Considerations including vehicular access, pedestrian, and general highway safety;  

• Ecological  considerations  

• Drainage considerations 

• Landscaping 

• Archaeology 

• Affordable Housing provision; 

• Designing out crime; 

• Potential ground contamination; 

• Public Open Space; and 

• Developer contributions. 

• Contributors 

 

6.0 Principle of Development 

 
6.1 As detailed above, planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 

determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate 

otherwise. The site is not allocated in the development plan for residential development and falls 

outside the 'saved development limits. The principle of development will be established by taking 

account of the relevant policies in the development plan, together with all other material 

considerations.  

 

6.3 Housing Supply 

 
Members will be aware that a number of housing sites that lie outside the 'saved' development limits 

have been approved in recent years. This was  because at the time of their consideration, the Local 

Planning Authority were unable to demonstrate a  deliverable 5 year supply of housing.    

 

Policy SP2 (Delivery and Distribution of new housing) of the Local Plan Strategy commits the 

authority to the identification and maintenance of a supply of deliverable housing sites sufficient to 

provide five years worth of housing against the planned annual requirement of 200 homes per annum. 

The policy also commits to the provision of an additional 20% supply of housing land over the life of 

the plan (the equivalent of 200 homes over a five year period). 

 

The policy is framed to reflect the requirements of national policy (paragraph 47 of the NPPF) which 

requires Local Planning Authorities to identify and maintain a five year supply of deliverable housing 

land with an additional supply buffer to provide a realistic prospect of achieving the planned supply 

and to ensure choice and competition in the market for land. 

 

The NPPF states (paragraph 49) that housing applications should be considered in the context of the 

presumption in favour of sustainable development. It makes it clear that if a local planning authority 

cannot demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing sites, relevant policies for the supply of 

Page 82



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

housing should not be considered up-to-date. Paragraph 14 of the NPPF confirms that for decision 

making, the presumption in favour of sustainable development means: 

 

• “approving development proposals that accord with the development plan without delay; and  

• Where the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out-of-date, granting 

permission unless: 

• Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, 

when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole; or 

• Specific policies in this Framework indicate development should be restricted” 

 

Currently, Ryedale can demonstrate that it has a five year supply of deliverable housing sites. At 

31/3/15 a total net supply of 1461 plots with planning permission existed which equates to 7.31 years 

of housing land supply (based on the planned housing requirement of 200 units per annum). The 

recent SHLAA Part 1 update (May 2015) illustrates that from this ‘raw’ supply (which equates to a 

numerical 5 year supply plus an additional 46%), 1173 new homes will be delivered over the next five 

years. This equates to 5.92 years worth of deliverable housing supply.  

 

Members should be aware that this supply position does not include applications which are approved 

in principle and which are currently awaiting the completion of Section 106 agreements. In addition, it 

does not include the supply of housing land allocated in the Helmsley Plan. Members should note 

however that the ability to demonstrate a five year deliverable supply of housing land is not in itself a 

reason for the refusal of a planning application. Indeed, development can help to deliver a continuity 

of supply. 

 

 This is relevant in Pickering where there are limited sites with planning permission.  It is however 

considered that the ability to demonstrate a five year deliverable supply has the effect of meaning the 

immediate need to release a site on the basis of housing land supply is not, in itself, a significant 

benefit of the application when considering the overall planning balance. In addition it means that the 

presumption in favour of sustainable development referred to in Paragraph 49 of the National 

Planning Policy Framework is not engaged.  In view of this position, it is considered appropriate to 

consider the site in relation to other policies in the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

6.4 Location of Development 

 
Policies SP1- (General Location of Development and settlement Hierarchy) of the Local Plan Strategy 

identifies Malton and Norton as a Primary Focus for Growth. Pickering, Kirkbymoorside and 

Helmsley are identified as a secondary focus for growth together with a number of identified Service 

Villages as a tertiary focus for growth. Policy  SP2  (Delivery and Distribution of new housing), 

identifies that at least 3000 new homes will be managed over the period 2012-20127 to this  hierarchy 

of settlements, with 25% directed towards Pickering.  

 
Policies  SP1 - General Location of development and Policy SP 2 - Delivery and Distribution of 

Housing includes the following strategy summary in respect of Pickering: 

 

Pickering 

 

Place/Role 

 

Local Service Centre - Growth to accommodate new homes and local employment opportunities. 

Centre for tourism and gateway to tourism and recreation opportunities further a field 

 

Approach/Ambitions 

 
· Support the town’s role as the main Service Centre in northern Ryedale 

· Housing and employment growth 

· Provision of limited food retailing within existing Town Centre or sites with existing permission for 

food retailing 

Page 83



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

· Traffic management measures and sustainable travel initiatives to reduce congestion, impact on the 

character of the town and enhance the pedestrian experience 

· New and improved sport and recreation facilities for residents and visitors 

· Support the towns regional tourism role and support for existing attractions including Beck Isle 

Museum, Pickering Castle and the North York Moors Railway and events such as the Steam Rally and 

Wartime Weekend 

· Support the town’s role as a gateway to tourist attractions and recreational activities in the North 

York Moors National Park, northern Ryedale, including Dalby Forest, the Vale of Pickering and the 

Coast 

 
Policy SP2 (Delivery and Distribution of new housing), identifies the sources of new housing that 

will contribute to the supply of new homes across the District. The part of the policy that relates to 

delivery in Pickering is as follows: 

 

• Housing Land Allocations in and adjacent to the built up area 

• Conversion and redevelopment of Previously Developed Land and buildings within Development 

Limits 

• Replacement dwellings 

• Sub-division of existing dwellings 

• Infill development (small open sites in an otherwise continually built up frontage) 

• 100% Rural Exception Sites outside of and on the edge of Development Limits in line with Policy 

SP3 

• Change of use of tourist accommodation (not including caravans, cabins or chalets) where 

appropriate 

 

The key contributor to housing supply is: 

 

Housing land allocations in and adjacent to the built up area. 

 It should be noted that reference to housing land allocations in Policy SP2 is because the anticipated 

supply of housing is to be made through residential allocations through the Sites Document. Whilst 

the Site Allocations Document is still at an early stage, and can only be given limited weight at this 

time, the key strategic  locational principle equally applies to speculative proposals in advance of the 

site allocations reaching an advanced stage.  

 

The Council is preparing the Local Plan Sites Document, and a public consultation on preferred sites  

has recently taken place. The application site was included as a potential site option for Pickering, and 

generally performed well. It is closely related to existing housing to the south of Pickering,  and from 

any distant views will be seen in the context of the existing built development. It is well related to 

enable access to services, schools and employment by foot or bicycle. The applicant has advised that 

the nearest bus stops are on Greenlands, Firthland Road and Manor Drive, where hourly bus services 

to the town centre operate. The Coastline bus also provides a regular bus service to other towns 

including Malton, York, Leeds and Whitby. The supporting information further advices that: 

 

The local area has good provision of services which include Humpty Dumpty Nursery which is within 

a 5 minute walking distance, St Joseph's Primary School, Pickering Junior School and Lady Lumley 

Secondary School which are within 10 minute walking distance. Pickering town centre is within 10 

minute walking distance where a variety of restaurants, pubs, shops and other services can be found. 

Pickering medical practice which is the local healthcare facility is also within 10 minute walking 

distance from the site. The proposed scheme has been designed to encourage use of various transport 

modes and it includes safe and accessible routes and footpath links to increase connectivity by foot to 

the local facilities. 

 

The table below includes information submitted by the application to demonstrate the sustainability of 

the site: 

Page 84



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

 
 

In view of the above,  it is considered that the site accords with the spatial and locational criteria in the 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy, and the proposal is not of a scale that would limit other choices in 

Pickering.  

Page 85



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

Furthermore it fits with the criteria of the type of site that the Council is looking for. Accordingly, it is 

considered that the principle of the development of this site is acceptable. 

 

6.5 Type and Mix of Housing 

 
It is considered that the proposed development will provide a mix of house types in accordance with 

Policy SP4 Type and mix of new housing. Furthermore the development will result in the provision of 

two bungalows.   

 

7.0 DESIGN 

 
7.1 Policy SP16 design, includes the following requirements; 

 

Development proposals will be expected to create high quality durable places that are accessible, well 

integrated with their surroundings and which: 

 

• Reinforce local distinctiveness 

• provide a well-connected public realm which is accessible and usable by all, safe and easily 

navigated 

• protect amenity and promote well-being.  

 

The NPPF also recognises the importance of good design, and states: 

 

56 The Government attaches great importance to the design of the built environment. Good design is 

a key aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good planning, and should contribute 

positively to making places better for people. 

 

The application is accompanied by a Design and Access statement. This makes reference to the 

historic core of Pickering, but states that; 

 

Viewing the built vernacular in the round, there is little to suggest a dominant  built form or style to 

the area surrounding the site to give a detailed design cue for the scheme. However, despite the 

varying age and style of the properties the majority are two storey in height with front and rear 

gardens with more modern properties benefitting from off street parking. The materials palette is 

equally as mixed with red/brown engineering and buff bricks being the main facing material of choice 

whilst the older properties have slate roofs, concrete roofs are also prevalent. 

 

Officers acknowledge that the housing immediately around the site lacks any definitive architectural 

character. Nevertheless it was considered that the plans as originally submitted failed to pick up on the 

character of dwellings fronting the street with important spacing between them, and in some areas 

attractive areas of grassland to the frontages. Furthermore,  the application includes a new access road 

which could in the future lead to further housing land. If the development of the submitted site failed 

to provide an attractive entrance to this site, and potentially further land, this would set a low design 

parameter from the start. In view of this officers have spent a significant amount of time working with 

the applicants to seek to improve the relationship of the proposed houses with those in the 

surrounding area, the layout of the access roads, and the provision of sufficient room for 'meaningful 

landscaping.   

 

The revised plans include a more traditional road layout with houses better related to it. The house 

types themselves are standard ones used by Persimmon Homes.  However the revised plan includes 

better spacing between them, and also more traditional detailing. The main access road will have 

landscaped areas to the western approach together with a row of statement trees. These will continue 

into the entrance to the housing site itself. Further meaningful landscaping will be provided between 

plots 49 and 43 Firthlands Road, which includes a footpath from the site. Officers consider that 

further improvements could be made to spacing between the dwellings.  Rows of houses with parking 

to the front can result in a car dominated environment. Providing more driveways to the side of 

dwellings  would also provide more room for  landscaping.  

Page 86



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

It is also considered that some aspects of the design of the dwellings could be improved.  Nevertheless 

the applicant is not prepared to reduce the density further for viability reasons. In relation to the 

design, as stated earlier they are the applicants standard house types.  However some improvements 

have been made to the detailing.   Given the improvements that have been made to the development as 

a whole, in particular in relation to the road layout the landscaping overall, it is considered that the 

proposal is acceptable in terms of its design approach and that a refusal on these  grounds could not be 

sustained.  

 

8.0 NEIGHBOUR IMPACT  

 
8.1 The nearest neighbours to the site are the row of dwellings that form the northern boundary of the 

site.  Houses to the eastern  boundary are predominantly  separated by an existing area of public open 

space. A detached dwelling, Long Acres is also situated between the proposed housing and the access 

road.  

 

8.2 Officers had significant concerns regarding the initial plans submitted. This was because the 

layout included an almost continuous row of housing which would have few breaks in it. Officers 

considered that this layout would have resulted in an over bearing presence for existing occupiers. 

This is in particular because the existing houses on Firthland Road are one and a half storey. The 

revised plan has broken up the row of houses to provide some gaps  in the block length. Concerns 

were also raised in relation to the location of the open space which was situated to the rear of plots 49 

to 57 Firthland Road. This could have resulted in disturbance by virtue of general noise activity and 

the possibility of ball games against the common boundary. The public open space has been deleted 

from this area, and a larger landscaped boundary provided near to the footpath. Two detached 

dwellings have now been located to the rear of plots 49 to 55 Firthland Road. The separation distance 

between the existing and proposed houses  in this area ranges between 22m and 24m. Plots 20 and 21 

are 21m to the rear of 57 to 61 Firthland Road. The proposed dwellings are however, single storey. 

The separation distance to the rear of 65 to 67, and 77 to 79 Firthland Road is 25m. These are two 

storey dwellings. Plots 11 to 16 are a minimum of 25 from the rear of 69 to 75 Firthland Road. These 

dwellings are two and a half storey high, with a ridge height of 9.7m. Four parking spaces will be 

provided to the rear albeit separated from the common boundary by 4m. Whilst space standards 

between dwellings no longer apply it is commonly accepted that a separation of 18m to 20m between 

directly facing bedroom windows is acceptable.   All the distances shown are in excess of this 

guidance.  Officers have taken account of the small scale of the existing dwellings, and also the 

significant height of plots 11 to 16. They have also considered the orientation of the site in relation to 

existing dwellings.  However, it  is considered that the distances are within accepted tolerances.  

Equally, plots 7 and 8 are in excess of 35m from the existing dwelling to the west of the site, Long 

Acres. The separation between 41 and 43 Firthland are also considered acceptable.  The existing 

houses on Greenlands have a separation from the proposed houses by an area of existing open space. 

Due to the shape of the open space, 6 and 10 Greenlands are the closest to the proposed dwellings.  

However it is again considered that the distances are in excess of accepted distances.  

 
8.3 It is considered that there will be some impact on dwellings elsewhere due to the increase in traffic 

associated with the development. This will in particular be in relation to those houses directly 

opposite the proposed access. However the  site is located  within a primarily residential area, and  

there will be some  visual improvements as a result of the removal of the unkempt garages and 

proposed landscaping. 

 

8.4 There is no doubt that the development will have some impact on the exiting amenities of 

neighbouring occupiers, however it is not considered that the impact is sufficient to warrant  refusal of 

the application on that basis. 

 

9.0 AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROVISION 

 

9.1 Policy SP3 - Affordable Housing- states that where local need exists, the Local Planning 

Authority will seek the provision of new affordable homes. The requirement on this site is 35 per cent. 

the scheme will provide 18 affordable homes comprising: 

Page 87



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

 

4 no. 1 bedroom flats 

8 no. 2 bedroom semi detached and; 

6 no. 3 bedroom terrace houses.  

 

The remaining  0.2 of a dwelling would be made in the form of a contribution. 

 

9.2 The affordable housing provision will comprise 10% intermediate, and 90% rented. The Councils' 

Affordable Housing  Officer  expressed concerns regarding the floor area of the proposed one 

bedroom flats, which are approximately  35m2. This is below the 50m2 space standards 

recommended by most registered providers, the 3 bedroom dwelling is also below recommended 

sizes.   The applicant has however advised that they have built the same size properties in Easingwold 

where they have been taken on by Broadacres.   

 

On going discussions are being carried out with the Council's Affordable Housing Officer and the 

applicant regarding this matter. It is hoped to update members at the meeting. 

 

10.0 HIGHWAY CONSIDERATIONS 

 

10.1 The layout includes the provision of a new access at the western extent of the site, running along 

the southern extent of the proposed housing. The  entrance is separated from the proposed housing by 

a detached house set back from the road.  A large landscaped area will be provided adjacent to the 

access road.  An emergency vehicle access will be provided at the eastern end of the site, which will 

also incorporate a footpath in a landscaped setting. A pedestrian link will also connect the south 

eastern corner of the application site with Greenlands Road. 

 

10.2 North Yorkshire Highways have been consulted on the application. In relation to the original 

plans they advised: 

 

1. The section of Firthland Road onto which the proposed estate road access is to be formed has a 

long standing issue with on-street parking, due to the adjacent properties having no on-site provision. 

With the loss of the adjacent garaging this is unlikely to improve. Given that the carriageway only has 

an effective width of 3.5 metres due to the parked vehicles, I would expect that the developer improve 

this section of highway to ensure two-way traffic can be accommodated for all vehicles, and as the 

new estate road is proposed at 6 metres wide, this width would be expected here. 

 

2. I have concern over the parking provision shown, with many of the two and three bedroom 

properties having a single on-site parking space, the likelihood is that this will lead to on-street 

parking. The applicant is no doubt aware that Governmental advice contained in Planning Practice 

Guidance urges local planning authorities seek to ensure parking provision appropriate to the needs 

of the development that would not lead to congested streets. Given the widths proposed I am of the 

opinion this may well give rise to such a problem and the parking allocation should therefore be 

looked at more favourably. 3. The proposed layout does not provide any measures to ensure traffic 

speeds are kept to the recognised 20mph within the site, especially on the approach road. 

 

4. Section 4.18 of the Planning Statement mentions a submitted Travel Plan, but it does not appear to 

be included with the documents available on-line. Similarly, it mentions public transport 

enhancements, but no further information or commitment on the part of the applicant has been 

mentioned, and these should be brought forward for consideration. 

10.3 Negotiations were carried out with the applicant in response to these comments.  This in 

particular included better parking provision. In view of this North Yorkshire Highways responded as 

below: 

 

Re. Revised plans (Drawing Nos. 687/001 Rev. C; R/1751/1; 687/003 and various house plans) as 

notified by letter from Ryedale DC dated 3 August 2015. 

 

Some of the parking allocation for the 4 bedroom properties would appear to be too tight.  

Page 88



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

Provision should be made for 3 spaces each, all clear of the proposed adoptable estate road and/or 

private shared driveway, and still enable pedestrian access via the property doors. Plots 22, 23, 24, 

28, 39, 41 and 48. 

 

The link off the estate road back to Firthland Road needs to be modified to keep pedestrian/cyclists 

clear of the existing vehicular access to the garages. Appropriate restraints will be required to 

prevent through use by vehicular traffic, and similarly between the two proposed culs-de-sac and 

footway link into Greenlands Road. 

 

The landscaping plan does not identify the whereabouts of the species. For the main spine road, it is 

recommended that the verge width be increased to six metres to permit a more varied, hardwood tree 

species that would mature well. This could be achieved on both sides up to where the housing is 

located, and continued along the south side if desired. This principle of this arrangement could also 

be brought in along future sections of the spine road at the time of any scheme coming forward. The 

remaining three metre-wide verges can be planted with trees, but the species allowed would be 

limited. 

 

The developer is advised to refer to Appendix H of the NYCC Residential Highway Design Guide. 

Some traffic calming features would need to be designed for the spine road along the ‘open’ section. 

These may not necessarily be vertical restraints. 

 

The off-site changes to accommodate parking arrangements on Firthland Road opposite the site are 

noted. During the construction period, it is expected that a traffic management plan be prepared and 

implemented that covers routes and timings of site / delivery traffic. This is likely to involve a one-way 

arrival and departure system, and may need to include introducing temporary waiting restrictions 

along certain short lengths of the immediate highway network, in order to ensure traffic is able to 

pass along the highway safely and satisfactorily. 

 

Subject to receiving amended plans that satisfactorily clarify the on-site parking, safeguarding the 

footway links and verge landscaping arrangements, no highway authority objections are raised in 

principle to the proposed development, and  conditions are recommended. 

 
10.4 Letters of objection from neighbouring occupiers have raised concerns regarding the capacity of 

the surrounding roads. This is also referred to in the response from Pickering town Council. The 

highway aspect of their response states: 

 

The Council asks that consideration is given to improving traffic flow along Manor Rive and 

Firthland Road. The new development, during construction and upon completion, will generate 

additional traffic movement. Manor Drive is now a single lane thoroughfare (because of parking on 

the west side of the road) and drivers along Firthland Road have to negotiate higgledy-piggledy 

parking on the north side of the road. Anchorite Lane where it meets the A170 is a junction where 

drivers have to take the greatest care. Negotiating these roads becomes even more demanding when 

traffic is backed up along Westgate from the traffic lights as some drivers, travelling eastwards, who 

do not want to be unduly delayed, will leave the A170 at Manor Drive, travel along Firthland Road 

and return to the end of Vivis Lane, thereby creating additional traffic movement along roads already 

difficult to negotiate.  

 

North Yorkshire Highways have taken account of the capacity of the road system, and have not 

objected to the development on that basis. Clarification of their views in response to the comments of 

the Town Council have been sought, and Members will be updated at their meeting. In relation to 

comments of neighbouring occupiers regarding pedestrian crossing of Firthlands Road. North 

Yorkshire County Council - Highways have made the following response: 

 

I’ve looked on site regarding. the objection letter on the matter of the crossing of Firthland Road, and 

do not consider that the amount of traffic v. pedestrians crossing there at school times will be raised 

to such a level as to be detrimental to highway safety. 

 

Page 89



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

For example, a check done on the afternoon of 13 January 2016 saw only 3 pedestrians cross 

Firthland Road to the west of Anchorite Lane over a 45-minute period (15.40 to 16.25), during which 

time 55 vehicles passed this point in both directions (i.e. an average of 1 vehicle every 41 seconds). 

 

However, it would not be unreasonable to request that the applicant install 2 no. SLOW road 

markings on red anti-skid patches on the approaches to the bend/junction with Anchorite Lane as a 

low cost outlay to give additional awareness to drivers at that point. The SLOW marking should be 

positioned in the middle of the carriageway, so to still be visible if a parked vehicle was over the side 

of the patch. 

 

10.5 In relation to the proposed parking, the revised plans have now resulted in most dwellings having 

a minimum of two parking spaces off road. A number of dwellings also have a garage.  The exception 

are Plots 17 and 18 which are two bedroomed and have one space each. Plots 34 to 37 are one 

bedroom flats, and again have one parking space each.  

 

It is of note however that the site provision on the site accords with the North Yorkshire County 

Council Interim Guidance on parking standards and travel plans 2015. 

 

11.0 LANDSCAPING 

 
11.1 The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy in policy SP12 Heritage requires that distinctive 

elements of Ryedale's historic environment will be conserved and where appropriate enhanced. This 

includes: 

 

• The network of historic field systems across the District and in particular, the historic field 

patterns around Pickering and other settlements on the northern side of the Vale of Pickering. 

 

The site lies at the southern edge of Pickering where there is evidence of historic field patterns.  

Nevertheless, the fields covered by the application site are not intact, and have lost some of their 

original hedges. In addition the western edge of the site is trucated and has lost its historic character. 

The site is also surrounding to the west and east by existing development and has a more urban feel to 

it. Accordingly, it is not considered that the loss of the application site would result in the loss of 

important historic fields. 

 
11.2 In relation to the landscaping of the site itself, concern was raised by officers that the application 

as submitted left little opportunity for any meaningful landscaping either within the site, or along the 

boundaries. This was in part due to the lack of spacing between dwellings and also the proliferation of 

parking to the front of dwellings. The revised plans have resulted in a significant improvement to the 

plans. Whilst the layout still includes areas  where parking will dominate the streetscene, further 

planting has been provided elsewhere. Of particular note is the provision of mature trees along the 

main access to the site, and the landscaped areas around the emergency access/pedestrian access. 

Hedges have also been provided where possible to front gardens.  It is considered that subject to 

appropriate condition, the landscaping proposed is acceptable. 

 

11.3 The Town Council has queried future maintenance of landscaped areas, and verges. The 

applicant has advised that a management company will take charge of the Public open space and 

landscaping on site. In relation to verges, the applicant has advised that they are working with the 

Highway Authority in order to get the grass verges along the roads adopted. Taking on board the 

comments of the Town Council this aspect will be discussed further with the applicant, to ascertain if 

the landscaping along the new road can be 'classed' as public open space and subject to maintenance 

by the management company.  

 

12.0 PUBLIC OPEN SPACE 

 

12.1 The application triggers a requirement for Public Open Space provision on site. This is in the 

form of a Local Area of Play. Contributions will also be required equivalent to 0.2 hectares for 

outdoor sports.  This will be subject to a Section 106 agreement.   

Page 90



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

The Town Council has advised that a play area adjoins the site which has limited equipment on. They 

stated that with a new estate, additional equipment will be required. It is considered that the LAP is 

necessary to serve the application site itself. 

 

13.0 ECOLOGY 

 
13.1 The application is accompanied by an ecological appraisal. This states that the site will have no 

adverse effects on any statutorily designated sites or indeed non statutory designated sites. None of 

the hedgerows are classified as important, and the grassland within the site is species poor, and of a 

type that are of widespread and common occurrence.  One tree contains a single feature suitable for 

use by roosting bats, and therefore the retention of the tree is recommended. Further bat roost surveys 

will be required if the tree is to be removed. Reference is made to owls nesting in one of the buildings, 

whilst the building is not located on this part of the site, it could be affected by the development.  

 

The Councils' Countryside Management Officer has been consulted on the application, and has 

recommended that the following conditions be imposed: 

 

13.2 Biodiversity method statement - Condition 

 

No development shall take place until a method statement for the creation of new wildlife features had 

been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. The content of the method statement 

shall include the following:- 

 

a) Purpose and objectives for proposed works 

b) Detailed designs/working methods necessary to achieve  stated objectives 

c) Extent and location of proposed works 

d) Timetable for implementation 

e) Persons responsible for implementation 

f) Initial aftercare and long term maintenance. 

 

The works shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved details and shall be retained in 

that manner. 

 

Protection of breeding birds during construction - Condition 

 
No removal of hedgerows, trees or shrubs shall take place between 1

st
 of March and 31

st
 of August 

inclusive, unless a competent ecologists has undertaken a careful, detailed check of vegetation for 

active birds nests immediately before the vegetation is cleared and provided written confirmation that 

no birds will be harmed and that there are appropriate measures in place to protect nesting bird 

interest on site. Any such written confirmation should be submitted to the local planning authority. 

 

Condition - Immediate pre-development Barn Owl re-survey 

 

No building and construction work shall be commenced unless evidence has been provided to the 

Local Planning Authority that no birds are nesting (at the development site to which this consent 

applies) immediately prior to work commencing. 

 

Reason: to ensure that nesting Barn Owls are not disturbed by development works and to enable the 

Local Authority to fulfil its obligation under Section 25 (1) of the Wildlife & Countryside Act (1981). 

 

Condition - Permanent provision within buildings 

 
A permanent accessible nesting space for Barn Owls shall be provided within one or more of the 

developed buildings to which this consent applies, and thereafter maintained, in accordance with 

details that shall have first been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 

Authority, and in line with natural England guidance. 

 

Page 91



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

Reason: to secure the long-term protection of the species 

 

14.0 ARCHAEOLOGY 

 

14.1 During consultation on the application, the County Archaeologist advised that the development 

lies within an area of high potential for the presence of archaeological remains relating to settlement 

and burial activity dating from the prehistoric and Roman periods. The area lies at the interface 

between the Tabular Hills and the wetlands of the Vale of Pickering. In view of this a geophysical 

survey together with trial trenching was required.  

 

14.2 The recommended work was carried out by the applicants, which included 11 trenches. Four of 

the eleven trenches contained archaeological features which pre-dated the medieval ridge and furrow.  

These features provided evidence for the survival of significant archaeological remains relating to an 

Iron Age/Romano British system of ditches, enclosures and settlement. Therefore there is high 

potential for the ground disturbing works associated with the development to encounter further 

significant archaeological remains. It is therefore recommended that a scheme of archaeological 

mitigation recording is undertaken. In order to secure such a scheme, it is recommended that an 

appropriate condition be imposed. 

 

15.0 DRAINAGE 

 

15.1 The site lies within Flood Zone 1, and as such is not at risk of flooding. In relation to drainage, 

foul drainage will connect to the existing system on Firthland Road, and surface water will discharge 

to soakaways. The applicant has advised that the ground conditions are suitable.  Yorkshire Water has 

not objected to the proposal. The Environment Agency has not objected subject to the development 

being carried out in accordance with the submitted Flood Risk Assessment.  The Internal Drainage 

Board have been consulted and advised that they do not object. However if there is a change from the 

use of soakaways it may be necessary to make a commuted sum payment to upgrade the local ditch 

network. 

 

16.0 NOISE 

 
16.1 The site is situated  to the east of the industrial estate on Westgate Carr Road. In view of 

potential noise associated with it, the applicants carried out a noise survey. The Councils' 

Environmental Health Officer expressed concerns regarding the original details, and requested that 

further survey work be carried out. Furthermore no mitigation was proposed. She has advised  that 

complaints have been received by existing residents in the area in relation to noise from the industrial 

estate.  It is important that new residential developments close to industrial sites do not result in 

complaints that would ultimately harm the existing business or result in an unacceptable residential 

environment.  Detailed negotiations have been carried out with the applicant, and the latest plans 

include a landscape buffer on land to the extreme west of the proposed housing. This has been 

modelled, to take account of  the various noises sources and  the Councils' Environmental Health has 

confirmed that the mitigation proposed is acceptable 

 

17.0 LAND CONTAMINATION 

 

17.1 A preliminary geo-environmental investigation of the site was carried out, which included a 

wider area of land.  The report found that there were some potential sources of contamination on the 

site. This could have been as a result of a small back filled quarry. It is therefore recommended that if 

permission be granted, it be subject to a condition requiring a phase 2 investigation. 

 

18.0  REPRESENTATIONS 

 

18.1 13 letters have been received in relation to the application. The letters  are available for Members 

to view on the Councils' public access system. The following is however a list of the main points 

made: 

 

Page 92



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

objection  

Access and 

Parking  
 Access too near Anchorite Lane. Parking on Firthlands Road makes 

access difficult 

 Parking provision not acceptable 

 Additional traffic will cause problems, and the site is too far from 

amenities  

 Transport assessment not adequate 

 

Response  

The Highway Authority has been consulted on all aspects of the 

application process. They have requested changes which have been 

incorporated. The parking provision complies with North Yorkshire 

County Council standards .  See section 10.0 

 

 

Emergency 

access/pedestrian 

link 

Numbers 41 and 43 Firthland Road have access to their rear garages. What will 

stop motor bikes or cars using it ?  

response The access is for emergency vehicles only, and can be signed and bollarded 

as required near the entrance to the housing. The access to the garages is 

maintained 

 

 

Social Housing The social housing is all together and not spread through the site.  

 

Response 12 houses are located together, but directly opposite market housing, and 

with market housing to either side. A further 6 houses are situated further 

along the access road. It is considered that the spread and mix of houses 

together is acceptable. 

Neighbour 

amenity 

Including overlooking, increased risk of access to neighbours property, noise and 

light pollution,, impact on house prices. Particular concern regarding height of 

2.5 storey houses to rear of those on Firthland.  

Response Development inevitably increases activity. However the site is in a 

predominately  existing residential area, and the distances between 

dwellings complies with accepted standards. House prices are not a planning 

consideration. Neighbour impact is addressed in section 8.0 of this response. 

Officers agree that the 2.5 storey dwellings are high and sought to re-locate 

them. The applicants contend that this is the only location  they will work as 

a layout. Given the distance from the dwellings on Firthlands Road it is not 

considered that the development can be refused on neighbour impact 

grounds. 

Insufficient 

services 

E.g. lack of dentists/ doctors, schools, child care 

Response In relation to schools, County Education have requested contributions 

towards Pickering junior school. During work on the Ryedale Plan - Local 

Plan Strategy, there was no evidence of a shortfall in provision, however 

retention of GP's goes beyond what can be considered through this 

application. 

Landscape and 

impact on wildlife 

High density houses will have a devastating impact on wildlife and attractive 

open countryside. 

Response The application is accompanied by an ecological survey. This has been 

addressed in section 13 of the report.  

Public open space Development will deliver insufficient open space 

Response The POS accords with policy, and will also provide significant landscaping 

on the entrance to the site. Contributions will also be required. 

Is there a need? Not aware of increase in jobs 

Page 93



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

No new 

employment 

Response Principle of development and housing supply considered earlier in this 

report. Given the location of the site within a market town, it is not 

considered that lack of new jobs is a reason for refusing housing that 

accords with the spatial strategy of the development plan. 

Drainage Site becomes waterlogged. how will drainage cope 

 The site is Flood Zone 1 recommend SUDS to address flood risk issues 

Loss of 

agricultural Land 
The site is Greenfield land, however this in itself is not sufficient reason to 

refuse the application. It is Grade 3 land which is good to moderate.  The 

site is on land which is identified as having an agricultural land value of 

GIII with no differentiation between 3a and 3b, it cannot be assumed that 

the sites' development would not lead to a loss of some Best and Most 

Versatile Land . However, the land surrounding Pickering is GIII with an 

area of GII to the south. On balance, the loss of Best and Most Versatile 

Land on this site would not lead to an unacceptable loss of Best and Most 

Versatile Land, within the Pickering area. 

Loss of View Loss of View is not a material planning consideration 

  

 

• insufficient public open space. 

• Social housing all together making it possible for a bad image area. 

• Neighbour at 43 Firthland states he has access to the rear of his property. What prevents the path 

being used by cars and motor cycles 

 

19.0 CONTRIBUTIONS 

 
19.1 As detailed above, contributions will be required in respect of Public open space and affordable 

housing.  

 

19.2 In addition, the County Education Authority has advised that contributions  to take account of a 

shortfall of 11 spaces at Pickering Community Junior school are required. 

  

20.0 SUMMARY 

 
20.1 The Council can demonstrate a 5 year supply of land. As such when considering the planning 

balance, housing supply is not an overriding reason why the site should be brought forward at this 

stage. Nevertheless, the site performs generally well and its limited development accords with the 

strategic locational polices in the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  It is of note that the approval of 

such sites for housing in sustainable localities help to maintain the overall supply of sites. 

 

The application was validated on November 20th 2014. Officers had significant concerns regarding 

the layout of the application as submitted. It has been a long process, but it is now considered that 

significant improvements from the original scheme have been made.   This is in particular in relation 

to the provision of driveways to the side of some dwellings, which provides a less car dominated 

approach together with the submission of a meaningful landscaping scheme.  There are however 

unresolved issues in relation to the size of the proposed affordable housing, and comments from the 

Police Designing Out Crime Officer. As such the recommendation is pending. It is hoped to update 

members with further information in the Late papers or at their meeting. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Recommendation Pending  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 94



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

Background Papers: 

 

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

Item Number: 9 

Application No: 15/01290/MFUL 

Parish: Thornton-le-Dale Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Express Coach Repairs Ltd (Mr Simon Sheader) 

Proposal: Change of use of agricultural land to a holiday campsite to include siting 

of 6no. timber shepherd huts for self contained holiday accommodation, 

ancillary timber reception building and timber utility laundry building, 

formation of wildlife pond, alteration to existing vehicular site access and 

onsite access tracks 

Location: Land At Ordmerstones Lane Thornton-Le-Dale Pickering North Yorkshire  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  29 February 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  1 February 2016 

Case Officer:  Alan Hunter Ext: Ext 276 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council Object  

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend refusal  

Tree & Landscape Officer Object  

Countryside Officer Object  

Archaeology Section No known archaeological constraint.  

Vale Of Pickering Internal Drainage Boards Observations made  

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) Comments made  

Land Use Planning Comments made  

Caravan (Housing) No objection but informative to be added  

 

Neighbour responses: Mr Stuart Maw,  

 

 

 

SITE: 

 

The application site comprises  agricultural land currently used for grazing. The site is located to the 

south of Thornton le Dale and within the Vale of Pickering Historic Landscape Character Area. There 

is a classified road (Thornton Road C67) located to the eastern side of the site. The site approximately 

measures 260m in length by 70m in width and has a total area of approximately 1.76 hectares. There 

is an existing field shelter located to the north east of the site, with established field hedges on the 

site’s perimeters. Recent planting has been undertaken on the west and east within the site, however 

this is mainly low level planting that does not afford any screening of the site. 

 

The application site is located within Flood Zone 1, the lowest flood risk classification. The site is 

also not within an area of known archaeological significance.  A public footpath is located beyond the 

north and west boundaries of the site. 

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

Planning permission is sought for the change of use of agricultural land to a holiday campsite to 

include the siting of 6no. timber shepherd huts for self contained holiday accommodation, ancillary 

timber reception building and timber utility laundry building, formation of wildlife pond, alteration to 

existing vehicular site access and on-site access tracks. 

 

The 6 no.  proposed shepherd huts will each measure 5.5 m by 2.2m and be  2.5m to their highest 

point. The utility building will have a footprint of  4m by 2.8m and be  2.5m  in height. 

 

Page 148

Agenda Item 9



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

The access to the site is a central position along the eastern boundary, which involves the removal of 

the majority of the Hawthorn hedge on the eastern boundary and its re-planting approximately 2m 

further into the site, fronting a splayed access . The access into the site leads north to a track that runs 

parallel to the northern boundary. An amenity building is proposed to the north eastern corner of the 

site, with three Shepherd huts in a central spur from the access track, and a further three Shepherd 

huts proposed on the western side of the site adjacent to a proposed pond.  The pond is proposed to 

measure 40m in length by 20m in width and have an average depth of 0.8m and an approximate area 

of 540m2. The agent has calculated that this will result in 432m2 of excavated soil that will be spread 

evenly across the site. 

 

The buildings are to be constructed of sawn redwood feather edge cladding in natural, unpainted 

timber finish under curved corrugated galvanised steel roofs. Double glazed timber windows and 

painted timber french doors are proposed. 

 

A Klargester package treatment plant is proposed under the site, with its outfall to a soakaway also on 

the site. 

 

Sporadic planting throughout the site is proposed. This will comprise hawthorn, silver birch, beech, 

golden willow and wild roses and comprise 25 plants in total. 

 

HISTORY: 

 
There is no planning history on this site. 

 

POLICY: 

 

National Policy 

 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2012 

National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) 2014 

 

Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP7 -Tourism 

Policy SP13 – Landscapes 

Policy SP14 – Biodiversity 

Policy SP16 – Design 

Policy SP17 – Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources 

Policy SP19 – Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

Policy SP20 – Generic Development Management Issues 

Policy SP21 – Occupancy Restrictions 

 

APPRAISAL: 

 
The main considerations in relation to this application are: 

• The principle of the proposed development; 

• The impact of the proposals upon the surrounding historic landscape; the Vale of Pickering;  

• The siting, scale and design of the proposed units; 

• Highway safety; 

• The impact of the proposals upon the amenity of neighbours; 

• Ecology and Biodiversity; and 

• Drainage. 

 

This application is a 'Major' application and is to be determined by Planning Committee. 

 

 

Page 149



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

The principle of the proposed development 

 

Policy SP8 – Tourism of the Local Plan Strategy states: 

 

‘Tourism in Ryedale will contribute to a sustainable and diverse economy. The Council will seek to 

encourage sustainable tourism which minimises its environmental impact on the District. 

 

This will be achieved by supporting: 

 

• The provision of a range and choice of quality tourist accommodation 

• The business plans and operational requirements of existing tourist and visitor attractions, 

and event arenas where appropriate* 

• Encouraging all year round tourism subject to the occupancy conditions set out in Policy 

SP21 

• Tourism in areas where potential is significantly underdeveloped, in particular, Malton and 

Norton and the Wolds 

• Cultural and creative businesses in Ryedale inspired by Ryedale’s unique environment 

• The role of Pickering, Helmsley and Thornton-le-Dale as key visitor destinations as well as 

gateways to tourism and recreational opportunities in northern Ryedale including the North 

York Moors National Park. The impact of tourism on these communities will be managed 

particularly in relation to car parking, traffic management, local facilities and services 

 

Furthermore Policy SP18 also states: 

 

'New tourist attractions will be supported where they do not undermine the character of the area or 

prejudice the quality of the natural or built environment. Attractions that will attract large numbers of 

visitors should be accessible by a choice of means of transport. 

 

The following types of tourist accommodation will be supported in the following locations: 

 

The wider open countryside 
Appropriate expansion of an existing hotel, guest house, public house, farm house, holiday cottage or 

similar establishment 

 

• Re-use of traditional rural buildings 

• New touring caravan and camping sites and static caravan and chalet self-catering 

accommodation and extensions to existing facilities that can be accommodated without an 

unacceptable visual intrusion and impact on the character of the locality’ 

 

The proposal is for high-end scheme of 6 no. Shepherd Huts. Policy SP8 contains strong support in 

principle for new tourism development in this area of the Vale of Pickering and Thornton le Dale in 

particular. The North York Moors National Park and other tourist attractions are also accessible by car 

from the site. However this support in principle has to be considered alongside its landscape impact 

and other Development Management Issues. 

 

Landscape impact 

 

The site is located within the Vale of Pickering Historic Landscape, Policy SP13 – Landscapes states: 

 

‘Development proposals should contribute to the protection and enhancement of distinctive elements 

of landscape character that are the result of historical and cultural influences, natural features and 

aesthetic qualities including: 

 

• The distribution and form of settlements and buildings in their landscape setting 

• The character of individual settlements, including building styles and materials 

Page 150



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

• The pattern and presence of distinctive landscape features and natural elements (including 

field boundaries, woodland, habitat types, 

• landforms, topography and watercourses) 

• Visually sensitive skylines, hill and valley sides 

• The ambience of the area, including nocturnal character, level and type of activity and 

tranquillity, sense of enclosure/exposure 

 

The Council will work with landowners and statutory agencies to encourage land management 

practises that will protect and reinforce landscape character across the District and proposals which 

seek to restore areas of degraded landscape or individual landscape elements will be supported. 

 

Outside of those landscapes protected by national landscapes designations, the Council will carefully 

consider the impact of development proposals on the following broad areas of landscape which are 

valued locally: 

 

• The Wolds Area of High Landscape Value 

• The Fringe of the Moors Area of High Landscape Value 

• The Vale of Pickering 

 

It also states: 

 

'The Vale of Pickering, the Wolds and the Fringe of the Moors are of significant historic landscape 

value and loss or degradation of the elements that are integral to their historic landscape character 

make these landscapes particularly sensitive to change.’ 

 

The Tree and Landscape Officer has assessed this application and stated: 

 

‘Object for the following reason: The site is within a linear field system off Thornton Lane which has 

traditional roadside hedges along its length. The requirement for the removal of most of the roadside 

hedge for highway reasons and its replacement behind the visibility splay will form an interruption in 

the prevailing landscape pattern and also provide short-term views into the site.’ 

 

Furthermore, Policy SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy states: 

 
‘New development will respect the character and context of the immediate locality and the wider 

landscape/townscape character in terms of physical features and the type and variety of existing uses   

 

Proposed uses and activity will be compatible with the existing ambience of the immediate locality 

and the surrounding area and with neighbouring land uses and would not prejudice the continued 

operation of existing neighbouring land uses. 

 

The immediate area is generally characterised as flat agricultural land, with relatively small 

rectangular shaped fields. These fields generally have field hedges interspersed with trees and the land 

is mainly used for grazing or arable production. The immediate area is generally undeveloped with the 

exception of agricultural development.  

 

The introduction of the proposed development is considered to be at odds with the historic character 

of this landscape. This concern relates to the removal of the existing field hedge providing clear views 

of the site from Thornton Road. The splayed access and re-planted hedge will also introduce an 

element which is not characteristic on this rural lane or other accesses onto Thornton Road. The new 

access and trackway stretching across the length of the site will also be visible, at least in the short 

term and appear as a unnatural feature within the landscape. The existing perimeter hedges are patchy 

and will allow views into the site from public vantage points. Should the application be considered 

favourably the strengthening of these boundaries will be required. It is recognised that the Shepherd 

Huts are to be constructed of timber, a natural material. However the arrangement of the 6 units in the 

middle of the field is considered to appear as an alien feature.  

Page 151



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

It is not unusual to have occasional field shelters but these are usually on their own and in the corners 

of fields or adjacent to field buildings. The planting already undertaken and the proposed planting is 

not considered to add to the historic character of this site or the wider area. As a result of the above 

assessment  the proposed development is considered to be contrary to the requirements of Policy SP13 

of the Local Plan Strategy.  

 

Furthermore, the introduction of the proposed use, (given the openness of the site) is considered to be 

contrary to the requirements of Policy SP20. This relates to the operation of the units, particularly the 

associated access, parking areas, and nocturnal activity associated with the proposed development,  

such as external lighting. These factors without a reasonable level of landscape screening are 

considered to make the proposal in this case contrary to the requirements of Policy SP20 of the Local 

Plan Strategy. 

 
The siting, design and scale of the units 

 

The design and scale of the individual units and amenity building is not considered to be in conflict 

with Policy SP16. There is considered to be no objection to the formation of the proposed pond. 

 

Impact upon the amenity of the nearby properties 

 

A letter of objection has been received from a resident who farms the adjoining field for arable and 

pasture purposes, advising of his operations and how they can affect the amenity of the proposed 

development. The objector also seeks confirmation that the boundaries will be maintained to prevent 

dogs damaging livestock. The objector also makes the point that there are other tourism facilities 

nearby.  The agent has responded to state that the compatibility of the two uses is acceptable in their 

opinion and is part of the rural experience intended for the proposed development. The maintenance 

of fences is a private issue between land owners. The availability of other tourism sites is not 

considered to be a material consideration in this case. 

 

The nearest residential property, Chester Villa is  200m to the south of the application site. It is also 

considered that there will be a satisfactory level of amenity available for the tourism use. 

 
Highway Safety 

 

The Parish Council has objected to the application as they are concerned at the speed of vehicles 

passing the site and the safety of pedestrians travelling from the site to Thornton le Dale. 

Policy SP20 states: 

 

‘Access, Parking and Servicing 

Access to and movement within the site by vehicles, cycles and pedestrians would not have a 

detrimental impact on road safety, traffic movement or the safety of pedestrians and cyclists. 

Information will be required in terms of the positioning and treatment of accesses and circulation 

routes, including how these relate to surrounding footpaths and roads 

 

Access into and within buildings will be expected to be of a standard that allows all to access the 

building unimpeded 

 

Development will be expected to comply with the relevant standards in place at the time a planning 

application is made to the Local Planning Authority. A Travel Plan may be required to set out how 

the use of the building can be made more sustainable by reducing the need to travel by private car 

Where applicable, proposals will need to demonstrate the inclusion of safe and effective vehicular 

servicing arrangements’ 

 

The Highway Authority has objected to the application because the access to the site cannot achieve a 

visibility of 215m measured 2.4m from the carriageway in both directions.  

Page 152



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

The maximum visibility is 154m in a southerly direction. The Highway Authority considers that this 

situation is unacceptable in terms of highway safety as such a junction would not be likely to operate 

within safe visibility limits . They also state: 

 

‘The existing access is onto a de-restricted, unlit section of public highway with no separate footway 

provision and along which travelling vehicle speeds are observed to be high. The Highway Authority 

would therefore raise a concern that the proposed development on the site is remote from any public 

transport services, some considerable distance from the community of Thornton le Dale with its 

amenities and attractions etc., and it is anticipated that little or no trips will be undertaken to and 

from the site other than by means of private motor car and would thus go against the thrust of Section 

4 of the National Planning Policy Framework.’ 

 

In view of this, it is also considered that the proposal is in a location that is inaccessible by modes of 

transport other than a car. The proposal is therefore not considered sustainable in terms of Policy 

SP19 of the Local Plan Strategy and contrary to the requirements of Policy SP20. 

 

The agent has responded to the Highway Authority’s recommendation and this has been forwarded to 

the Highway Authority. It is understood verbally, that this has not changed their position. 

 

Ecology and Biodiversity 

 

The Countryside Management Officer has stated: 

 

‘There is likelihood that a legally protected species such as bats, breeding birds and great crested 

newts may be adversely affected by this proposed development. There is no information on the 

existing wildlife value of the site, whether any protected species or habitats would be impacted by the 

development or if biodiversity enhancement options are proposed in line with NPPF and local plan 

policy SP14. The site is presently grassland with hedged boundaries, there is an existing field corner 

pond approximately 160m to the SW of the proposed development and some of the fields in the area 

are known to provide loafing habitant for Golden Plover which are a qualifying species for the 

nearby North Yorkshire Moors SPA. I therefore object to this application on the grounds of lack of 

biodiversity information.’ 

 

The agent has responded to establish if it is possible to condition such wildlife surveys. The 

Countryside Management Officer has confirmed that this is not possible in accordance with NPPF and 

Biodiversity and Geological Conservation Circular 06/2005. These surveys have to be undertaken 

before an application is assessed (if the application is to be considered favourably). It is also pointed 

out that Ryedale District Council is a Public Body under the NERC Act 2006 and has a duty to ensure 

to ensure its actions do not lead to harm to protected species.  

 

In view of the above there is considered to be insufficient information submitted to assess the impact 

of the proposal upon biodiversity and ecology, the proposal is therefore contrary to the requirements 

of Policy SP14 of the Local Plan Strategy. 

 

Drainage 

 

The proposal is for foul water to be treated by a on-site package treatment plant which will be drained 

to an on-site soakaway. There is considered to be no objection to this in principle. 

 

Yorkshire Water has no objection to the proposal, and the Internal Drainage Board does not raise any 

objection. They do however state that should the applicants wish to drain to a watercourse under their 

control, their consent is required. 

 

Other comments 

 

If this application were to be considered favourably, the occupancy conditions detailed in Policy SP21 

would need to be imposed. 

Page 153



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

 

In view of the above objections in terms of landscape impact, highway safety, the accessibility of the 

site, and ecology this application cannot be supported by Officers and refusal is recommended.. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Refusal  
 

1 The proposed development by virtue of the removal of the hedge and its re-planting together 

with the introduction of the proposed timber shepherd huts and amenity building and the 

formation of the new track along with its associated usage during both day time and night 

time is considered to adversely affect the character and appearance of the historic landscape 

of the Vale of Pickering. The proposed development is therefore contrary to the 

requirements of Policy SP13 and Policy SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy. 

  

2 The proposed development is not served by pedestrian or public transport links and it is 

therefore considered to be inaccessible by modes of transport other than a motor vehicle. 

The proposed development is therefore considered to be unsustainable development in this 

location and contrary to Policy SP19 and Policy SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy. 

  

3 The access, by which vehicles associated with this proposal would leave and rejoin the 

County highway, is unsatisfactory since the required visibility of 2.4 metres by 215 metres 

cannot be achieved at the junction with the County highway in a southerly direction. In the 

opinion of the Local Planning Authority the intensification of use which would result from 

the proposed development is unacceptable in terms of highway safety. The proposal is 

therefore contrary to the requirements of Policy SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy. 

   

4 There has been insufficient information submitted to assess the impact of the proposed 

development upon ecology and biodiversity. The proposed development is therefore 

contrary to the requirements of Policy SP14 of the Local Plan Strategy. 

  

5 Background Papers: 

  

 Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

 Local Plan Strategy 2013 

 National Planning Policy Framework 

 Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

 

 

Item Number: 10 

Application No: 15/01323/MFUL 

Parish: Slingsby Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Mandale Construction Ltd 

Proposal: Erection of 6no. two bedroom dwellings, 7no. three bedroom dwellings 

and 5no. four bedroom dwellings with associated garaging, parking and 

amenity areas and formation of vehicular access onto High Street 

Location: Land East Of High Street Slingsby Malton  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  18 February 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  18 February 2016 

Case Officer:  Alan Hunter Ext: Ext 276 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

   

Highways North Yorkshire Views awaited    

Building Conservation Officer No objection 

Parish Council No objection - concerns about drainage    

North Yorkshire Education Authority  No views received 

Housing Services Support  

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) Comments made  

Land Use Planning Condition to be attached  

Archaeology Section A scheme of archaeological mitigation recording should 

be  undertaken and a condition appended.  

Countryside Officer Condition to be added to any planning permission 

granted  

Vale Of Pickering Internal Drainage Boards Recommendations made  

Tree & Landscape Officer  Views awaited 

Environmental Health Officer  No views received 

 
Neighbour responses: Mr Ben Rayner, Mr Kevin Randerson,  

 

 

 

SITE: 

 

The application site is a former Haulage Yard located within both the village development limits and 

the Slingsby conservation area.  It measures approximately 70m in depth at its greatest, and 70m in 

width at its greatest across the front of the site. There is also an area of land that wraps around the rear 

of Part Way Cottage and West Cottage on High Street on the north-eastern side.  The site measures 

approximately 0.48 hectares.  There is a stonewall that fronts High Street with a steep embankment 

immediately in front of the wall. There is also a significant increase in land levels from the road level 

on High Street to the site. A hardcore base exists across the majority of the haulage site. The site is 

also within an area of known archaeological importance. 

 

Immediately opposite the site are two pairs of brick and rendered semi-detached properties, the 

remainder of the properties along High Street and along Malton Road (B1257) are either detached, 

semi-detached or terraced dwellings in stone under either clay pantile or slate roofs.  

 

 

 

 

Page 166

Agenda Item 10



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

Full planning permission is sought to develop the site for residential properties. This includes:- 

 

• 5 no. 4-bed dwellings;  

 

• 7 no. 3-bed dwellings ; 

 

• 6 no. 2-bed dwellings; 

 

The 4-bed properties have the largest footprints at 8.6m by 8.6m. The smallest 2 bed unit (Plot 3) has 

a footprint of 4.4 m by 8m. The eaves and ridge heights of the proposed dwellings vary between 4.7m 

- 5.7m  and  7.5m -10.3m respectively.  

 

The applicants propose to use natural stone for the properties under slate and red pantile roofs.  The 

materials to be used for the windows, doors and ground surfacing materials are yet to be confirmed. 

 

A detached single garage is proposed for Plots 9,10,11 and 13 having a footprint of 3.2m by 6.2m and 

being 2m to the eaves height and 4.4m to the ridge height. The garages are proposed to be constructed 

of random coursed stone under a clay pantile roof. 

 

It is proposed to cut into the stonewall on High Street and create a central vehicular and pedestrian 

access to the site from High Street.  There will then be properties fronting High Street to either side of 

the proposed access road, which will lead into a cul-de-sac.  There will be a central rectangular area 

surrounded by  properties. Attempts have been made to locate car parking and garages behind 

properties so views of the scheme are not dominated by vehicles. 

 

Information regarding ground floor levels on the site, boundary details, and how the existing stone 

wall is proposed to be treated is outstanding.  

 

To either side of the access are 4 properties, which are proposed to be located behind the existing 

stonewall. Plot 4 features a gable fronting High Street. Within the site are two properties at either side 

of the cul-de-sac, and 4 properties along the rear elevation, 2 further properties are proposed in the 

north-eastern corner of the site. 

 

 

HISTORY: 

 

2015: Planning permission approved for 24 no. dwellings. 

 

2006: Planning application withdrawn for the erection of 26 dwelling units. 

 

2006: Conservation Area consent approved for the demolition of an industrial building. 

 

1997: Planning application withdrawn for the change of use of yard from general haulage repair and 

maintenance of commercial vehicles with ancillary sales of commercial vehicle parts to non-ancillary 

sales of vehicle parts.  Installation of drainage interceptors. 

 

 

POLICY: 

 

National Policy Guidance 

 

National Planning Policy Framework 2012 (NPPF) 

National Planning Policy Guidance 2014 (NPPG)  

 

Page 167



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

Local Plan Strategy  

 

Policy SP1 – General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 

Policy SP2 – Delivery and Distribution of New Housing 

Policy SP3 – Affordable Housing 

Policy SP4 – Type and Mix of New Housing 

Policy SP11 – Community Facilities and Services 

Policy SP12 - Heritage 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP14 - Biodiversity 

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP17 – Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources 

Policy SP18 – Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 

Policy SP19 – Presumption in favour of Sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 – Generic Development Management Issues 

Policy SP22 – Planning Obligations, Developer Contributions and the Community Infrastructure Levy 

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

The main considerations in relation to this application are:- 

 

• The principle of the development proposed; 

 

• Whether the proposed development in terms of the  number of dwellings proposed, density, 

scale, heights, design, relationship to existing residential development, layout and character 

are appropriate in this area; 

 

• Whether the proposal either preserves or enhances the character and appearance of the 

Conservation Area; 

 

• The impact of the proposals upon the setting of Listed Buildings 

 

• Affordable housing provision; 

 

• Open space provision; 

 

• Drainage; 

 

• Highway safety;  

 

• Archaeology; 

 

• Ecology; 

 

• Impact on the amenity of surrounding neighbours;  

 

• Contaminated land implications; 

 

• Community Infrastructure Levy; 

 

• Whether the proposed dwellings will have a satisfactorily level of residential amenity  

 

This proposal is classed as a 'Major' application and has be determined by the Planning Committee. 

The statutory determination date has been extended from the 18 February 2016 until 29th February 

2016, so the application can be determined by this Committee meeting, and to allow for the 

Page 168



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

completion of a S106 agreement if the application is approved planning permission. At the time of 

writing, the following information is awaited: 

 

• Details of the existing and proposed levels on the site; 

• Confirmation of the window and door materials; 

• Confirmation of the ground surfacing materials; 

• How surface water is to be drained from the site, including a detailed scheme to ensure this is 

viable and that it will not unacceptably increase the proposed site levels; and 

• Precise details of the treatment of the existing stone wall, including any reduction in height. 

 

A second set of revised plans have also just been received in regard to increasing the floor size  of 

Plots 1,2,15,and 16. These are currently being re-consulted upon until 18 February 2016.  The 

changes relate to the minimum size of 79m2 for a  2-bedroom 4-person property that a Registered 

Provider would accept as on-site Affordable Housing. 

 

Members will therefore appreciate that the appraisal of this application cannot be complete at this 

stage, and a further Updated Report will follow on the Late Observations List. Any final 

recommendation made will be subject to the expiry of the consultation period on the 18 February 

2016. 

 

There have been objections submitted from 2 residents, these raise the following issues:  

 

• Welcome the reduction in the numbers from 24  to 18; 

• Highway safety; 

• Site access; 

• A suggested access position to the north; 

• Comment in relation to land levels; 

• A plan is required showing how the proposed development will affect residents is required;  

• Local contractors should be used on the proposed development; 

• Time frame for development  

• A copy of the applicants accounts and concerns at whether this project is too large for the 

 company; 

• On-street parking for existing properties; 

• Views from existing properties; 

• Roof pitch scale and heights of properties; 

• The impact of the proposal upon trees; 

• The appearance of the archways 

• Design, scale and roof pitch of the detached garages 

• No details on boundary treatments;  

• Separation distances from Plots 10,11, and 12. 

 

The principle of the proposed development 

 

Planning permission was granted for the erection of 24 dwellings on this site in 2015.  The Local Plan 

Strategy identifies Slingsby as a 'Service Village' and a focus for new residential development. The 

village has a School, Village Shop, Public House, and is regarded as a sustainable location for new 

residential development. The site is within the development limits of Slingsby and the principle of 

residential development on the site is therefore considered acceptable. 

 

Whether the proposed development in terms of the  number of dwellings proposed, density, scale, 

heights, design, relationship to existing residential development, layout and character are appropriate 

in this area; 

 

The site has a lawful haulage yard use on High Street, Slingsby, with its current access onto the 

B1257. Full planning permission is sought to create a new access from High Street into the site. This 

involves creating an opening into the existing stonewall, with excavations into the land in order to 

Page 169



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

create the proposed access road. The proposed layout includes a terrace of 4 properties High Street 

leading into an access road with a pair of semi-detached dwellings on either side. In the centre of the 

site is a turning head with a terrace of 4 dwellings against the back (eastern) side. A further access 

will lead from the central turning head into the north-eastern area of the site that wraps around the rear 

of the site where there will be two properties. On the earlier approval the use of stonewalls within the 

site allowed glimpsed views of the dwellings in this area from the main turning head. Details of the 

boundary details are awaited. 

 

Following negotiations the general design of the proposed dwellings is considered to relate well to the 

character and form within Slingsby. The scheme has retained elements from the approved scheme that 

picked up on the local vernacular in Slingsby, such as the gable fronting High Street with the ground 

and first floor windows.  The archways within the inner areas are considered to add interest to the 

scheme, and there are cartshed openings that have been re-used elsewhere in the Village. The use of 

natural stone, slate and clay pantile is also considered to be representative of the village. The scale of 

the proposed dwellings has been reduced from that originally designed, and there is considered to be 

no objection to the scheme in this regard. The siting, form and relationship with surrounding 

development is considered to be acceptable. 

 

The previously approved application had a much denser layout of 24 dwellings. It is understood that 

the applicant has since agreed to purchase the application site and considers that 18 dwellings is the 

most efficient use of the site in terms of viability. Apartments, which are an efficient use of the land 

were included in the approved scheme. It is understood that there was no need or interest shown for 

these properties. As such, a scheme without apartments will inevitably not have the same level of 

density. The proposed built form of this scheme, and locations of buildings is very similar to the 

approved scheme. The density of this scheme is 37.5 dwellings to the hectare. Taking into account the 

form and character of the area, this density is considered to be acceptable. When the earlier 

application was considered, planning policy contained higher density target. 

 

Access and Highway safety 

 

The creation of a new vehicular access road in order to develop the site in depth in the same position 

was previously considered acceptable. The Highway Authority has requested auto-tracks showing 

how large vehicles can turn within the site. These have been received and sent to the Highway 

Authority for their views, at the time of preparing this report their views have not been received. It is 

anticipated that their views will be included within the Updated Report. 

 

One of the main objections relates to the impact of the proposed access to the site and its affect upon 

on-street parking. This is noted, however, there is no automatic right to park on the public highway. 

Such parking is undertaken at the discretion of the local Highway Authority. Furthermore, the access 

position is consistent with that approved for 24 dwellings. Officers have therefore not sought to try 

and negotiate an amended access position. 

 

Whether the proposal will either preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the Slingsby 

Conservation Area 

 

There is a duty to have special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character 

and appearance of Conservation Areas (S72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) 

Act 1990. The area at present is an existing concreted forecourt belonging to a haulage yard, and its 

appearance is considered detrimental to the appearance of the designated area.  This planning 

application will benefit the appearance of the area by the removal of the haulage wagons from within 

the site along with the existing modern industrial building, which is located on the site at present. It is 

anticipated that the proposed development should be able to demonstrate enhancement to the 

character and appearance of the Conservation Area. However, In the absence of the outstanding 

details it is not considered possible at the current time to conclude on this aspect. 

 

The impact of the proposed development upon the setting of nearby Listed Buildings 

 

Page 170



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

There are two Grade 2 listed buildings nearby, Slingsby Heights and West Flatts Farmhouse. S66 of 

the Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Act 1990 imposes a duty on Local Planning 

Authority to have special regard to the desirability of preserving the setting of Listed Buildings. 

Policy SP12 also requires the Local Planning Authority to assess the impact of the development 

proposals upon heritage assets. The redevelopment of this haulage yard for residential development 

purposes, is considered to be capable of having a neutral impact upon the setting of the nearby listed 

buildings. The Buildings Conservation Officer has no objection to the application. 

 

Whether the proposals will have a satisfactory level of residential amenity  

 

All of the proposed dwellings  have some  garden area. The 8 units on that front onto High Street have 

the least amenity space. Whilst the level of residential amenity for these units is less than ideal, this is 

required to be considered alongside the POS commuted sum of £45,324 towards the provision of  

communal facilities  within the immediate vicinity. On balance the scheme is considered to be 

acceptable.  

 

It is considered that a condition will need to be imposed however to withdraw the 'permitted 

development rights' of these properties to prevent ancillary structures and alterations to these 

properties without the benefit of planning permission in order to protect the character and appearance  

of the area and to retain reasonable levels of garden space. 

 

Affordable Housing 

 

There is a requirement under current planning policy for 35% of the dwellings to be affordable 

housing.). That equates to 6.3 units. The Housing Department has confirmed that this should 

comprise: 

 

• 6. No 2 bed  4- person dwellings with a minimum size of 79m2;and 

• A commuted payment equating to £17,700 representing the shortfall in provision 

 

The developer has submitted a Viability Assessment, which the Local Planning Authority has had 

independently appraised. The applicant's Viability Assessment includes a variety of options including 

the provision of Starter Homes, in conjunction with onsite Affordable Housing. The provision of 

Starter Homes is not required under the adopted Development Plan, which specifically requires on-

site Affordable Housing in this case. It is therefore considered that the provision should be on-site 

Affordable Housing. The independent appraisal has confirmed that 4 onsite Affordable Housing units  

is viable. The Housing Department has confirmed that this should comprise: 

 

• 2no 2-bed intermediate dwellings being a minimum of 79m2 

• 2no. 2-bed dwellings for rent being a minimum of 79m2 

 

A S106 legal agreement is required to ensure this Affordable Housing is provided and transferred to a 

Registered Provider and remains in perpetuity.  

 

Public Open Space 

 

In accordance with Policy SP11 of the Local Plan Strategy  a contribution towards Public Open Space 

is required. It is not considered appropriate in this case to be accommodated on site. An off-site 

contribution of £45,324 has been calculated and agreed with the applicant. 

 

This payment also needs to be secured via a S106 agreement, if Members are minded to approve the 

application. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 171



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

Trees and Landscaping 

 

The Tree and Landscape Officers views are currently awaited and Members will be updated. 

 

Community Infrasture Levy(CIL) 

 

If this application is determined after 29th February 2016 this development is chargeable to CIL at 

£45m2, excluding the Affordable Housing. In this eventuality there would be no POS payment 

required. 

 

Drainage 

 

The foul water from the site is proposed to drain into the public sewer. Yorkshire Water requires 

developers to investigate  sustainable methods of draining surface water before considering using the 

mains. It is noted that there is a watercourse located nearby, which is managed by The Vale of 

Pickering Internal Drainage Board. Furthermore, the Drainage Board has stated that  the discharge of 

surface water should be restricted to 1.4 litres a second.  

 

The agent has been asked to confirm how surface water is to be drained, although no response has 

been received to date. This is because, even with surface water discharge into the mains, there will be 

a requirement for on-site attenuation. Given the already raised land levels Officers consider that it is 

necessary to understand how the on-site surface water drainage requirements can be accommodated 

on site and what impact this has upon proposed finished ground and floor levels.  

 

Contamination 

 

The 2005 Contamination Report has been re-submitted with this application. That report was 

considered by the Environment Health Officer previously who considered that further investigation 

work is required, but that it is not necessary for this to be undertaken prior to the grant of planning 

permission (should members approve this development). After discussions internally it is considered 

that the same condition is considered to address this issue and to ensure the site is suitably remediated 

for residential development. 

 

Ecology 

 

A Ecology report has been submitted for the site by Delta Simmons. The Countryside Management 

Officer has considered that report in detail and considers that the ecology and biodiversity issues on 

site can be addressed by a condition requiring compliance with the submitted Report. 

 

Archaeology 

 

NYCC - Heritage Services has identified that the site is located within an area of known 

archaeological significance. In the circumstances, they have requested a condition  regarding a 

scheme of archaeological recording is undertaken. 

 

Impact upon the residential amenity of adjoining properties 

 

In terms of the impact from the proposed development upon the residential amenity of adjoining 

neighbours, opposite the site are semi-detached properties and there is considered to be a satisfactory 

separation distance between these properties and the nearest proposed dwellings. To the north is a 

semi-detached cottage. The nearest unit will be approximately 23m from that property which is 

considered to be an acceptable distance. That property has a relatively large rear garden area, and 

whilst there will be some impact in terms of overlooking from the proposed development this is not 

considered to be objectionable given the location of the proposed dwellings and the separation 

distances involved. Neither is it considered that the two dwellings proposed in the north-eastern 

corner of the site would have a material adverse effect upon the residential amenity of the adjoining 

neighbours. The block of 4 units on the rear of the site will have some impact upon the rear garden 

Page 172



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

area of Croft House. However, there is an increase in the ground levels to the rear garden of Croft 

House together with mature landscaping on that boundary. Moreover there will be a minimum 

separation of 21m between Croft House and the nearest proposed unit. As such the proposed 

development is not considered to give rise to a material adverse effect upon that property in terms of 

scale and bulk or potential overlooking. It is not considered that the proposed dwellings would have 

an adverse impact upon Hunter’s Hill, as there would be a separation distance of 17m from its rear 

elevation and the first floor side gable of Plot 12 is also on substantially lower ground levels. Hunters 

Hill is also offset to Plot 13 to avoid potential overlooking. The property on the corner, Hardwick 

House (formerly Lowrys Restaurant) is closest to Plot 15. However by virtue of the side-on 

relationship there us not considered to be an adverse effect upon that property by virtue of the 

proximity (10.5m) or through potential overlooking. There is a back-to-back separation distance of 

22m between Harwick House and Plot 14.  

 
One of the objections raised the issue of the proximity of Plots 10,11,12 to their boundary. Plot 10 has 

a separation distance of 9m and Plots 11, and 12 - 10.6m. This is a side-on relationship to the garden. 

This is also consistent with the earlier approved layout. As stated above,  the closest is Plot 12 at 21m. 

Whilst there will be some impact, this arrangement of dwellings is not considered to be objectionable. 

Officers have sought to negotiate reductions in the heights of these properties and the detached 

garages as much as is possible. In summary, the impact from the proposed development is not 

considered to give rise to a material adverse effect upon the amenity of the adjoining neighbours that 

is sufficient to withhold consent. Moreover, the impact is not considered to be materially different to 

the approved scheme. 

 
Other issues 

 
NYCC - Education have been consulted regarding any contributions towards education provision. No 

response was received. 

 

The Parish Council has no objection to the proposed development, however they are concerned 

regarding the capacity of the existing system to accommodated additional foul and surface water. 

Members will appreciate from the above appraisal that this information is currently awaited from the 

agent. 

 

Of the outstanding issues raised by the objectors, the views from properties and the financial accounts 

of the applicant are not a material planning consideration. The comment in relation to the reduction in 

numbers is noted, as is the suggestion that local contractors should be used, however this is a matter 

for the developer. Officers cannot specify contractors based on location. There is no requirement that 

the construction of the development be included within a plan, however, if approved an informative 

could be imposed requesting that the applicant conforms to the expected standard of construction, 

known as The Considerate Constructors Scheme. The majority of the other issues raised have been 

appraised above or will be addressed in the Updated Report. 

 
Given the outstanding information identified above, a further Update Report will be sent with the late 

papers. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  To Follow  
 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

 

 

Item Number: 11 

Application No: 15/01502/MFUL 

Parish: Weaverthorpe Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Mr Steve Bannister 

Proposal: Erection of a general purpose agricultural storage building 

Location: Spaniel Farm Main Road Weaverthorpe Malton North Yorkshire YO17 

8HE 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  17 March 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  3 February 2016 

Case Officer:  Alan Hunter Ext: Ext 276 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Highways North Yorkshire No objection  

Parish Council No objection  

Tree & Landscape Officer No objection  

Archaeology Section No known archaeological constraint.  

Land Use Planning No comment  

 

Neighbour responses:  
 

 

 

SITE: 
 

The application site comprises a farmstead, which is located between Weaverthorpe and Butterwick 

on the C356 road.  The farmstead is located approximately 700m to the south of the classified road.  

There are two dwellings and a range of agricultural buildings at the farmstead together with a wind 

turbine on the eastern side.  The surrounding landscape is designated as an Area of High Landscape 

Value, being the Yorkshire Wolds. 

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

Planning permission is sought to erect a general-purpose agricultural storage building that will 

approximately measure 30.5m by 36.6m, with an eaves height of 7m, and be 12.9m to the ridge 

height.  The proposed building will be clad in dark green moduclad Kingspan sheeting under a box 

profile moduclad Kingspan sheeting in dark green with a galvanised insulated roller shutter and 

personnel door.   

 

The proposed building will be located immediately to the south of an existing building of a similar 

scale, design and materials. 

 

HISTORY: 
 

Planning history on the site includes: 

 

2014: Planning permission granted for the erection of an agricultural potato/grain store. 

 

2011: Planning permission granted for the erection of a 37.18m (overall tip height 53.88m) 330kw 

wind turbine to generate electricity for on farm use, together with associated access track, crane 

platform and sub-station. 

 

Page 191

Agenda Item 11



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

2008: Planning permission granted for a general purpose agricultural building. 

 

1989: Planning permission granted for the erection of a bungalow at Spaniel Farm. 

 

1982: Planning permission granted for the construction of an extension to existing dwelling to form a 

kitchen/dinning room with bedroom over. 

 

POLICY: 
 

National Policy Guidance  

 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) 

 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP9 - Land based rural economy 

Policy SP12 - Heritage 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

 

APPRAISAL: 

 
The main considerations in relation to this application are:- 

 

• the size, scale and design of the proposed building; 

• its impact upon the open countryside; 

• highway safety; and 

• archaeology. 

 

The proposed building has a floor area of approximately 1,100 square metres.  The intended use of the 

building is for storing potatoes. The agent states that the building has to accommodate a fork-lift truck 

which has meant the proposed building having an eaves height of 7m and a resultant ridge height of 

12.9m.  The building is to be located adjacent to existing buildings on an established farmstead.  The 

application site is elevated from the classified road to the north, and there some views of the 

farmstead at present.  There is a new tree plantation immediately to the west of the site and a new 

beech hedge along the site frontage with the C356.  By virtue of the landform and the position of 

existing buildings, the site of the proposed building is not considered to be readily visible from 

outside the site. The siting of the proposed building will be in very close proximity to existing 

buildings, and maintain this existing group of buildings. The building will be marginally higher than 

an existing building immediately to the north, however in the context of the existing buildings and 

surrounding landform this is not considered to be an issue. The intention is to excavate the ground to 

ensure the building is on the same footprint as the building immediately to the north. Given the levels 

change a condition is recommended regarding the finished floor levels of the proposed building. 

 

The design of the building is typical of a modern agricultural building, comprising enclosed sides 

under a pitched roof.  The metal sheeting proposed to be used on this building is considered to be 

representative of other modern agricultural buildings in Ryedale.  The dark green colour will also 

ensure that the building will be better integrated into the surrounding landscape and relate to the 

existing buildings on the site.  In view of the site of the proposed building being within close 

relationship to the existing farm buildings, along with its proposed dark green colouration, the 

development is considered to be acceptable in this location. 

 

Policy SP13 of the Local Plan Strategy seeks to protect the scenic qualities of the Yorkshire Wolds 

Area of High Landscape Value. There will be limited views of the proposal from the C356 and some 

Page 192



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

views from the unclassified public highway to the west, which are the main public vantage points.  

However, these views of the building will be within the context of an established group of buildings.  

The landscaping on, and around the site, will also help to screen the impact of this building.  The Tree 

& Landscape Officer has no objection to the proposed development. 

 

The residential properties on the site are in the applicants ownership and this proposal is relatively 

isolated from any other properties.  The proposal is not considered to have a material adverse effect 

upon the amenity of any residential properties. 

 

The Highway Authority considers the existing enlarged access onto the C356 to be acceptable, and 

has no objection to the proposal.   

 

The County archaeologist has no objection to the application and no response has been received from 

the Parish Council. 

 

In view of the above, the recommendation is one of approval subject to the expiry of the consultation 

period. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

2 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be 

agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to 

be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

   

 (NB Pursuant to this condition the applicant is asked to complete and return the attached 

proforma before the development commences so that materials can be agreed and the 

requirements of the condition discharged) 

   

 Reason:- To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

3 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted precise details of any 

external lighting shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. 

   

 Reason:- In order to protect the character of the area and to satisfy Policy SP20 of the 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

4 Prior to the commencement of the development precise details of the existing spot ground 

levels and finished floor levels measured in relation to a fixed datum point shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason:- In order to ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to reduce the impact upon 

the surrounding landscape and to satisfy Policies SP13 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local 

Plan Strategy. 

 

5 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

  

 2015/12/1 

Page 193



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

Background Papers: 

  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

 

 

Item Number: 12 

Application No: 15/01236/FUL 

Parish: Huttons Ambo Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: DH Group (Mr Sean Harrison) 

Proposal: Erection of two buildings to form 8no. units for B2 use together with 

formation of associated parking spaces. 

Location: Land At Cherry Farm Close Malton North Yorkshire  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  5 January 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  4 February 2016 

Case Officer:  Alan Hunter Ext: Ext 276 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Highways North Yorkshire Await amended documents before making a formal 

recommendation  

Parish Council Object  

Archaeology Section Recommend condition  

Highways England No views received to date  

Highways North Yorkshire Comments made and outsanding issues  

Land Use Planning No objection in principle - comments made  

Tree & Landscape Officer Comments made  

Environmental Health Officer No views received to date  

 
Neighbour responses: None 

 

 

 

SITE: 
 

The site is located on the Malton Enterprise Park, to the south of the B1248 approach to Malton.  

Outline planning permission was granted in December 2010 for B1, B2 and B8 uses.  Work has 

commenced on site and reserved matters has been approved for the first unit on site.  This plot is 

located immediately adjacent to the main site entrance close to the boundary with York Road.  The 

site is located within Flood Zone 1, being the lowest flood risk classification. 

 

PROPOSAL: 
 

This proposal seeks full planning permission for the erection of two buildings to form 8no. units for 

Use Class B2 use together with the formation of associated parking spaces.  

 

There are two buildings proposed, one containing 3 units (Units 6, 7 and 8) parallel to York Road 

measuring 25.6m in length by 15.3m in width and having a mono-pitch roof with an eaves height of  

6.8m and a ridge height of 7.5m. A second building containing 5 units (Units 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5) is 

proposed adjacent to the western boundary and measures 15.2m in width and 45.2m in length, also 

with a mono-pitch roof measuring 6.8m at eaves height and 7.5m at ridge height. 

 

Unit 1 has a floor area of  179m
2
, Units 2 - 5 an area of 111m

2
 and Units 6 - 8 an area of 116m

2
. 

 

It is proposed to construct the buildings of aluminium cladding panels over a blue/grey brick plinth up 

to 2.4m above finished floor level. In addition on some elevations are proposed to have a close 

boarded timber cladding system, particularly on the elevations facing York Road. The roof is 

proposed to be polyester powder coated aluminium trapezoidal roof system. 

Page 198

Agenda Item 12



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

 

A new access to this industrial/business park has been created from York Road, and access to both 

these building is proposed to be served by that existing access. Parking and turning areas are proposed 

on the inner sides mainly away from York Road. 

 

The agent has submitted the following documents with this application (these were submitted 

originally with the 2010 approved outline application):  

 

• Archaeological Assessment 

• Flood Risk Assessment 

• Ecological Assessment 

• Tree Survey 

• Transport Assessment 

 

In addition, the agent has submitted a Design & Access Statement that seeks to justify the design 

approach taken in this case. 

 

HISTORY: 
 

13/00595/MREM: Erection of a production unit and associated offices, parking, hardstanding and 

turning areas and landscaping (Outline approval 10/00150/MOUT refers) 

 

10/00150/MOUT: Outline planning permission for Business (B1); General Industrial (B2) and 

Storage and Distribution (B8) - Approved 22.10.2010 

 

POLICY: 
 

National Policy Guidance 

 

National Planning Policy Framework  (NPPF) 2012 

National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) 2014 

 

Ryedale Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP6 - Delivery and Distributing of Employment Land and Premises 

Policy SP9 - Land-Based and Rural Economy 

Policy SP13 -Landscapes 

Policy SP14 - Biodiversity 

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP17 - Managing 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

 

APPRAISAL: 

 

The main considerations in relation to this application are: 

 

• The principle of B2 development; 

• Access/parking; 

• Design approach; 

• Landscaping; 

• Impact upon the amenity of nearby properties; 

• Landscape impact; 

• Archaeology; and  

• Drainage. 

 

Page 199



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

The principle of development has been accepted on this site through the grant of the original planning 

permission in 2010.  Whilst the site is located outside of any identified development limit in the 

adopted Ryedale Local Plan, Members considered there was a demonstrable need to provide an 

additional supply of employment land to meet existing and future needs.  This site was identified as a 

priority site in two separate employment land studies carried out in 2006 by Knight Frank and updated 

in 2010 by Entec. Policy SP6 of the Local Plan Strategy also seeks to focus 80% of new 

industrial/business development in Malton/Norton and indicates between 29-36 hectares of land is 

required to accommodate this growth. SP6 also supports in provision new B2 uses. 

 

Access/Parking 

 

The approach to accessing this site was established by the earlier Outline planning permission.  

Conditions relating to the detail of the road and access construction have already been discharged on 

that Outline application.  NYCC Highways initially requested details regarding disabled parking, 

provision of secure cycle storage, and a footpath measuring 2m in width on the internal access road.  

 

At the time of writing this report, the Highway Authority are still concerned regarding the lack of on-

site secure cycle storage areas; the lack of any shared parking bays; concerns in respect of future 

maintenance of the access;  and implementation of the Travel Plan.  The agent's response is awaited 

and Members will be updated at the meeting. 

 

A developer contribution was required towards the Brambling Fields scheme arising from the 

requirements of the outline planning permission. However, this application is not a ‘Major’ 

application, and consistent with the approach by the Local Planning Authority on other non-Major 

applications no contribution has been requested. The contribution required under the terms of the 

Outline application remain. 

  

Design Approach/Landscaping 

 

This is set out in the Design & Access Statement document.  Members will note that this buildings 

will be visible from all sides.  In general terms, the quality of the units is considered to be a ‘step up’ 

from the quality of the units which have previously been delivered on the York Road estate.  This is 

also coupled with structure landscaping on the western boundary.  The Tree and Landscape Officer 

recommends a condition regarding protection measures for this structural planting on the western 

boundary and for some additional planting within the hedge on York Road. 

 

The previous approval was for a single modern building on this site. This proposal is for 8 smaller B2 

units. The design of the units remains modern, and it is considered to have a reasonable interface with 

all four sides of the site. A condition is recommended regarding the boundary treatment on the York 

Road frontage between Units 5 and 6, and it is considered that this should be a robust quality and 

solid boundary to relate to the buildings and to an extent screen he parking and inner areas of these 

units. Amendments have been negotiated with the developer in order to ensure the design and 

appearance of the building form an appropriate transition from a 'rural' to 'urban' environment. 

 

The site is visible from higher land to the south and also from the adjacent Area of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty.  The materials chosen are considered to represent a quality environment on the 

gateway to Malton.  The timber cladding and landscaping is considered provide a transition from the 

open countryside to the west and the street of a more urban environment. The design and materials 

chosen also relate well to the existing JMP building also on the site.  

 

Archaeology 

 

In the light of the low archaeological potential of this site, a watching brief is recommended during 

ground disturbing works with a suitable scheme of recording undertaken. 

 

 

 

Page 200



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

Residential amenity impacts 

 

There are no adjoining residential properties and the site has already been approved planning 

permission for a B2 food production factory. The Environmental Health Officer has not objected to 

the application and it is not considered that the proposal is likely to have an adverse effect upon the 

residential amenity of nearby properties. 

 

Drainage 

 

The scheme has been amended to take account of a Yorkshire Water main between the site and York 

Road running parallel to York Road. Yorkshire Water has confirmed that they have no objection to 

this application as revised.  Foul water is proposed to be drained to the mains, and surface water is 

proposed to be drained to a combination of the mains sewer, a sustainable drainage system and a 

soakaway. 

 

Parish Council comments 

 

The site is located within the Parish of Huttons Ambo. Huttons Ambo have objected to the visual 

impact of the proposed development. They stated: 

 

'For this reason the Council considers that the site would be better occupied by a single structure, 

preferably of some architectural merit, which would serve to mark the progress from rural to 

urban.  The proposed development of “Eight Business Starter Units” would not meet this objective 

and would weaken the transition.  Furthermore the change in speed limit from 60 to 40 mph would be 

more likely to be recognised, and observed, with a visually clear change from an agricultural to a 

built environment.' 

 

Following their concerns a meeting was held to discuss possible amendments to the application which 

resulted in revised plans being submitted and re-consulted upon. It is also understood that the 

applicant attended the Parish Council meeting to explain in detail their proposals. The revised plans 

have attempted to soften the transition from rural to urban. Timber cladding and the provision of 

windows at ground floor level on the elevation facing York Road are considered to help to make this 

transition. In addition visuals have been provided that aim to justify the visual appearance of the 

proposed buildings within the context of the existing environment, to help understand their impact. It 

is noted that there is a substantial belt of structural landscaping on the western boundary, and the Tree 

and Landscape Officer recommends supplemental planting on the road frontage. In addition, the 

applicant has said, there is a strong demand for these 8 smaller units, which will provide significant 

benefits to the local economy. The Parish Council has been consulted but no views have been 

received to date, hence this application has to be determined by the Planning Committee. Although it 

is understood that the revised plans have met the concerns of the Parish Council, Members will be 

updated at the meeting of any views received. 

 

It is considered that the revised plans have satisfactorily addressed the Parish Council’s concerns, and 

the provision of these 8 units is considered to be a great benefit to the local economy.   

 

Conditions were imposed on the previous Outline approval across the 'wider' site in relation to a travel 

pattern and sustainable transport methods.  Officers are currently considering whether it is reasonable 

to impose them to this smaller application for 8 units.  The view of North Yorkshire County Council - 

Highways will be reported to Members at the meeting. 

 

In view of the above, the recommendation is one of approval subject to resolution of the outstanding 

highway issues. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 201



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval subject to resolution of the outstanding Highway 

    Authority issues. 

 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

2 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be 

agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to 

be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 (NB Pursuant to this condition the applicant is asked to complete and return the attached 

proforma before the development commences so that materials can be agreed and the 

requirements of the condition discharged) 

  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

  

3 Before the commencement of the development hereby permitted, or such longer period as 

may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, full details of the materials and 

design of all means of enclosure shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. Thereafter these shall be erected prior to the occupation of any dwelling 

to which they relate. 

  

 Reason:- To ensure that the development does not prejudice the enjoyment by the 

neighbouring occupiers of their properties or the appearance of the locality, as required by 

PPS1- Delivery Sustainable Development. 

 

4 Before any part of the development hereby approved commences, plans showing details of 

landscaping and planting schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The schemes shall provide for the planting of trees and shrubs 

and show areas to be grass seeded or turfed where appropriate to the development. The 

submitted plans and/or accompanying schedules shall indicate numbers, species, heights on 

planting, and positions of all trees and shrubs including  existing items to be retained.. All 

planting, seeding and/or turfing comprised in the above scheme shall be carried out in the 

first planting season following the commencement of the development, or such longer 

period as may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any trees or shrubs 

which, within a period of five years from being planted, die, are removed or become 

seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of 

similar sizes and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any 

variation. 

  

 Reason: To enhance the appearance of the development hereby approved and to comply 

with the requirements of Policy ENV7 of the Ryedale Local Plan 

  

5 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, precise details of the 

protection measures during construction for the structural planting on the western boundary 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason:- In order to protect this planting in the interests of visual amenity and to satisfy 

Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

  

 

6 Any conditions as recommended by the Highways Authority. 

Page 202



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

 

7 A) No demolition/development shall take place/commence until a Written Scheme of 

Investigation 

 has been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing. The scheme 

shall include an assessment of significance and research questions; and: 

  

 1. The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording 

 2. Community involvement and/or outreach proposals 

 3. The programme for post investigation assessment 

 4. Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and recording 

 5. Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the analysis and records of the 

site investigation 

 6. Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and records of the site 

investigation 

 7. Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake the works set out 

within 

 the Written Scheme of Investigation. 

  

 B) No demolition/development shall take place other than in accordance with the Written 

Scheme of 

 Investigation approved under condition (A). 

  

 C) The development shall not be occupied until the site investigation and post investigation 

assessment has been completed in accordance with the programme set out in the Written 

Scheme of Investigation approved under condition (A) and the provision made for analysis, 

publication and dissemination of results and archive deposition has been secured. 

  

 Reason:- This condition is imposed in accordance with Section 12 of the NPPF as the site is 

of archaeological interest. 

 

8 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, precise details of any 

external lighting shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. 

  

 Reason:- In order to protect the character and appearance of the area from unacceptable light 

pollution and to satisfy Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

9 Prior to the commencement of the development, precise details of surface water drainage 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason:- In order to ensure that the site can be satisfactorily drained, and to satisfy Policy 

SP17 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 

10 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, precise details of 

ecological and biodiversity enhancements pursuant to the submitted Ecological Assessment 

dated August 2010 by Marishal Thompson Group shall be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason:- In order to ensure that the development complies with Policy SP14 of the Ryedale 

Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 203



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

11 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved 

 plan(s):. 

   

 (90)01 Rev B; 

 (04)01 Rev C; 

 (04)03; 

 (04)02 Rev B. 

   

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

INFORMATIVES: 

 
1 In regard to Condition 03, the boundary details should address the boundary between Units 

5 and 6. This should be a robust fence of at least 2m in height and befitting the design and 

appearance of the buildings. 

 

2 you should satisfy yourself, prior to commencement of any work related to this project, that 

no part of the works hereby approved (including foundations and/or guttering) extended 

onto or over adjoining land unless you have first secured the agreement of the appropriate 

landowner(s). 

  

 

Background Papers: 

  
Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

Item Number: 13 

Application No: 15/01339/FUL 

Parish: Hovingham Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: The Hovingham Estate Mr Rupert Drury 

Proposal: Erection of 1no. 3 bedroom dwelling, 1no. 4 bedroom dwelling and 

conversion of existing studio building to form 1 no. 2 bedroom dwelling 

and detached garage together with formation of access road and associated 

parking. 

Location: Land West Of Pasture Lane Hovingham  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  15 January 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  14 February 2016 

Case Officer:  Rachel Smith Ext: 323 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Building Conservation Officer No objection  

Countryside Officer Conditions to be added  

Howardian Hills AONB JC No observations to make.  

Archaeology Section A scheme of archaeological mitigation recording is 

undertaken and conditions to be attached  

Highways North Yorkshire Request amended documents before making a formal 

recommendation  

Parish Council Concerns made regarding traffic and parking  

 

 
Neighbour responses: Mr Graham Mason, Mr David R Davis, Ms Wendy 

Dawson, Miss Heidi Sircus, Mr Jason Dainty, Mrs 

Catherine Dainty, K And A Killelay, Ms Linda Horton-

Fawkes, Philip Thomas Pentney, Mr Richard and Mrs 

Johanna Senior, Mr Andrew Royle, Mr Robert Finch, Mr 

Geoffrey Smith, Mr Frank Colenso, Mr Giles Naish, R 

Shaw,  

 

 

 

SITE: 
 

The proposal site is formed from a series of land blocks owned by the Hovingham Estate, 

incorporating land to the rear of buildings and gardens fronting Main Street on the Eastern Side of the 

Village.  To the east and south and east of the application site lies the recent Pasture Lane housing 

development.  

 

The site is located within the Hovingham Conservation Area and the Howardian Hills Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB.) It also falls within the 'saved' Development Limits for 

Hovingham.  

 

A public right of way runs to the south of the application site, from Main Street past The Malt Shovel 

eastwards towards Slingsby. Wicket Gate Cottage and Sunnyside Cottage which abut the north-

western boundary of the site are grade II listed. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 226

Agenda Item 13



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

PROPOSAL: 

 

Permission is sought for the erection of 1no. 3 bedroom dwelling, 1no. 4 bedroom dwelling, and 

conversion and extension of an existing studio building to form 1 no. 2 bedroom dwelling and 

detached garage together with formation of access road and associated parking. 

 

Plot 1 will incorporate the reuse, refurbishment and extension of an existing single storey studio 

building, constructed of stone with a timber roof structure, covered with clay pantiles. This building 

has been  used in the past  as a physiotherapy clinic and most recently for the storage of gardening 

equipment, accessed directly from the main road.  

 

A structural survey was undertaken by an external consultant in November 2013, which noted that the 

building is in a "fairly sound and serviceable condition and appears to have had a reasonable level of 

structural maintenance carried out." The report continued to note the roof line, ridge bedding and 

verge pointing look to be in an acceptable condition, with some signs of historical settlement and 

movement noted in the walls. It was highlighted that the lintel on the front elevation shows deflection 

and decay. It was also noted that the roof covering of the store has substantial holes and gaps, with 

some decay of structure likely.  

 

The redeveloped property at Plot 1will have an approximate footprint of c.78.72m², with the main 

area of the house measuring 11.2m in length and 5.3m in width, with a maximum ridge height of 5.5m 

and a height to eaves of 3.5m. The projection to the western elevation measures 4.5x4.8m with a 

maximum ridge height of 4m and a height to eaves of 2.5m. The new elements of the dwelling will be 

constructed using stone walls, natural clay pantiles, with painted timber windows. A detached garage, 

is proposed for construction c.7m to the south west of the dwelling, and will provide two sheltered 

parking spaces, with a maximum ridge height of 4.8m and a height to eaves of 2.1m and there is 

further space for at least three vehicles to park on the driveway.   

 

The proposed 3 bedroom property at Plot 2 will be constructed using stone walls, natural clay 

pantiles, with painted timber windows. It will have an approximate footprint of c.93.58m² and the 

main area of the house measuring 13.4m in length and 5.1m in width, with a maximum ridge height of 

6.5m and a height to eaves of 4.3m. Two projections to the northern elevation are proposed, the larger 

central projection measuring 4.2 x 4.7m with a maximum ridge height of 4.3m and a height to eaves 

of 2.6m. The smaller northern projection measures 2.5m x 2.2m, with a maximum ridge height of 

3.7m and a height to eaves of 2.5m. the property has 2 parking spaces within its curtilage. 

 

The proposed 4 bedroom property at Plot 3 will have an approximate footprint of c.104.61² and will 

also be constructed using stone walls, natural clay pantiles, with painted timber windows . It will have 

an The main area of the house measuring 13.5m in length and 5.4m in width, with a maximum ridge 

height of 6.9m and a height to eaves of 4.3m. Two projections to the northern elevation are proposed, 

the larger north eastern projection measuring 5.7 x 4.4m with a maximum ridge height of 4.3m and a 

height to eaves of 2.6m. The smaller northern projection measures 3m x 2.3m, with a maximum ridge 

height of 4.3m and a height to eaves of 2.6m.  Three parking spaces will be provided for this dwelling.  

There is one visitor space provided. 

 

HISTORY: 

 
The following applications are relevant to the current proposal: 

 

14/00730/FUL: Erection of 2no. semi-detached and 1no. detached 4 bedroom dwellings following 

demolition of existing building together with formation of vehicular access. (Withdrawn) 

 

15/00850/FUL: Erection of 2no. 3 bedroom dwellings and conversion of existing studio building to 

form 1 no. 3 bedroom dwelling together with access road and associated parking (Withdrawn) 

 

 

 

Page 227



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

POLICY: 
 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

SP1: General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 

(Hovingham is identified as a Service Village and a tertiary focus for growth.) 

SP2: Delivery and Distribution of New Housing (Infill Development) 

SP3 : Affordable Housing 

SP10: Physical Infrastructure 

SP11: Community Facilities and Services 

SP12: Heritage 

SP13: Landscape 

SP14: Biodiversity 

SP16: Design 

SP20: Generic Development Management Issues 

SP22: Planning Obligations, Developer Contributions and the Community Infrastructure Levy.  

 

National Planning Policy Framework 

 

National Planning Policy Guidance 

 

APPRAISAL:  
 

The material considerations are: 

 

• Principle of development 

• Heritage and design considerations  

• Impact on AONB 

• Ecology 

• Landscaping 

• Access 

• Neighbour Impact 

• Representations 

 

Principle of development 

Planning Law requires that development should be determined in accordance with the Development 

Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The site is located in the saved development 

limits for Hovingham. Policy SP2 of the Ryedale Local Plan supports infill residential development in 

service villages, which is defined as "a small gap site in an otherwise built up frontage".  It is also 

supportive of the conversion of buildings with the development limits. The application site is in a 

backland location between existing houses on Main Street, and more recent development on Pasture 

Lane.  Development has been approved in such locations elsewhere in the district where the applicant 

has been able to demonstrate that the development respects the character of the area. A recent 

example of this is at Mount Farm in Westow.  It is therefore considered that the principle is dependent 

on a character assessment of the site and the extent to which the proposal respects that character. 

 

Heritage and Design Considerations 

The application proposes the erection of 1no. 3 bedroom dwelling (referred to as Plot 2), 1no. 4 

bedroom dwelling (referred to as Plot 3) and the conversion and extension of existing studio building 

and store to form 1 no. 2 bedroom dwelling (referred to as Plot 1) and detached garage together with 

formation of a short private access road and associated parking for each property, The three dwellings 

will be located behind Main Street, incorporating land to the rear of buildings and gardens fronting 

Main Street on the eastern side of the Village. Access will be provided through a new entrance formed 

at the end of the cul-de-sac on Pasture Lane. The land appears to be vacant at present, and is not 

subdivided. 

 

Page 228



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

Each of the three dwellings incorporates an individual design, which is detailed above. The proposed 

materials are traditional stone, clay pantiles and painted timber framed windows, which are consistent 

with adjacent buildings on Pasture Lane and Main Street.  

 

The original application for this site 14/00730/FUL proposed the demolition of the former clinic 

building. The Council's Building  Conservation Officer commented in relation to this former  

application that "No assessment or justification for the demolition of this structure has been provided 

and indeed the structural survey provided with the proposal state that the building is in a reasonably 

satisfactory condition."  

 

The Design and Access Statement also states that: 

 

The design of the dwellings is influenced by the nature of the site and existing building on it. The site 

is backland between the established properties fronting Main Street and the new properties recently 

completed on Pasture Lane. The three proposed dwellings punctuate the landscape in the same way 

traditional farm buildings or barns may have done. The existing building is to be refurbished, altered 

and extended to form one detached dwelling. The other two properties are new builds, but again 

designed to look and feel like traditional Yorkshire farm buildings which have been converted.  

 

The storey heights are single or one and a half storey to help the transition between old and new as 

mentioned above. The dwellings are all modest in scale and detached which helps to maintain the 

views through the site from Main Street however obscure these might be. 

 

During consideration of the application, the case officer and the Council's Building Conservation 

Officer visited the site, and walked around the possible view points for the development assessing the 

potential impact upon the character of this part of Hovingham. They concurred with the comments in 

the submitted Design and Access Statement regarding the design of the properties, and their 

relationship with surrounding properties. This is in particular in relation to the impact of the 

development on the setting of the adjacent listed buildings and the character of Hovingham 

Conservation Area. 

 

Accordingly, the formal comments of the Council's Building Conservation Officer are: 

 

My previous consultation response under 14/00730/FUL sets out the character of the conservation 

area and the historic assets identified as being affected by this proposal. In my opinion the alterations 

to the design which references traditional outbuildings/barns better reflects the location within the 

conservation area. The retention of the existing building on site and the retention of the remnant 

circular brick structure is welcomed.  This overcomes my previous objections to design and 

demolition related issues. The contextual information contained in the revised Design and Access 

Statement also place the development in the wider context of the village not only in spatial and design 

terms but within the wider Hovingham estate in terms of management and investment . The repair and 

investment in other properties in the village which contribute to the historic character of the area is 

welcomed and seen as a public benefit. In my opinion this development will result in a degree of harm 

which is minor and, less than substantial harm to the setting of the identified listed buildings and the 

character of the conservation area. Taken in conjunction with the wider management of the estate and 

the investment in village properties, I will not object to this application.  

 

Accordingly it is considered that the development is appropriate in relation to its historic context, by 

retaining an existing outbuilding and picking up on the traditional smaller scale of rear outbuildings 

that can be seen in Hovingham.  This is in contrast to the larger scale of most dwellings fronting both 

Main Street and the more recent dwellings on Pasture Lane. In view of this character assessment, it is 

considered that the development accords with the principles of policy SP12 of the Ryedale Plan-Local 

Plan Strategy, and Section 12 of the NPPF. Furthermore it accords with the spatial strategy in the 

Ryedale  Plan - Local Plan Strategy . 

 

North Yorkshire County Council's Archaeology had no objection to the proposal.   

 

Page 229



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

Impact of development on the Howardian Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) 
The development is situated in a location, where the proposed housing will be seen in the context of 

other development in the area. Indeed, given the relatively low ridge height of the dwellings, most 

views will be limited to glimpses between the roofs of existing dwellings, and occasionally between 

houses from Main Street. As such, it is not considered that the development will have a significant 

adverse impact on the natural Beauty of the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. The AONB 

Manager has not objected to the development.  

 

Ecology 

An Ecological Assessment in the form of a Bat, Breeding Bird and Barn Owl Survey was undertaken 

on the clinic building and submitted by the applicant in June 2014. This report detailed results of 

analysis undertaken in November 2013 and June 2014, noting that there was no evidence of roosting 

bats in the existing buildings  . However, as there was a pipistrelle roost located nearby and there was 

potential for transient roosting. To mitigate any potential harm on wildlife, a method statement was 

drawn up to be followed during development works.  It was additionally noted that the building did 

not provide a suitable habitat for barn owls, and that proposed works should be scheduled in 

summertime to avoid disturbance to breeding birds. Ryedale District Council's Countryside Officer 

noted that he was satisfied with the report and recommended a condition to ensure all works were 

carried out in accordance with this method statement.  

 

Landscaping 

The application will result in the loss of a mature tree on the eastern boundary of the site. The 

Council’s Tree and Landscape officer has recommended that replacement landscaping is provided. It 

is considered that a tree that will enable its canopy to be visible outside the site will improve the 

appearance of the dwelling. 

 

Access and Parking 
Access to the housing is via the existing cul-de-sac from the recent development on Pasture Lane.  

Three parking spaces, together with a double garage will be provided for Plot 1, two parking spaces 

for plot 2 and three spaces for plot three together with one visitor space. This is in accordance with the 

updated North Yorkshire County Council parking standards.  

 

The initial response from North Yorkshire Highways required a revision to the submitted red line to 

take it down to the first phase of the Pasture Lane development, which is the adopted highway. This is 

because no Section 38 agreement with the Highway Authority has been secured for the most recent 

development on Pasture Lane. A further parking space for plot three was also required to accord with 

updated standards. Both these issues have been addressed by the applicant, and the final 

recommendation of the Highway Authority is awaited.  

 

 It is noted that a significant number of objections have been received by neighbouring occupiers on 

Pasture Lane and also the Parish council in relation to the problems of parking on the existing 

development. This site was approved when national guidance recommended limited parking spaces on 

housing developments with a view to reducing the reliance on car travel. This guidance has since 

changed, and the proposed development accords with current higher standards. It is not considered 

that the proposed housing can be expected to provide additional spaces to address a perceived 

shortfall elsewhere. It is noted that reference has been made to cars parking within the end of the cul-

de-sac in front of the terrace of three dwellings. However parking is provided for these dwellings in a 

car park to their north. Development cannot be refused on the basis that residents on an adjacent site 

do not park in designated spaces.  

 

The final surfacing of the access to the most recent houses on Pasture Lane is being investigated by 

officers, independently to this application. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 230



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

Neighbour Impact 

 

Plot 1  

 

The property at Plot 1 is located c.27m from Sampson Cottage to the west, 13.8m from the three 

terraced properties to the east and 9.2m from the property to the south.  It is considered that the design 

of the proposed property at Plot 1 on the southern elevation will ensure the neighbouring dwelling to 

the south will not suffer from the potential for loss of privacy or overlooking. There are no windows 

proposed on the two story gable wall.  Additionally, Plots 1 and 2 are separated by a distance of 5m, 

with parking associated with plot 2 between the properties. The northern elevation of Plot 1 has no 

fenestration promoting privacy for future occupiers of both properties. The eastern elevation of plot 1 

has one first floor window, however it is considered that the distance from existing dwellings on the 

Pasture Lane development is sufficient that there will not be a significant adverse impact on their 

existing amenities. 

 

 Plot 2 

 
This dwelling will be located 14m from the 3 terraced houses to the east and 17.5m from Sunnyside 

Cottage to the west.  

 

Additionally, Plots 2 and 3 are separated by a distance of 5.9m at the closest point. The northern 

elevation of Plot 2 has incorporated modest fenestration detailing, with smaller windows on the 

northern projections, and only rooflights on the first floor. It is considered that this will ensure 

acceptable privacy for future occupiers of both properties. One bedroom window will be provided on 

the eastern elevation at first floor level, but will be 13m from the boundary of the dwellings on 

Pasture Lane, and not directly aligned with any dwelling. There will be one gable window at first 

floor level.  However again it will not be directly aligned with any neighbouring dwellings. 

 

Plot 3 

This proposed development will be located 20.6m from Wicket Gate Cottage to the West and 18m 

from the flats to the east.  The owner of Wicket Gate Cottage has objected to the development on the 

basis that it will result in the loss of their garden and part of an outbuilding. Clarification of the 

ownership of this dwelling, and its domestic curtilage has been sought from the applicant. 

  

It is considered that all the distances between the proposed dwellings and those existing accord with 

accepted standards. The relatively low ridge height of the dwellings, and the spaces between them, 

will also reduce potential impact. 

 

Representations Received:  

 
The Parish Council highlighted concerns regarding parking and congestion on a letter dated 14th 

December 2015. "The inadequate parking arrangements of the "New Pasture Lane" development have 

meant existing residents have occupied any spare road space, including the planned entrance to this 

development, which already had very restricted access resulting in traffic congestion." The Parish 

additionally highlighted the issue of incomplete road and pavement surfacing.   

 

Following a review of revised plans, the Parish Council submitted a second response on the 25th 

January 2016. This again highlights "the inadequate parking arrangements of the "New Pasture Lane" 

development have meant existing residents have occupied any spare road space, including the planned 

entrance to this development, which already had very restricted access resulting in traffic congestion." 

 

In addition 18 letters of objection have been received.  The map identifies the location of those 

responding to the neighbour consultation and notice. The letters are available to view in full on the 

Council's public website, however they include the following points.  

 

 

Page 231



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

- The application would impact upon the current usage of the cul-de-sac by existing residents for 

additional parking, as it would form the proposed site access, exacerbating current parking issues. If 

parking in this area continued following completion of the proposed development, there could be an 

impact on public safety.   

- Increase in Traffic Congestion/Parking needs 

- Council refuse collection vehicles currently have difficulty in accessing the southern end of Pasture 

Lane.  

- Use of an infill plot, setting a precedent for further infill plots in the village. 

- A preference for two properties, rather than three. 

- Parking and drains not surfaced, will this set a precedent for other developments. 

- Potential for construction traffic and noise.  

- The village currently has no backland development. 

- Outside the development limits. 

- Congestions, problems for emergency services. 

- The proposed development would impact privacy and sunlight.  

- impact on bats and birds.  

- The impact of modern development on rural outlook 

- The small scale of the plot   

- Would it be possible to provide additional parking for existing Pasture Lane residents.  

- Housing considered to be out of scale and out of character with the village. 

- Plans reduce existing garden space. 

- Removal of mature trees 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

It is considered that the main points raised by the Parish Council and other contributors have been 

addressed in the report above.  

 

Other matters 

 

Policy requires that all residential development will be expected to contribute towards public open 

space. This equates to approximately £2,518 per dwelling. Such a contribution will be delivered via a 

Section 106 agreement, until the implementation of the Community Infrastructure Levy on March 1
st
 

2016. The development also triggers a requirement for affordable housing contributions on the basis 

of 9% of the market value of the houses.  

 

Page 232



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

Summary 

 

It is considered that the development accords with the spatial strategy of the Ryedale Plan - Local 

Plan Strategy. It is further considered that the design of the development respects the character of the 

area and will not harm the significance of the setting of the nearby listed buildings. The Conservation 

Officer has not objected to the development, and it is considered that it will preserve the character of 

Hovingham Conservation Area. It is not considered that objections raised would result in a 

recommendation of refusal. 

 

Accordingly, the recommendation is one of approval, subject to: 

 

• No objections being received from North Yorkshire Highways. 

• Confirmation regarding the domestic curtilage to Wicket Gate Cottage and  

• Section 106 with respect to public Open Space and affordable housing contributions 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

2 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted,  or such longer period as 

may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the 

materials to be used on the exterior of the dwellings hereby approved  shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policies SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

3 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, the developer shall 

construct on site for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority, a one metre 

square free standing panel of the external walling to be used in the construction of dwellings 

hereby approved. The panel so constructed shall be retained only until the development has 

been completed. 

  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 

policies SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 

4 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, details of all windows, 

doors,  garage doors and roof lights, including means of opening, depth of reveal and 

external finish on 1:10 scale drawings shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason: To ensure an appropriate appearance and to comply with the requirements of 

Policies SP 16 and SP12 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

5 Unless otherwise agreed in writing, the rainwater goods on the rise and fall brackets shall be 

constructed of cast iron. 

  

 Reason: To ensure an appropriate appearance and to comply with the requirements of 

Policies SP12 and SP16 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

6 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, details of the hard 

landscaping and surfacing within the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 233



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

  

 Reason: To satisfy the requirements of Policies SP12 an dSP16. of the Ryedale Plan - Local 

Plan Strategy. 

 

7 Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1 of the Town & Country Planning 

(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking, re-enacting or 

amending that Order) development of the following classes shall not be undertaken other 

than as may be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority following a specific 

application in that respect: 

 Class A: Enlargement, improvement or alteration of a dwellinghouse 

 Class B: Roof alteration to enlarge a dwellinghouse 

 Class C: Any other alteration to the roof of a dwellinghouse 

 Class D: Erection or construction of a domestic external porch 

 Class E: Provision within the curtilage of a dwellinghouse of any building or enclosure, 

swimming or other pool required for a purpose incidental to the enjoyment of a 

dwellinghouse or the maintenance, improvement or other alteration of such a building or 

enclosure 

 Class G: The erection or provision within the curtilage of a dwellinghouse of a container for 

the storage of oil for domestic heating 

 Glass H: Installation, alteration or replacement of a satellite antenna on a dwellinghouse or 

within its curtilage. 

  

 Reason:- To ensure that the appearance of the areas is not prejudiced by the introduction of 

unacceptable materials and/or structure(s), and to satisfy the requirements of Policy SP20 of 

the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

8 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, or such longer period as 

may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, full details of the materials and 

design of all means of enclosure shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. Thereafter these shall be erected prior to the occupation of any dwelling 

to which they relate. 

  

 Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice the enjoyment by the 

neighbouring occupiers of their properties or the appearance of the locality, as required by 

Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

9 Prior to the commencement of the development,  details of proposed planting to provide 

additional screening  to  the  development,  and  supplement  existing  landscape  features,  

shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. The submitted 

scheme shall consist of locally native species only, and  specified in a planting schedule 

providing details of species, planting sizes and numbers of each species. The approved 

scheme shall be implemented within the first available planting season (Nov - March ) 

following completion of the development. In the event of any plant material dieing , or 

become seriously diseased or damaged within a 5 year period following  planting, it shall be 

replaced with similar species to a specification that shall be first agreed in writing with the 

Local Planning Authority unless the Local Planning authority give written consent to any 

variation. 

  

 Reason: To ensure that the development is properly integrated into its rural and to protect 

the amenities of neighbouring occupiers, in accordance with Policies SP13 and SP20 of the 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 

10 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and prior to the 

commencement of any works on site, a method statement for the repair and protection of the 

circular brick structure on the site, shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning. Thereafter the work shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 

works. 

Page 234



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

  

 Reason: The brick structure contributes top the significance of Hovingham Conservation 

Area, and to satisfy the requirements of Policy SP12 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan 

Strategy. 

  

11 In the relation to the existing building on site, the development shall be carried out in 

accordance with the details contained within section 9  of the submitted Bat, Breeding Bird 

and barn Owl Survey. 

  

 Reason: In the interests of the protection of the species protected under the Wild Life and 

Countryside Act, and the NPPF. 

 

12 Any conditions at the request of the Highways Authority. 

 

13 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s):. 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

 

 

Item Number: 14 

Application No: 15/01384/FUL 

Parish: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Mr R Glover 

Proposal: Change of use of agricultural land to form a holiday park to include the 

erection of 10no. holiday lodges, biomass heating store and refuse store 

together with formation of associated  gravel track, car parking spaces and 

vehicular access. 

Location: Land East Of Sheriff Hutton Industrial Estate Sheriff Hutton  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  16 February 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  31 January 2016 

Case Officer:  Tim Goodall Ext: 332 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 

 

Parish Council Object  

Highways North Yorkshire Conditions recommended  

Archaeology Section Recommend condition  

Highways North Yorkshire Specification added  

Land Use Planning Comments made  

Caravan (Housing) No views received to date  

Environmental Health Officer No views received to date  

Tree & Landscape Officer Recommend condition  

Countryside Officer Request clarification over the existence of the pond and 

further details on the provision of mitigation for the loss 

of biodiversity in line with Local Plan Policy SP14  

National Grid Plant Protection No views received to date  

 
Neighbour responses: Mrs Lindsay Ainley, Mr Jerry Petch, Mr Paul Connell, 

Mrs Ruth Carter, Mr Chris O'Neill, Mrs Julie Gladwin, 

Miss Sian Lacy, Mr Martin Willan, Paul & Elaine 

Nelson, P Connell, Mr Andrew Morse, Ms Hylda 

Connell, Mr & Mrs D & B Pallister, Jodie Hoggarth, Mr 

Peter Bellwood, Mr Alan Glover, Mr Barrie Ellis,  

 

 

 

SITE: 

 

The application site is an agricultural field located to the south west of the village of Sheriff Hutton. 

The site is bounded by agricultural fields to the north, west and east. To the south, the site is bounded 

by York Road. 

 

The site is located approximately 300 metres to the south west of the Sheriff Hutton development 

limit, 50 metres to the west of the row of dwellings, known as Council Houses, York Road. 75 metres 

to the west of the site is the Sheriff Hutton Industrial Estate. The scheduled ancient monument, Sheriff 

Hutton Castle is located approximately 800 metres to the north east of the application site. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 251

Agenda Item 14



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

Planning permission is sought for the change of use of existing agricultural land to form a holiday 

park to include the erection of 10 no. holiday lodges, a biomass heating store and a refuse store 

together with the formation of an associated gravel track and car parking spaces.  

 

The holiday lodges will be detached with dual pitched roofs. The lodges will reach a maximum height 

of 4.9 metres. Six of the holiday lodges will have two bedrooms and four of the holiday lodges will 

have three bedrooms. 

 

The lodges will be timber clad and each will have its own timber decking area. Each lodge will have 

photovoltaic cells fixed to the roof and have a life expectancy of 15 years. 

 

Vehicular access will be from York Road. 20 car parking and 60 cycle parking spaces will be 

provided within the site. 

 

At the east of the site, will be a 3.0 metre high biomass store. Refuse storage will be provided at the 

south east of the site. 

 

The holiday lodges are proposed to be available for 365 days per year occupation. 

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSES: 
 

There have been 7 individual objections to the application, including a letter signed by the residents of 

9 properties. Some of the occupiers of these properties have also written their own objection letters. 

 

The objections relate to the following issues: 

 

• Loss of amenity through noise disturbance and impact on neighbouring properties 

• The impact on the character of the existing Council House terrace to the east of the site 

• The proposal is out of character with the area 

• Concerns over access 

• Suggestions that a different site would be more suitable 

• Concerns over a breakdown of the buffer zone between the industrial estate and the Council 

Houses, resulting in ribbon development 

• Potential loss of the mediaeval field pattern 

• Lack of information regarding the biomass store 

• Flooding 

 

A further public representation provided comment expressing concern over the apparent inadequacy 

of the biomass fuel store, the impact on local housing, the lack of play facilities and the lack of a 

pedestrian crossing. There was a request for a commuted sum towards public open space provision. 

 

3 letters of support were received. There was support for: 

 

• The positive impact of the development on local jobs and local business 

• The sympathetic design of the holiday lodges 

 

Sheriff Hutton Parish Council have objected to the application for the following reasons: 

 

• Concerns over access/highways. An alternative existing access to the east was suggested. 

• The first holiday lodge is sited too close to the public highway 

• concerns over the refuse lorries entering and leaving the site 

• the lack of a reception area and the impact of this for tourists 

• too close to the airstrip 

Page 252



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

• concerns the sewage system will be insufficient for the proposed development and have an 

impact on the ridge and furrow profile of the field 

• concern over the finish of the proposed lodges 

• lack of amenity/play area 

• concern the lodges could ultimately become permanent dwellings 

 

The applicant's agent has responded to the Parish Council's objection, noting the following points: 

 

• The applicant does not have sole control over the existing eastern access to the site. 

• The applicant is willing to consider moving the first lodge further back from the highway if 

required 

• The site has been designed to ensure refuse trucks will approach the site as they would other 

properties on York Road and they will not need to reverse 

• The bookings will be managed by an online bookings company that the applicant has used 

elsewhere 

• The applicant considers the use of the neighbouring field as an air strip to be 'permitted 

development' 

• The existing profile of the field will be maintained when sewage works are complete 

• The biomass heating system proposed is sufficient to serve the scheme in accordance with 

the manufacturer's specifications 

• A variety of finishes to the lodges are proposed and the applicant is willing to amend them if 

necessary 

• Additional landscaping is proposed and can be secured by condition 

• It is noted that each lodge has its own amenity area and there will be grassed areas in the site 

for children to play 

• The applicant has not applied for market housing and expects the imposition of conditions 

restricting occupancy. 

 

Yorkshire Water were consulted on the application and have advised that the site is 120 metres from 

Sheriff Hutton waste water treatment works. They note the works are small and there is no evidence 

of malodour from its operation. The Council's Environmental Health team have not provided any 

comments regarding the waste water works. 

 

North Yorkshire Archaeological Services responded to recommend a condition relating to the 

implementation of archaeological mitigation recording. 

 

North Yorkshire County Council Highways Authority and the Council's Countryside, Tree and 

Landscape and Environmental Health Officers were also consulted. Their responses to the 

consultation have been included within the appraisal of the proposed development. 

 

The objections to the planning application relate to material planning considerations. As the 

application is recommended for conditional approval, under the Council's scheme of officer 

delegation it is brought to Committee for Members to consider and determine. 

 

HISTORY: 

 
None relevant. 

 

POLICY: 

 
Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 

Policy SP8 - Tourism 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP14 - Biodiversity 

Page 253



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

Policy SP21 - Occupancy Restrictions 

 

National Planning Policy 

 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

i. Principle of Development 

ii. Design 

iii. Impact on the setting of the Scheduled Ancient Monument of Sheriff Hutton Castle 

iv. Neighbour Amenity 

v. Highways 

vi. Biodiversity 

vii. Other Matters 

viii. Conclusion 

 

 

i. Principle of Development 
 

The NPPF supports local planning policies that will support sustainable rural tourism and leisure 

developments that benefit the businesses in rural areas, communities and visitors and which respect 

the character of the countryside. This should include supporting the provision and expansion of tourist 

and visitor facilities in appropriate locations where identified needs are not met be existing facilities in 

rural service centres. 

 

Policy SP8 (Tourism) of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy states that tourism will be supported  

through the provision of a range and choice of quality tourist accommodation. In the wider open 

countryside, new static caravan and chalet self catering accommodation and extensions to existing 

facilities that can be accommodated without an unacceptable visual intrusion and impact on the 

character of the locality will be supported. All year round tourism is supported subject to the 

occupancy conditions set out within Policy SP21 (Occupancy Restrictions). 

 

Policy SP13 (Landscapes) states that development proposals should contribute to the protection and 

enhancement of distinctive elements of landscape character that are the result of historical and cultural 

influences, natural features and aesthetic qualities. 

 

The proposed development will provide for the provision of new tourist accommodation within the 

Vale of York area of the District. The development will be open all year round and if approved 

appropriate conditions restricting occupancy can be added in accordance with Policy SP21 

(Occupancy Restrictions). 

 

The proposed development will be located south of the development limit of Sheriff Hutton, lying to 

the east of the existing Industrial Estate and the west of the Council Houses. As the application site 

lies outside of the Sheriff Hutton development limit, consideration must be given to the level of visual 

intrusion and the impact on the character of the locality. The proposed development will be sited in 

the central rectangular field of a row of three. While it will partially infill the existing gap between the 

Industrial Estate and the Council houses, open countryside will be retained in two of the fields. The 

prevailing gradient of the land is relatively level within the immediate area of the application site, 

gently rising to the north of the site through the village of Sheriff Hutton.  

 

The Council's Tree and Landscape Officer was consulted and commented as follows: 

 

Page 254



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

The site is a rectangular open field bounded by native hedging and scattered native trees along 

the southern and western boundaries. The hedgerow along the western boundary is fairly sparse 

containing numerous gaps which allow open views of the industrial estate building to the west of 

the site. 

 

Wider Landscape: 

 

The site is only visible from public locations on passing along York Road. More distant views 

from the west are screened by landforms and York Road Industrial estate, and from the east by 

properties and landscape features. 

 

Recommendations:  

 

Whilst the site is not visible from public locations the western boundary hedge will need to be 

gapped up with native hedgerow shrubs to form a complete secure boundary. 

 

The proposed planting strips  across the site between the holiday lodges will serve to break up 

views through the site. However, this planting should be formed by native shrubs and locally 

prevailing tree species and other traditional hedgerow species. Whilst the proposal to plant birch 

and Sorbus Joseph rock (a yellow berried fruiting species of rowan) would be acceptable in 

small numbers around the chalets , the bulk of the planting should include the following species.: 

 

Hedging and shrub planting under trees: 

 

Hawthorn, hazel, guelder rose, holly, buckthorn, wild rose, field maple. 

 

Tree species: 

 

Oak, field maple, small leafed lime. 

 

It is considered that the proposed development will not result in an unacceptable visual intrusion or an 

unacceptable impact on the character of the locality. As such the principle of the development is 

considered to accord with Policies SP8 and SP13 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

ii. Design 
 

To accord with Policy SP16 (Design) and reinforce local distinctiveness, the location, siting, form, 

layout, scale and detailed design of new development should respect the context provided by its 

surroundings. Attention should be paid to the grain of settlements, influenced by street blocks, plot 

sizes, the orientation of buildings, boundaries, spaces between buildings and the density, size and 

scale of buildings. Consideration must also be given to the type, texture and colour of materials, 

quality and type of building techniques and elements of architectural detail. 

 

The proposed development will include the siting of single storey holiday lodges measuring a 

maximum of 5 metres in height. This will be lower in height than the existing residential buildings to 

the east of the site and of a similar or lower height than the existing industrial buildings to the west of 

the site. The buildings will be detached and have self contained amenity space in the form of 

terracing. 

 

The lodges will be of timber construction with artificial slate roof coverings and photovoltaic panels 

to the roof. The single storey and modest design of the development, the use of materials and the 

proposed landscaping is considered to respect the context of the surroundings and accord with the 

aims of Policy SP16 (Design). 

 

 

 

 

Page 255



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

iii. Impact on the setting of the Scheduled Ancient Monument of Sheriff Hutton Castle 
 

Policy SP12 (Heritage) states that development proposals that would result in substantial harm to a 

designated heritage asset will be resisted unless wholly exceptional circumstances can be 

demonstrated. The site is located approximately 800 metres to the south west of the scheduled ancient 

monument of Sheriff Hutton castle. The castle was glimpsed from within the Industrial Estate and 

from one location on the public highway to the south west of the site. However, due to the low lying 

design of the lodges and the proposed landscaping it is not considered to result in any substantial harm 

to the setting of the ancient monument. As such, the proposal is not considered to conflict with Policy 

SP12 (Heritage). 

 

iv. Neighbour Amenity 

 

To accord with Policy SP20 (Generic Development Management Issues) new development will not 

have a material adverse impact on the amenity of present and future occupants, the users or occupants 

of neighbouring land and buildings or the wider community by virtue of its design, use, location and 

proximity to neighbouring land uses. Impacts on amenity can include, for example, noise, dust, odour, 

light flicker, loss of privacy or natural daylight or be an overbearing presence. 

 

The proposed development will be situated outside of the existing development limit of the village of 

Sheriff Hutton. The nearest residential dwellings are sited a minimum of 60 metres to the east of the 

site boundary. Furthermore, of the 10 proposed units, only 2 are located within 20 metres of the 

eastern boundary of the site and these 2 units are set back more than 5 metres from the boundary. The 

proposed plans show the retention of the existing eastern site boundary. Furthermore, a condition can 

be included to control the level of lighting at the site. 

 

The site will contain a 3 metre high biomass store. The Council's Environmental Health Officer has 

requested further details regarding the biomass store from the applicant. It is intended that this 

information and the Environmental Health Officer's response will be made available for Councillors 

as late observations prior to Planning Committee. 

 

Due to the siting and design of the proposed lodges and the distances to existing buildings, it is not 

considered that subject to appropriate conditions, the proposed development will result in a materially 

adverse impact on the amenity of the present and future occupiers of the neighbouring buildings, in 

accordance with Policy SP20 (Generic Development Management Issues). 

 

v. Highways 
 

The site is located on a 40 mph stretch of the main road south of Sheriff Hutton, heading towards 

Strensall and York. North Yorkshire County Council Highways Authority have been consulted on the 

application. The access for the proposed development will have the available visibility in excess of 

the required distance in either direction. The Highways Authority do not object to the proposal subject 

to the imposition of appropriate conditions. 

 

vi. Biodiversity 
 

The Council's Countryside Officer has been consulted on the application and requested further 

information regarding the Ecological Assessment. It is intended that this information and the 

Countryside Officer's response will be made available for Councillors as late observations prior to 

Planning Committee. 

 

vii. Other Matters 
 

Some objections refer to allegations of unauthorised use and storage of a light aircraft. This is subject 

to a separate investigation as it is outside of the scope of this application site and as such is not 

relevant in the determination of this application. 

 

Page 256



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

An objection relating to flooding highlighted that entrance to the Industrial Estate suffered some 

flooding in December 2015 and January 2016. This is presumed to have been during the recent 

adverse weather conditions that resulted in high levels of precipitation and flooding across Yorkshire. 

The application site is not located in or near flood zones 2 or 3 and as such, this is not considered to 

be a reason for amending or refusing the proposal. 

 

vii. Conclusion 

 

In conclusion, the proposal is considered to accord with national and local planning policy and is 

recommended to Members for approval subject to the following conditions. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

2 Notwithstanding the submitted details on drawing No. 9908(90) 02 dated February 2015, 

prior to the commencement of the development details for the landscaping of the site shall 

be submitted for approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted details 

shall include a scale drawing and a schedule of planting of native species only for the 

gapping up of existing hedgerows as appropriate and all new tree and shrub planting 

annotated on the above submitted drawing. The planting schedule shall provide details of 

species, planting sizes and numbers of each. New hedgerow sections shall be planted at the 

rate of 6 plants/metre in a double staggered row, individual plants protected within 

individual rabbit spirals secured with a stout cane. The approved planting shall be carried 

out in its entirety within the first available planting season (Nov - March) following 

completion of the development. Any plants which are removed, become diseased or die 

within 5 years of the implementation of the scheme shall be replaced with the same or 

similar species unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. 

  

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity, enhancement of the development, and screening 

of the development, and in accordance with Policy SP 13 (Landscapes) of the Ryedale Plan - 

Local Plan Strategy. 

 

3 Prior to the commencement of the development a Landscape Management Plan to cover a 

15-year period following implementation of the approved landscaping shall be submitted to 

the Local Planning  Authority for approval in writing. 

  

 Reason: To ensure that the landscaping matures and provides adequate screening and 

enhancement of the development, and in accordance with Policy SP 13 (Landscapes) of the 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

4 A) No demolition/development shall take place/commence until a Written Scheme of 

Investigation has been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing. 

The scheme shall include an assessment of significance and research questions; and: 1.The 

programme and methodology of site investigation and recording 

 2. Community involvement and/or outreach proposals 

 3. The programme for post investigation assessment 

 4. Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and recording 

 5. Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the analysis and records of the 

site investigation 

 6. Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and records of the site 

investigation 

 7. Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake the works set out 

Page 257



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

within the Written Scheme of Investigation. 

 B) No demolition/development shall take place other than in accordance with the Written 

Scheme of Investigation approved under condition (A). 

 C) The development shall not be occupied until the site investigation and post investigation 

 assessment has been completed in accordance with the programme set out in the Written 

Scheme of Investigation approved under condition (A) and the provision made for analysis, 

publication and dissemination of results and archive deposition has been secured. 

  

 Reason: This condition is imposed in accordance with Section 12 of the NPPF as the site is 

of archaeological interest. 

 

5 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no 

excavation or other groundworks, except for investigative works, or the depositing of 

material on the site until the access(es) to the site have been set out and constructed in 

accordance with the published Specification of the Highway Authority and the following 

requirements: 

  

 c. The existing access shall be improved by widening and enlargement in accordance with 

 approved Drawing Number 9908 (90) 02 Rev. C and upgrading on construction 

 specification over the first 10 metres, measured from the carriageway edge, in accordance 

 with Standard Detail Number E7h. 

 e. Any gates or barriers shall be erected a minimum distance of 10 metres back from the 

 carriageway of the existing highway and shall not be able to swing over the existing or 

 proposed highway. 

 g. Provision to prevent surface water from the site/plot discharging onto the existing or 

 proposed highway shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details shown on 

 drawing number 9908 (90) 02 Rev. C and maintained thereafter to prevent such discharges 

 All works shall accord with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 

ensure a satisfactory means of access to the site from the public highway in the interests of 

vehicle and pedestrian safety and convenience 

 

6 There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application 

site until: 

 a. full technical details relating to the bridging/culverting of the watercourse adjacent to the 

site have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority in 

 consultation with the Highway Authority; and 

 b. The surface water ditch at the site entrance has been piped in accordance with the 

approved details unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 

  

 Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 

ensure satisfactory highway drainage in the interests of highway safety and the amenity of 

the area. 

 

7 Notwithstanding the provision of any Town and Country Planning General Permitted or 

Special Development Order for the time being in force, the areas shown on Drawing 

Number 9908 (90) 02 Rev. C for parking spaces, turning areas and access shall be kept 

available for their intended purposes at all times. 

  

 Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 

ensure these areas are kept available for their intended use in the interests of highway safety 

and the general amenity of the development. 

 

 

 

Page 258



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

 

8 There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application 

site until details of the precautions to be taken to prevent the deposit of mud, grit and dirt on 

public highways by vehicles travelling to and from the site have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 

Authority. These facilities shall include the provision of wheel washing facilities where 

considered necessary by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 

 Authority. These precautions shall be made available before any excavation or depositing of 

material in connection with the construction commences on the site and be kept available 

and in full working order and used until such time as the Local Planning Authority in 

consultation with the Highway Authority agrees in writing to their withdrawal 

  

 In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to ensure that 

no mud or other debris is deposited on the carriageway in the interests of highway safety. 

 

9 Unless approved otherwise in writing by the Local Planning Authority there shall be no 

establishment of a site compound, site clearance, demolition, excavation or depositing of 

material in connection with the construction on the site until proposals have been submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for the provision of: 

 a. on-site parking capable of accommodating all staff and sub-contractors vehicles clear of 

the public highway 

 b. on-site materials storage area capable of accommodating all materials required for the 

operation of the site. 

 c. The approved areas shall be kept available for their intended use at all times that 

construction works are in operation. 

  

 Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20  of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 

provide for appropriate on-site vehicle parking and storage facilities, in the interests of 

highway safety and the general amenity of the area. 

 

10 The accommodation hereby permitted shall be available or commercial let for at least 140 

days a year and no let must exceed a total of 31 days in any one calendar year.  

  

 Reason: It is not considered that the application site is suitable for permanent residential use 

because it is located in open countryside, in an area where permanent residential 

development is only permitted in exceptional circumstances and the application has only 

been considered in relation to holiday use, and to satisfy the requirements of Policies SP20 

and SP21 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 

11 The accommodation hereby permitted shall be occupied for holiday purposes only; and not 

as a person's sole or main place of residence. 

  

 Reason: It is not considered that the application site is suitable for permanent residential use 

because it is located in open countryside, in an area where permanent residential 

development is only permitted in exceptional circumstances and the application has only 

been considered in relation to holiday use, and to satisfy the requirements of Policies SP20 

and SP21 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 

12 The development hereby approved is for 6 No. two bedroom lodges and 4 No. three 

bedroom lodges with biomass heating store and refuse store together with formation of 

associated  gravel track, car parking spaces and vehicular access only. 

  

 Reason: In order to comply with Policies SP8 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan 

Strategy. 

 

 

 

Page 259



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

 

13 The owners/operators of the accommodation hereby permitted shall maintain an up-to-date 

register of lettings/occupation and advertising will be maintained at all times and shall be 

made available for inspection to an officer of the Local Planning Authority on request. The 

register shall include full details of the following:  

  

• the main address(es) of all the occupiers of the accommodation hereby 

permitted 

• the start date of every one of the letting/occupation of all the occupiers of the 

accommodation hereby permitted 

• supporting evidence of the main address(es) of all the occupiers of the 

accommodation  hereby permitted 

  

 Reason: To ensure the holiday unit does not become occupied as a permanent dwelling and 

to comply with the requirements of Policy SP20 and Policy SP21 of the Ryedale Plan - 

Local Plan Strategy. 

  

14 Nothwithstanding the submitted details and prior to the erection of the chalets on the site, 

details and samples of the timber cladding shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to satisfy the requirements of Policies SP16 

and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

15 No external lighting shall be installed on any part of the building or within the application 

site, unless precise details have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason: In the interests of visual amenity, and to satisfy the requirements of Policy SP20 of 

the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

16 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

  

 Drawing No. 9908 (90) 01 Location Plan _ Block Plan validated by the local planning 

authority 22.12.15 

  

 Drawing No. 9908 (90) 02 rev C Proposed Site Layout Plan validated by the local planning 

authority 22.12.15 

  

 Drawing No. 9908 20 01 rev D validated by the local planning authority 22.12.15 

  

 Drawing No. 9908 20 02 rev B validated by the local planning authority 22.12.15 

  

 Drawing No. 9908 20 03 rev A validated by the local planning authority 22.12.15 

  

 Drawing No. 9908 20 04 rev A validated by the local planning authority 22.12.15 

  

 Drawing No. 9908 20 05 rev A validated by the local planning authority 22.12.15 

  

 Drawing No. 9908 20 06 rev A validated by the local planning authority 22.12.15 

  

 Drawing No. 9908 20 07 validated by the local planning authority 22.12.15 

  

 Drawing No. 9908 20 08 validated by the local planning authority 22.12.15 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

Page 260



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

16 February 2016 

 

 

INFORMATIVES: 

 

1 You are advised that a separate licence will be required from the Highway Authority in 

 order to allow any works in the adopted highway to be carried out. The 'Specification for 

 Housing and Industrial Estate Roads and Private Street Works' published by North 

 Yorkshire County Council, the Highway Authority, is available at the County Council's 

 offices. The local office of the Highway Authority will also be pleased to provide the 

 detailed constructional specification referred to in this condition. 

 

2 It is recommended that the applicant consult with the Internal Drainage Board, the 

Environment Agency and/or other drainage body as defined under the Land Drainage Act 

1991. Details of the consultations shall be included in the submission to the Local Planning 

Authority. The structure may be subject to the Highway Authority's structural approval 

procedures 

 

3 Supporting evidence of the main address(es) of all the occupiers can include the following: 

  

• The most recent Council Tax demand 

• Utility bills issued within the last 3 months 

 

Background Papers: 

 

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties  

Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



Page 283



Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



Page 291



Page 292



Page 293



Page 294



Page 295



Page 296



Page 297



Page 298



Page 299



RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 16 FEBRUARY 2016 

 

Report of the Head of Planning 
 

Untidy site due to the storage of spoil, rubble and building materials at Land adjacent to Dhekelia, 

Moor Lane, Broughton, Malton 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 

To advise Members of the condition of land  adversely affecting the amenity of the neighbourhood  

and recommend an appropriate course of action. 
 

 
 

1. SITE LOCATION 

 
1.1 The site lies to the south of a residential property known as Dhekelia within the development 

limits of Broughton. The site was formally the amenity space to this property but is now under 
separate ownership. There are no constraints on the site. The village is not a designated 

Conservation Area.  

 
2. CONDITION OF LAND  ADVERSELY AFFECTING THE AMENITY OF THE 

NEIGHBOURHOOD  

 
2.1 The condition of land  adversely affecting the amenity of the neighbourhood  comprises :  

 

The land known as land adjacent Dhekelia has remained undeveloped and is being used as a  
dumping site for spoil, rubble, general waste and building materials . It  is understood that the 

materials kept on the site had come originally from the redevelopment of Dhekelia but are 

also being imported from a building site in Amotherby. It  is understood that the site at 
Amotherby  is also owned by the occupier of the land the subject of this report. .  

 

3.  HISTORY 
 

3.1 13/01099/OUT. Erection of 1 no. dwelling (site area 0.0282 ha). Approved 

 
3.2 15/00358/FUL. Erection of a 3 bedroom detached dwelling and detached 1 bay garage 

together with formation of vehicular access (revised details to outline approval 
13/01099/OUT dated 25.07.2014). Withdrawn  

 

3.3 16/00045/FUL. Erection of 1no. four bedroom detached dwelling with garden shed and 
formation of vehicular access. Pending consideration 

4.      APPRAISAL 

   
4.1       Section 215 (s215) of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (the Act) provides a 

 local planning authority (LPA) with the power, in certain circumstances, to take steps to 

 require the proper maintenance of land by requiring land to be cleaned up when its condition 
 adversely affects the amenity of the area. If it  appears that the amenity of part of their area is 

 being adversely affected by the condition of neighbouring land and buildings, they may serve 

 a notice on the owner requiring that the  situation be remedied. These notices set out the 
 steps that need to be taken, and the time  within which they must be carried out. 

 

Page 300

Agenda Item 15



4.2 The site the subject of this report is a street frontage plot within the centre of the 

 predominantly residential village of Broughton. Prior to being separated from the host 
 dwelling Dhekelia, the site was a well maintained garden with low level fencing along the 

 street frontage boundary. However since being separated the site has remained unoccupied. 

 Members will note that whilst  there has been previous planning permissions granted to 
 develop the site for one dwellinghouse a lawful start  has not been made. There is  currently an 

 application pending for the erection of a dwelling.  

 
4.3 The Local Planning Authority received a complaint in June 2015 which expressed concern 

 that not only was there a  spoil heap on the site but that it  was starting to spill onto the 
 footpath. When officers initially visited the site, The spoil heap, situated on the western 

 boundary, was estimated to be approximately 5 feet high running almost the entirely of the 

 width of the site. The heap is made up of spoil, rubble and building materials. It  was obvious 
 that the heap had been there for a period of time as the  heap had signs of vegetation. 

 Officers discovered that in addition to the heap the site had also  been used for the disposal of 

 other building materials including insulation, plastic and large builders sacks. 
 

4.4 Officers concluded that due to the spoil heaps nature, size and location it  appears as a 

 incongruous feature within the wider street scene, and as such is having a detrimental 
 impact on the amenity of the area.  

  

4.5 Officers have requested on two separate occasions that the owner of the  site remove the spoil 
heap from the site. These requests have been ignored and an officer site visit  on the 3 

February 2016 concluded that the spoil heap remains in situ. It has however been noted that  

the building sacks have been removed and although the spoil heap remains on the boundary to 
the footpath it was no longer on the footpath .  

 

4.6 In view of the nature of the complaints received, the lack of any communication from the land 
owner and the evidence of the use and appearance of the site, it  is considered that the Local 

Planning Authority should take action to remedy the situation. 
 

5.          WHY IS IT CONSIDERED EXPEDIENT TO SERVE A SECTION 215  NOTICE? 

5.3 The expediency reason to serve a section 215 notice is outlined below: 

 

1. The appearance of this land due to the amount of spoil, rubble, builders materials and 

general waste is having a detrimental  impact on the visual amenity of the area as by 
the nature, scale and siting of the materials. The site is visually intrusive within the 

wider residential setting. For those reasons it  is considered that the amenity of the 

area is adversely affected by the condition of  the land adjacent to Dhekelia, Moor 
Lane, Broughton..  

 

6. STEPS NECESSARY TO REMEDY THE DETRIMENTAL  IMPACT ON THE VISUAL 
AMENITY OF THE NEIGHBOURHOOD  

 
6.1 This report seeks authorisation for the Council Solicitor in consultation with the Head of 

Planning and Housing to serve a Section 215 Notice  requiring the land to be cleaned up. In 

order to achieve compliance the necessary steps include: 
 

1. Remove from the land  all builders materials, general waste, spoil and rubble.  

 
2. Restoration and levelling of the land to its former condition, through the removal of the 

above. 

 
3.  Cultivate and seed the land with lawn seed 

Page 301



 

6.2 To authorise the Council Solicitor to  take the following action:  
 

a)  Seek prosecution for the non-compliance of the section 215 Notice.  

 
AND / OR  

 

b)Make arrangements for direct action to carry out the works specified in steps 1 to 3 of 
paragraph 6.1 above  to tidy the land ; and  

 
c) To  take all necessary steps to secure the recovery of all costs incurred by the placing of a 

charge on the property.  

 
7. SUGGESTED PERIOD FOR COMPLIANCE 

 

7.1 The suggested period for compliance is one month in respect of a Section 215 Notice.   
 

 

 

Recommendation 

 
A.The Council Solicitor be authorised in consultation with the Head of Planning and Housing 

Services to issue a  notice pursuant to section 215 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 

amended) requiring : 
 

1. The removal from the land the builders materials, general waste, spoil and rubble   

 
2.  Restoration and levelling of the land to its former condition, through the removal of the above . 

 

3. Cultivate and seed the land with a lawn seed 
 

B. To authorise the Council Solicitor to  take the following action:  

 
a)  Seek prosecution for the non-compliance of the section 215 Notice.  

 
 

AND / OR  

 
b)Make arrangements for direct action to carry out the works specified in steps 1 to 3 of 

paragraph 6.1 above  to tidy the land ; and  

 
c) To  take all necessary steps to secure the recovery of all costs incurred by the placing of a 

charge on the property.  

 
Reason for Recommendation – to enable the problem to be resolved as effectively as possible 

because the poor condition of the site and appearance of the land is detrimental to the surrounding 

area and neighbourhood.  The despoiled land is affecting the amenity of the area and the builders 
rubble  and other materials are visually intrusive. 

 
 

Background Papers 

 

Investigation file 15/00048/ ENF215 

Page 302



Page 303



RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATIONS DETERMINED BY THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL MANAGER 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE  SCHEME OF DELEGATED DECISIONS 
 

PERIOD 11 JANUARY - 5 FEBRUARY 2016 

  

 

 

1.  

Application No: 15/01028/FUL    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Heslerton Parish Council 
Applicant: Mrs Paula Wilson 

Location: Manor Wold Farm East Heslerton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8RN  

Proposal: Change of use of land to a 4no. touring caravan and 10no. tent camping site to 
include siting of associated toilet and shower facility consisting of 2no. pods 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

2.  

Application No: 15/01162/FUL    Decision:  Approval 
Parish: Hutton-le-Hole Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr R Smith 

Location: Barn Folly East Of Ravenswick Hall Swineherd Lane Kirkbymoorside   
Proposal: Rebuilding and extension of existing derelict barn to include erection of tower and 

raising of roof height to form folly 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

3.  
Application No: 15/01175/ADV    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Fitzwilliam (Malton) Estate (Mr A Welburn) 
Location: 20 Castlegate Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7DT  

Proposal: Display of 1no. non-illuminated sign to east elevation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

4.  
Application No: 15/01188/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Fitzwilliam (Malton) Estate (Mr Alex Welburn) 
Location: 20 Castlegate Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7DT  

Proposal: External alterations to include the display of 1no. non-illuminated sign to east 

elevation 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

5.  
Application No: 15/01229/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Ebberston Parish Council 
Applicant: Mr & Mrs M Spaven 

Location: Westwood Barn 79A Main Street Ebberston Scarborough North Yorkshire YO13 

9NR  
Proposal: External and internal alterations to allow conversion of barn to a three bedroom 

dwelling to include formation of first  floor and opening up of blocked doorway on 

east elevation 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 304

Agenda Item 17



 

6.  
Application No: 15/01273/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Settrington Parish Council 

Applicant: Birdsall Estates Co. Ltd (Mr Simon Fairbank) 
Location: Fishers Farm Town Street Settrington Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8NR  

Proposal: External and internal alterations to include Installation of 1no. rooflight to rear facing 

roof slope, installation of 1no. window to rear elevation, alteration and relocation of 
door and window to rear elevation and removal of stone steps to west elevation 

together with internal alterations including removal and alteration of existing internal 
walls and installation of partit ion wall 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

7.  

Application No: 15/01295/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 
Applicant: Mr S Hanson 

Location: Beckside Lendales Lane Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8EE  

Proposal: Change of use of agricultural land to form additional domestic curtilage. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

8.  

Application No: 15/01321/ADV    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 
Applicant: (Vauxhall) Mr Stuart Carruthers 

Location: Vauxhall J B Motors  4 Wentworth Street Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7BN 

Proposal: Display of 6no. internally illuminated fascia signs, 2no. internally illuminated totem 
signs and 3no. non-illuminated wall-mounted signs on main building and 1no. 

non-illuminated wall-mounted sign to adjacent car wash building.  

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

9.  
Application No: 15/01334/73AM    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Sherburn Parish Council 

Applicant: Kingspan Ltd (Alex Hewitt) 
Location: Kingspan St Hildas Street Sherburn Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8PQ  

Proposal: Variation of Condition 02 to state "the solar array shall only include the Yingli panels 

in accordance with the Technical Bulletin of the reflectance of Yingli Solar PV 
Modules," Variation of Condition 03 to state "(iii) The expiry of 25 years after either 

the date on which electricity from the development is first  connected with the 

electricity grid, or 12 months after the commencement of development, which ever is 
earliest," and Variation of Condition 04 to replace Drawing No. 1000 with Drawing 

No. 1000 Rev 3 - all variations in relation to approval 14/00132/MFUL dated 
20.11.2014. 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

10.  

Application No: 15/01363/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Thixendale Parish Council 
Applicant: Mrs Pauline Foster 

Location: Dunelm  Main Street Thixendale Malton YO17 9TG 

Proposal: External and internal alterations to include erection of a first  floor extension to east 

elevation, replacement timber framed windows to east elevation and installation of 

timber door to replace window to south elevation together with alterations to internal 
layout. 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 305



 

11.  
Application No: 15/01364/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Sproxton Parish Meeting 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Alexander Lamont 
Location: Low Woods Farm  Sproxton Helmsley YO62 5ED 

Proposal: Erection of a general purpose agricultural storage building 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

12.  
Application No: 15/01372/HOUSE    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Sinnington Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr And Mrs H J Evans 
Location: Willow Cottage Main Street Sinnington Pickering YO62 6SQ  

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to north east elevation to form entrance hall 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

13.  
Application No: 15/01373/LBC    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Sinnington Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr And Mrs H J Evans 
Location: Willow Cottage Main Street Sinnington Pickering YO62 6SQ  

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to north east elevation to form entrance hall 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

14.  
Application No: 15/01374/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Wombleton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr S Forbes 
Location: Lyndon House Main Street Wombleton Kirkbymoorside YO62 7RX  

Proposal: Extension to existing detached single garage to form garage with first  floor gym. 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

15.  
Application No: 15/01375/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Welburn (Malton) Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Mark Allsop 
Location: The Old Chapel 62 Crambeck Village Welburn Malton North Yorkshire YO60 7EZ  

Proposal: Reinstatement of spire on existing renewed support framework, replacement and 

addition of rooflights to north and south elevations, alteration of rear porch and 
addition of bathroom window to north elevation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

16.  

Application No: 15/01376/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 
Parish: Aislaby, Middleton & Wrelton Parish 

Applicant: Mr Richardson & Mrs Trebilco 

Location: Orchard House Main Street Middleton Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8PA  
Proposal: Installation of 2no. velux rooflights to south facing roof slope and removal of 2no. 

windows to east elevation (revised details to approval 15/00636/HOUSE dated 

22.07.2015). 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

17.  

Application No: 15/01379/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 
Applicant: Mr Anthony Lakin 

Location: 30 Eastgate Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7DU  

Proposal: External alterations to include installation of replacement timber door and frame 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Page 306



 

18.  
Application No: 15/01380/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Wombleton Parish Council 

Applicant: Wombleton Village Hall Committee 
Location: Wombleton Village Hall Page Lane Wombleton Kirkbymoorside YO62 7SE  

Proposal: Installation of 6no. replacement double-glazed windows to south and east elevations. 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

19.  
Application No: 15/01382/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Aislaby, Middleton & Wrelton Parish 

Applicant: Mr And Mrs P Hanby 
Location: Applegarth Wrelton Cliff Road Wrelton Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8PJ  

Proposal: Erection of a single storey extension to rear elevation and a porch to front elevation. 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

20.  
Application No: 15/01405/73A    Decision:  Partial Approve/Refuse 

Parish: Scrayingham Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Peter Stacey 
Location: Manor Farm Leppington Lane Leppington Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9RL  

Proposal: Variation of Condition 15 of approval 14/01176/73A dated 01.04.2015 to replace 

Drawing No. 01.2015.PA02 Proposed Plans and Elevations Plot 2 by Drawing No. 
01.2015.PA02 Rev.A  Proposed Plans and Elevations Plot 2 - balustrade to rear flat 

roof with french doors to bedroom 2 and repositioning of chimney 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

21.  
Application No: 15/01415/FUL    Decision:  Partial Approve/Refuse 

Parish: Wombleton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Timothy Steele 
Location: Land At The Rear Of The Croft Nawton Road Wombleton Kirkbymoorside   

Proposal: Change of use of land to mixed use of agricultural/equestrian together with erection 

of stable block comprising of 4no. loose boxes for private domestic use to include 
temporary use as a lambing shed with formation of associated area of hardstanding, 

erection of shed for storage purposes (retrospective) and siting of children's play 

equipment within domestic curtilage. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

22.  

Application No: 15/01421/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Brawby Parish Meeting 
Applicant: Ms Marilyn Tate 

Location: River House Brawby Lane Brawby Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6QA  

Proposal: Erection of a single-storey extension to west elevation to form a sun room following 
removal of existing passage and utility room 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

23.  

Application No: 15/01437/HOUSE    Decision:  Refusal 
Parish: Marishes Parish Meeting 

Applicant: Ian Wilson & Rachel Campion 

Location: Rowan Cottage School House Hill Marishes Low Road Low Marishes Malton North 
Yorkshire YO17 6RJ  

Proposal: Erection of a rear two storey extension with single storey side entrance porch 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 307



 

24.  
Application No: 15/01438/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Sherburn Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr John Slack 
Location: Land At OS Field 2466 Station Road Sherburn Malton North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Erection of roof over exisitng open yard to form livestock handling area (part 

retrospective application) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

25.  

Application No: 15/01448/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Cropton Parish Council 
Applicant: Mrs Anna Wadsworth 

Location: Loand House Court Cropton Lane Cropton Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8HF  

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to east elevation of holiday cottage (revised 
details to refusal 15/00037/FUL dated 20.03.2015) 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

26.  

Application No: 15/01449/LBC    Decision:  Approval 
Parish: Cropton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mrs Anna Wadsworth 

Location: Loand House Court Cropton Lane Cropton Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8HF  
Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to east elevation of holiday cottage (revised 

details to refusal 15/00038/LBC dated 19.03.2015) 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

27.  
Application No: 15/01452/ADV    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Thomas Of York Limited 
Location: 26 Wheelgate Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7HP  

Proposal: Display of 2no. non-illuminated timber fascia signs, 1no. non-illuminated projecting 

sign and 1no. non-illuminated retractable fabric and timber awning sign to replace 
existing signs 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

28.  

Application No: 15/01455/LBC    Decision:  Approval 
Parish: Normanby Parish Meeting 

Applicant: Mr A Green 

Location: Normanby House Hill Top Farm Road Normanby Kirkbymoorside YO62 6RH  
Proposal: External and internal alterations to the Coach House to include the repair of roof and 

walls, demolition of existing lean-to rear extension and installation of staircase 

within the stable area 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

29.  

Application No: 15/01458/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Barton-le-Street Parish Meeting 
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Nick Shaw 

Location: Hedgehog House  Butterwick Road Barton Le Street Malton YO17 6PP 

Proposal: Erection of an equestrian building comprising of 3no. stables and storage area 
together with formation of area of hardstanding, turn out area and a manège 

measuring 50m x 25m all for private use 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 308



 

30.  
Application No: 15/01460/FUL    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Norton Town Council 

Applicant: Mr P Hogg 
Location: Astwicks Yard  Wood Street Norton Malton YO17 9AA 

Proposal: Change of use and alteration of storage building to 1no. one bedroom ground floor 

flat and 1no. two bedroom first  floor flat with part of ground floor retained as 
commercial freezer room storage and demolition of lean-to wc extension 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

31.  

Application No: 15/01478/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 
Parish: Thixendale Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr R Theakston 

Location: Pluckham Farm  Pefham Lane Thixendale Malton YO25 9SD  

Proposal: Erection of a single storey extension to west elevation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

32.  

Application No: 15/01479/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 
Parish: Beadlam Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Simon Berry 

Location: Lark Rise 7 The Orchards Beadlam Helmsley YO62 7SH  
Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to rear elevation and installation of 3no. rooflights 

to north facing roofslope. 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

33.  
Application No: 15/01480/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Wilkinson 
Location: Woldsmoor House 80 Ruffa Lane Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7HT  

Proposal: Erection of single-storey extension to rear elevation, erection of porch to front 

elevation and installation of bay window to front elevation 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

34.  

Application No: 15/01484/TPO    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 
Applicant: Mr Paul Tate-Smith 

Location: 2 York Road Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6AX  

Proposal: To remove (T1)  Sequoiadendron giganteum within TPO No 332/2013 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

35.  

Application No: 15/01488/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Habton Parish Council 
Applicant: Mr & Mrs J Patmore 

Location: The Granary Low Farm Ryton Rigg Road Ryton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 

6RY  
Proposal: Erection of a single storey garden room linking extension and entrance lobby 

between Brass Castle and The Granary to allow an increase in the domestic 

accommodation of Brass Castle by subsuming part of The Granary within it with The 
Granary changing its use to a one bedroom holiday cottage 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 309



 

36.  
Application No: 15/01490/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Helmsley Town Council 

Applicant: Mr Simon Kershaw 
Location: 35 Bridge Street Helmsley North Yorkshire YO62 5DX 

Proposal: Erection of a single storey extension to rear elevation following demolition of 

existing rear extension 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

37.  

Application No: 15/01506/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Broughton Parish Meeting 
Applicant: Mr & Mrs M Campbell 

Location: Thistledale Moor Lane Broughton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6QJ  

Proposal: Erection of single-storey extension to front (east) elevation 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

38.  

Application No: 15/01515/TPO    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Amotherby Parish Council 
Applicant: Dr Diggory 

Location: The Old Vicarage Church Street Amotherby Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6TN  

Proposal: To reduce the lower northerly limb of T11 (Beech)  by 2metres, reduce the lower 
northerly limb by 2 metres and easterly limb by 3 metres of T 12 (Beech), and reduce 

the height of T14 (Ash) by 2 metres, all within TPO No. 273/2001.   

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 310



  

 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 8 January 2016 

by Louise Crosby  MA MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

Decision date: 13 January 2016 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/Y2736/D/15/3136864 
104 Parliament Street, Norton, Malton, YO17 9HE 

 The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

 The appeal is made by Miss L A Scholefield against the decision of Ryedale District 

Council. 

 The application Ref: 15/00916/HOUSE, dated 7 August 2015, was refused by notice 

dated 24 September 2015. 

 The development proposed is a two storey side extension to form a kitchen/dining area 

with a bedroom above. 
 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 

Main Issues 

2. The main issues are the effect of the proposal on:  

i) the character and appearance of the area and the host property; and  

ii) the living conditions at 100 Parliament Street. 

Procedural matter 

3. The Council’s decision notice is not specific about the harm to living conditions 
at No 100 and whether this would be in the garden or the house or indeed 

both.  However, the Council officer’s report deals only with living conditions in 
the garden of No 100 and so I shall deal with the appeal on the same basis. 

Reasons 

4. No 104 is a 2 storey dwelling that is one of four properties in this block (a 
quarter house).  A similar block exists adjacent to it.  The buildings are uniform 

and symmetrical in design and from the road it is not readily apparent that 
they are ‘quarter houses’.  They are located in an area containing 

predominantly older properties that vary in design.  

5. Of the 8 properties in the 2 blocks, only No 104 which is located at the rear of 
this block has a garden area.  At present it is a one bedroom property.  The 2 

storey side extension would provide a kitchen and dining area at ground floor 
level and a second bedroom above.  Despite being 2 storey in height the 

extension would be much lower than the host building and set well back from 
the front elevation.    

Page 311

Agenda Item 18



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/D/15/3136864 
 

 
           2 

6. As a result of the design of the block, from the street the modest sized 

extension would appear as a subservient extension to a semi-detached 
dwelling. While the uniformity and symmetry of the block would be lost I am 

not convinced that this would be unduly harmful. 

7. Moreover, this property is the only one of the eight in these 2 blocks that could 
be extended in this manner because of the additional amenity space it 

contains.  Also, the other block is much closer to the side boundary.  The 
proposal would respect the character and appearance of the host dwelling and 

the surrounding area, which is mixed in character.   

8. As such, it would accord with Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy (LP) policies 
SP16 and SP20 in so far as they both seek to ensure new development is 

appropriate and sympathetic to the character and appearance of the existing 
building in terms of scale, form and use of materials. 

9. Turning to the matter of living conditions, No 100 is the property in front of 
No 104 and it faces the road.  It has a small amenity space at the side 
containing a path to the entrance door, a small gravelled area and a timber 

shed.  The shed is close to the boundary with No 104 which is marked with a 
timber fence.   

10. The extension would be built close to this boundary and project around 2.6m 
from the side elevation of No 104.  It would be much higher than the shed and 
fence.  As such, it would appear extremely overbearing when sitting in the 

small amenity space at the side of No 100.  The existing shed will have very 
little impact on light and sunlight entering this area.  However, given the 

orientation of the properties, the height of the proposed extension and its 
proximity to the boundary, it would result in a harmful loss of light and sunlight 
entering the amenity space at No 100.  

11. As such, the proposal would have a detrimental impact on living conditions at 
No 100 and conflict with LP policy SP20 which seeks, among other things, to 

ensure that new development does not have a material adverse impact on the 
amenity of the users or occupants of neighbouring land by virtue of loss of 
natural daylight or be an overbearing presence.   

12. The lack of harm in relation to character and appearance is far outweighed by 
the identified harm to living conditions and so for the reasons given above and 

having regard to all other matters raised, I conclude that the appeal should be 
dismissed. 

Louise Crosby 

INSPECTOR 

 

Page 312



  

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 

Site visit made on 19 January 2016 

by Graham M Garnham BA BPhil MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

Decision date: 03 February 2016 

 
Appeal Ref: APP/Y2736/D/15/3138694 

North Lodge, Welburn, Kirkbymoorside, YO62 7HG 

 The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

 The appeal is made by Mr & Mrs Fambely against the decision of Ryedale District 

Council. 

 The application Ref 15/00775/HOUSE, dated 1 July 2015, was refused by notice dated 

26 August 2015. 

 The development proposed is erection of a detached garage. 
 

 

Decision 

1.  The appeal is dismissed. 

Procedural Matters 

2. The Appeal Form confirms that the description of the proposed development 

has changed from that on the planning application form to that recorded in 
the summary above, and that the appellants' surname is spelt as shown 

above. 

Main Issue 

3. I consider that this is the effect of the proposal on the character and 

appearance of the setting of nearby Grade II listed buildings. 

Reasons 

4. North Lodge is a former lodge at the formal entrance to the Welburn Hall 
Estate.  Now a private house, it was built in 1895 in the Domestic Revival 
Style.  Its original features, quality and character seem to be largely intact, 

and have been preserved by a sensitive 2 storey extension in the later 20th 
century.  It is adjoined by another Grade II listed building, comprising the 

stone wall, gate piers and gates themselves, of the same age and also well 
preserved.  Both are listed for group value.  They form an imposing entrance 

point to Welburn Hall (now a school).  The Hall is barely visible some distance 
away to the south.  This degree of separation, and the intervening imposing 
avenue of mature trees along the drive, reflect the functional relationship of 

the buildings and the subordinate historic role of the Lodge. 

Page 313



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/D/15/3138694 
 

 

 

2 

5. I consider that the quality of the listed buildings, their preservation to date 
and their siting in relation to the Hall all contribute to the considerable quality 

and significance of them as designated historic assets. 

6. Vehicles are currently parked in the enclosed garden area south of the Lodge.  
The proposal is to erect a single garage, constructed of green oak horizontal 

boarding with a roof of stone slates to match the materials and pitch of the 
Lodge.  I regard it as being a sensitive design, appropriate to the setting. 

7. However, it is with the siting of the garage that I take issue.  It would be just 
south of the Lodge, close to the boundary with the drive, and nearer to it than 
the forward most part of the Lodge itself.  It would be clearly visible when 

approaching the gateway and going through it en route to the Hall.  As such it 
would detract from the apparently isolated appearance of the listed buildings. 

Looking back from the south, it would intrude upon a second important view 
of the Lodge, again detracting from its appearance and setting.  The low 
picket fence around the garden area south of the Lodge would not provide 

any form of screening.  Even in leaf, the tall lime trees just to the south would 
be unlikely to provide much screening either.  The appellants have offered a 

planning condition to require some planting to screen the garage.  I consider 
that this would take a considerable time to mature, if it was to be in keeping 
with the local native species, and in any case it could itself detract from the 

open nature of the Lodge when seen from the south.  Consequently, I find 
that the siting of the proposal would detract significantly from the heritage 

quality of the setting of the listed buildings.   

8. The Council says that, in principle, a detached garage would detract from the 
isolated setting of the Lodge.  I am not entirely persuaded by this view. There 

are existing outbuildings, to the rear of the Lodge.  They can be seen from 
the drive to the south.  However, they are not seen when approaching and 

entering the drive, and are relatively minor and secluded features.  Their 
existence indicates to me that the presence of appropriate outbuildings on the 
site should not be excluded in principle.  However, whether a suitable 

alternative site for a garage could be identified is not for me to say.  The 
appeal includes an alternative location for the garage, which it is suggested 

could be secured by a planning condition.  This siting, to the south of the 
Lodge but much closer the eastern boundary of the site, would be materially 
different from the original proposal.  Hence I consider that it should be the 

subject of formal consultation and consideration by the local planning 
authority, rather than be imposed by condition at the appeal stage. 

9. I conclude that the proposal would give rise to significant harm to the setting 
of the nearby listed buildings.  I consider that, given the scale of the building 

and its sympathetic design, the extent of harm would be “less than 
substantial” in the terms of paragraph 134 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  The public benefit to be set against this would be the removal of 

unsightly parking in the grounds of the Lodge.  I consider that this would be a 
relatively minor benefit, and one that, while it could be enabled, could not 

necessarily be ensured by a planning condition.  Moreover, I am not aware of 
any restriction on vehicle ownership by occupants of the Lodge, while a single 
garage would not be able to accommodate both the vehicles parked on the 

site at the time of my site visit. 

Page 314



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/D/15/3138694 
 

 

 

3 

10. Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 requires that, “in considering whether to grant planning permission for 

development which affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning 
authority or, as the case may be, the Secretary of State, shall have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any 

features of special architectural on historic interest which it possesses”.  Case 
law has established that considerable importance and weight should be given 

to this objective imposed by Parliament, of preserving the setting of listed 
buildings.  In the light of this, I consider that the limited public benefit I have 
been able to identify would be clearly outweighed by the harm the proposal 

would cause to the setting of 2 listed buildings. 

11. I conclude, overall and on balance, that the proposal would materially harm 

the character and appearance of the setting of nearby Grade II listed 
buildings.  Such harm would be contrary to Policies SP12 & SP16 in the 
Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy (2013).  These policies, respectively, are 

intended to conserve and, where appropriate, enhance distinctive elements in 
Ryedale's historic environment; and to secure high quality development that 

is integrated with its surroundings and reinforces local distinctiveness.  It 
would also be contrary to the statutory duty cited above and to national 
planning policy in the Framework. 

12. Thus planning permission should be withheld and I dismiss the appeal. 

G Garnham 

INSPECTOR 

Page 315



  

 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 22 December 2015 

by Mark Caine  BSc (Hons) MTPL MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

Decision date: 05 February 2016 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/Y2736/W/15/3133496 
Lynwood, The Lane, Gate Helmsley, York, North Yorkshire, YO41 1JT 

 The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

against a refusal to grant outline planning permission. 

 The appeal is made by Mr Peter Thirsk against the decision of Ryedale District Council. 

 The application Ref 14/01291/OUT, dated 22 November 2014, was refused by notice 

dated 18 March 2015. 

 The development proposed is described as “A two storey house to be built at the bottom 

of the garden with access from Beverley Balk.  The house to sit in 400 square metres of 

land.” 
 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 

Procedural Matters 

2. The application was submitted in outline, with only access to be determined at 

this stage.  I have therefore dealt with the appeal on this basis. 

3. The appellant has confirmed that he mistakenly submitted alternative site plans 

with the appeal.  Consequently, I have determined the appeal on the basis of 
the original site location plan and block plan that were submitted with the 
application.   

4. The Council has not raised any objections to the impact of the proposed 
development on the setting of St Mary’s Church which I am informed is a 

Grade II star listed building.  I have had special regard to the statutory duty to 
the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historical interest which it possesses.  In this respect I 

am satisfied that it would preserve those interests.   

Main Issues 

5. The main issues in this appeal are: 

 Whether the proposal would be inappropriate development in the Green Belt 
for the purposes of the National Planning Policy Framework and development 

plan policy; 

 The effect of the proposal on the openness of the Green Belt, and the 

character and appearance of the surrounding area. 

Page 316



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/W/15/3133496 
 

 
                                                                         2 

 Whether the harm by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm, is 

clearly outweighed by other considerations, so as to amount to very special 
circumstances necessary to justify it. 

Reasons 

Whether inappropriate development 

6. The appeal site comprises part of a large garden area to a detached dwelling 

known as ‘Lynwood’.  It is grassed, contains a number of mature trees and 
fronts Beverley Balk which is a narrow access track.  Although there are other 

properties in the vicinity, the appeal site sits in between a large open grassed 
area of land which I am informed is an extension of the cemetery, and the 
driveway and neighbouring garden area to ‘The Heathers’.  These all combine 

to make a positive contribution to the spacious verdant character of the 
immediate area. 

7. The appeal site is located in the Green Belt.  Paragraph 89 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) sets out that the construction of 
new buildings is inappropriate except for a limited number of exceptions 

including limited infilling in villages and limited affordable housing for 
community needs under policies set out in the Local Plan.   

8. The terms of limited infilling are not further defined in the Framework.  
However Policy SP2 of the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy 2013 (Local Plan) 
indicates that in other villages, such as Gate Helmsley, new housing will be 

supported where amongst other things it would comprise infill development 
(small open sites in an otherwise continually built up frontage) that is restricted 

to local needs occupancy. 

9. On my site visit I noted that a small relatively new residential development 
known as ‘The Gates’ faces the appeal site.  However these properties are 

separated from the appeal site by Beverley Balk and a private access road.   
I also saw that two dwellings known as ‘Grey Gables’ and ‘Long Acre’ are set 

further forward than other properties to the western end of The Lane.   
Although the position of ‘Lynwood’ is generally in line with the properties to the 
west of ‘Long Acre’ there are substantial intervening open garden areas 

between it and these dwellings.  

10. Furthermore, I consider that the appeal site, albeit slightly interrupted by the 

driveway, is seen as part of a stretch of green space that leads from the gable 
end of ‘The Heathers’ along the western side of Beverly Balk down to the 
junction with The Lane.  Indeed, the proposed dwelling would be centrally 

located within this area, with open space to either side of it.  In light of all of 
these factors I consider that the proposal would clearly not compromise infill 

development within an otherwise continually built up frontage.   

11. Although it has been put to me that the proposal would pave the way for the 

development on the cemetery site, I have little firm evidence before me to 
substantiate that the Parochial Church Council wish to develop the site.   
As such this cannot be guaranteed in the future. 

12. The proposal does therefore not meet the terms of Local Plan Policy SP2 and 
the Framework’s exception that puts limited infilling in villages outside the 

scope of inappropriate development in the Green Belt.  The proposed dwelling 
would also not fall within any other exceptions stated in the Framework and I 

Page 317



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/W/15/3133496 
 

 
                                                                         3 

conclude that, for the reasons provided above, it would amount to 

inappropriate development that is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt. 

Openness and character and appearance 

13. Paragraph 79 of the Framework advises that the fundamental aim of Green Belt 
policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; the 
essential characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their 

permanence.  Therefore, any built development has the ability to reduce 
openness.  

14. I appreciate that the proposed layout plan is only indicative, and no details of 
the proposed dwelling’s layout, scale and appearance have been provided.   
However the introduction of a dwelling in an area which is currently 

undeveloped, would inevitably impact upon openness and appear conspicuous 
in the context of this spacious green tree-dominated site.  It would therefore 

substantially increase the amount of built form and erode the openness of the 
Green Belt. 

15. Such harm to openness, in the context of the policies of the Framework, 

requires that substantial weight be apportioned to this harm when considered 
in the planning balance.  Also for the reasons given above, the proposal would 

cause significant harm to the spacious verdant character and appearance of the 
surrounding area. 

Other considerations 

16. A newspaper article regarding the possible release of extra homes in Rydedale 
has been submitted with the appeal.  Nonetheless, as the article points out, 

this is speculation.  However I appreciate that residents of the proposal would 
help support local services and that the proposal would contribute towards the 
shortage of housing in the District.  In this way, it would contribute some 

positive benefits, however given the scale of the proposal I can only attach 
limited weight to them. 

17. My attention has been drawn to other developments that have been permitted 
within the development limits of Gate Helmsley.  These include ‘The Gates’ and 
what have been referred to as the Bickerdike’s old farm buildings.  However I 

do not have the full details of the circumstances that led to all these 
developments being accepted, including the local planning policies at the time 

of their consideration, and so cannot be sure that they represent a direct 
parallel to the appeal proposal.  I have, in any case, determined the appeal on 
its own merits and therefore attribute minimal weight to this matter. 

18. It has been put to me that no objections have been received from the Council’s 
Highway Authority and the Parish Council.  However these would not be 

determining factors in the consideration of an appeal.  The absence of an 
objection in these respects would be neutral in the overall Green Belt balance. 

19. Issues regarding land ownership, the right of access and status of the Beverly 
Balk highway have been raised by the appellant and local residents.  
Nonetheless, these are private legal matters and have not had any material 

bearing on my assessment of the planning issues in this appeal. 

20. I have also been referred to problems regarding the validation of the 

application and post decision discussions that took place between the appellant 

Page 318



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/W/15/3133496 
 

 
                                                                         4 

and the Council.  However, these are matters that would need to be pursued 

with the Council in the first instance.  I confirm that in this respect,  
I have only had regard to the planning merits of the proposal that is before me. 

Green Belt balance and conclusions 

21. In conclusion I have identified that the proposal would be inappropriate 
development in the Green Belt as defined by the Framework.  The Framework 

establishes that substantial weight should be given to any harm in the Green 
Belt.  In addition it would substantially reduce the openness of the Green Belt, 

and be significantly harmful to the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area.  As such, even when taken together, the other 
considerations reviewed above do not clearly outweigh the harm that the 

proposal would cause.  Consequently no very special circumstances exist and 
the proposal is contrary to Local Plan Policy SP2.  Therefore, for the reasons 

given above, the appeal is dismissed. 

 

 

Mark Caine  

 INSPECTOR 

Page 319



  

 
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 22 December 2015 

by Mark Caine  BSc (Hons) MTPL MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

Decision date:  6 February 2016 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/Y2736/W/15/3133256 
Thirkleby Wold Farm, Croome Road, Sledmere, East Riding of Yorkshire, 
YO25 3XZ 

 The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

 The appeal is made by Harrison Farms (Kilham) Ltd against the decision of Ryedale 

District Council. 

 The application Ref 15/00577/FUL, dated 11 May 2015, was refused by notice dated  

21 July 2015. 

 The development proposed is the erection of a livestock building. 
 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 

Main Issue 

2. The main issue in this appeal is the effect of the proposal on the character and 

appearance of the landscape. 

Reasons 

3. The appeal site comprises part of an arable field that lies to the south west of 
the settlement of West Lutton and is located in the Yorkshire Wolds which is a 
designated Area of High Landscape Value (AHLV).  It is situated immediately 

adjacent to a belt of existing mature woodland and approximately 200 metres 
to the north of Thirkelby Wold Farm.  Public footpaths and bridleways run in 

close proximity to the north and eastern boundaries of the appeal site. 

4. The appellant has referred me to the North Yorkshire County Council Landscape 
Character Assessment (NYCLCA) which identifies the site as being within the 

‘Chalk Wolds’.  This describes the area as encompassing a large scale elevated 
chalk landscape of rounded, rolling hills that are dissected by occasional deep 

valleys.  This was confirmed on my site visit where I saw that whilst other 
agricultural farmsteads are visible from the appeal site, they are compact and 

nucleated, and their sporadic siting does not alter the prevailing character of 
the area which is dominated by open fields, agricultural land and an expansive 
rolling landscape. 

5. Indeed, the topography of the area is such that the appeal site sits in an 
elevated and relatively prominent isolated location, away from other buildings, 

in the open landscape.  I appreciate that the areas of woodland would provide 
a backdrop for the proposal and screen some views of it from the south and 

Page 320



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/W/15/3133256 
 

 
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate           2 

western directions.  It has also been put to me that being able to see existing 

agricultural buildings from a public right of way is not unusual.  However the 
proposed building would be of a substantial size and scale, and despite the 

landform and intermittent roadside hedgerows I consider that its conspicuous 
isolated presence would be readily apparent from not only public footpaths and 
bridleways but a number of other vantage points, including along Malton Lane 

and Low Road.  

6. The appellant states that the proposed building could not be relocated within 

the existing shelter belt due to ventilation issues; however there is little 
conclusive evidence before me to support this view.  As such I consider that 
the overall impact of the proposal would significantly intrude and interrupt this 

sensitive undeveloped landscape and encroach into the open countryside. 

7. A number of economic, social and environmental benefits that have been put 

forward by the appellant in support of their case.  These include the 
diversification of the business, which would provide an additional income 
stream and pig slurry as a valuable source of organic fertilizer to add to the 

sustainability of the existing arable cropping.  This in turn, would result in cost 
savings, job retention and direct and indirect employment creation.    

The contribution that the proposal would make to the local economy during the 
construction of the building, and to associated services industries within the 
livestock sector and other rural businesses have also been put forward as 

favourable factors.  I am also aware that the proposal would reduce the need 
for imported fertilizer and pig meat, lessen associated travel miles, and 

promote cheap and environmentally efficient home produced food.  

8. Paragraph 19 of the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) 
advises that significant weight should be placed on the need to support 

economic growth through the planning system.  Paragraph 28 of the 
Framework is also supportive of a prosperous rural economy, the promotion of 

the development and diversification of agricultural and other land based rural 
business and growth in existing businesses. 

9. However in defining the environmental role of the planning system, paragraph 

7 of the Framework emphasises the need to protect and enhance the natural 
and built environment.  The core planning principles set out in paragraph 17 of 

the Framework also include the need to take account of different roles and 
character of different areas, recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of 
the countryside and to enhance the natural environment.  Furthermore, 

paragraph 109 states that the planning system should conserve and enhance 
the natural environment and valued landscapes. 

10. I therefore do not consider that the benefits proposed would outweigh the 
substantial visual harm that I have identified.  As such I conclude that the 

proposal would have a significantly harmful effect on the character and 
appearance of the landscape and that it would conflict with the aims of Policies 
SP13, SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy 2013  

(Local Plan).  Amongst other matters these require development proposals to 
respect the context and character of the immediate locality, and to protect the 

distinctive elements and scenic qualities of locally valued landscapes. 

11. In reaching my conclusions I have been mindful that the NYCLCA highlights the 
introduction of new visually intrusive large agricultural sheds as forces for 

change affecting landscapes.  I have also taken account of the appellant’s 

Page 321



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/W/15/3133256 
 

 
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate           3 

reference to the presumption in favour of sustainable development.   

However the subject of "achieving sustainable development" in the Framework 
has 3 dimensions, which are economic, social and environmental roles that are 

expected to be delivered equally.  Therefore, as the proposal would not satisfy 
the environmental dimension it does not constitute sustainable development. 

12. I note that no objections have been received from neighbouring residents or 

statutory consultees; however, these are not determining factors in the 
consideration of an appeal and do not overcome or outweigh the significant 

harm that the proposal would cause. 

13. For the reasons given above, the appeal is therefore dismissed. 

 

Mark Caine  

INSPECTOR 

 

Page 322


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of meeting held on 19 January 2016
	5 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee
	6 15/01109/MFUL - Land West of Kirby Mills Road, Kirby Mills, Kirkbymoorside
	2 - Revised Site Location Plan
	3 - Site Layout
	4 - Previous Report

	7 15/01180/MFUL - Pickering Trout Lake, Undercliffe, Pickering
	2 - Main issues included in Letters of Representations
	3 - Site Location Plan
	4 - Site Layout Plan
	5 - Additional Plan 1
	6 - Additional Plan 2
	7 - Additional Plan 3
	8 - Additional Plan 4
	9 - Revised Plan
	10 - Illustrative Plan
	11 - Design And Access Statement
	12 - Parish 1
	13 - Parish 2

	8 14/01259/MFUL - Land to Rear of Firthland Road, Pickering
	2 -Site Location Plan
	3 -Revised Site Layout
	4 - Revised Plan 1
	5 - Revised Plan 2
	6 - Revised Plan 3
	7 - Revised Plan 4
	8 - Revised Plan 5
	9 - Additional Plan 1
	10 - Additional Plan 2
	11 - Additional Plan 3
	12 - Design And Access Statement
	13 - Parish 1
	14 - Parish 2
	15 - Parish 3

	9 15/01290/MFUL - Land At Ordmerstones Lane, Thornton-Le-Dale
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Block Plans
	4 - Proposed Plans 1
	5 - Proposed Plans 2
	6 - Design And Access Statement
	7 - Parish

	10 15/01323/MFUL - Land East Of High Street, Slingsby, Malton
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Revised Site Layout Plan
	4 - Previously Approved Plans - Site Location
	5 - Previously Approved Plans - Revised 1
	6 - Previously Approved Plans - Revised 2
	7 - Previously Approved Plans - Additional
	8 - Parish

	11 15/01502/MFUL - Spaniel Farm, Main Road, Weaverthorpe
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Proposed Plans
	4 - Supporting Doc

	12 15/01236/FUL - Land At Cherry Farm Close, Malton
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Site Layout Revised
	4 - Previously Approved Plans - Proposed Elevations 1
	5 - Previously Approved Plans - Proposed Elevations 2
	6 - Revised Plan
	7 - Additional Plan 1
	8 - Additional Plan 2
	9 - Design And Access Statement
	10 - Parish

	13 15/01339/FUL - Land West of Pasture Lane, Hovingham
	2 - Revised Site Location
	3 - Revised Site Layout
	4 - Block Plans
	5 - Revised Plan
	6 - Design And Access Statement
	7 - Parish 1
	8 - Parish 2

	14 15/01384/FUL - Land East Of Sheriff Hutton Industrial Estate, Sheriff Hutton
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Site Layout Plan
	4 - Proposed Plans
	5 - Design And Access Statement
	6 - Parish

	15 15/00048/ENF215 - Land Adj to Dhekelia, Moor Lane, Broughton
	2 - Location Plan

	17 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.
	18 Update on Appeal Decisions
	2 Appeal Decision North Lodge Welburn
	3 Appeal Decision Lynwood Gate Helmsley
	4 Appeal decision Thirkleby Wold Farm


